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Established in 1988, Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited is a leading provider of e-commerce
services for Hong Kong business community. Since 1997, Tradelink has been providing Government
Electronic Trading Services (GETS) for the trading community, initially under a 7-year exclusive
franchise (1997-2003) and currently under a licence till 2018. The government also has confirmed
award of a new 6-year GETS licence (2019-2024) to Tradelink, extendable up to three years at the
Government’s discretion. Over the years, Tradelink has earned the trust and support of the trading
community; enabling it to stand firmly as the dominant player in the e-commerce market. With the
mission to empower its clients with business enabled e-solutions for their commercial and financial
activities, Tradelink has diversified its business beyond GETS into other business areas. In addition
to GETS, Tradelink also offers a wide range of Business-to-Business services, digital certification
services and online/mobile security solutions for identity management and payment through its
subsidiaries Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited, Digi-Sign Certification Services
Limited and Tradelink E-Biz Secure Solutions Limited.

Tradelink was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 00536) on 28 October 2005.

B REFESAERARNIBSFEN Y AEFTHEELRE RESEEA - B1997F 8 B5HE
EHEAESRREHBUTETE SIRE(GETS) - BB & YA+ F F & HIR(1997-2003) - IR 5 KK
FRAEBE2018F - BB MEHRIZ TE 5B K /X FGETSHE HR(2019-2024) « 17 A] B IE &
BE3F -KBEEHE BHBRRGEREBREYE BURNETE SR TIBHE LA -
RAFHUNEFREEESTFHR KRBT FPFAERSREBINEERS KYABMEL®
- MRGETSIZLEBIN EZBBERBEZENBRR BFEZEZEHRAKERAR ETFZRER
BERARNESBETFHABENRERAA  BEHE—RICEULEETHERY  BHEHE
REMERRENERNZ2I NP L/RBREZHBRAE-

2005F10A28H  EZBREBHM AR ST ER L™ (BRMD KK - 00536) ©

100 1 11

) 1o

010001($ 01 000 00010
1110 0(1)10 1“0111 109
Tog 1 0,104 00, 00, g0,
311“ 111 & B
e 00‘ 0o 10| )4
:)00 A 1C OO | DOl

14 1 ' 2

| b




Contents B # "

11

25

32

54

69

84

85

Financial Highlights
MG E

Chairman’s Statement

TREHEE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE R R DM

Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAE

Corporate Governance Report
rREARESE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HehEalE

Directors’ Report

BEEeunsE

Other Information

H b & ¥

Report of the Auditors
REEmES

94

95

96

98

99

101

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
RAEmE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
eEBEsRkEMEEMEEE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BRI &

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEREBE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEBRSRER

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R BT 7

Five-Year Financial Summary
RFERHBHE

Other Financial Assets

Hih o5& &

Investor Relations and Key Dates

REEBEMEZAH

Corporate Information

NAEH



Revenue

Profit from operations

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of

the Company
Total assets

Net assets

Dividend per share (HK cents)
Interim
Proposed final

Earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic
Diluted

Financial ratios
Net profit margin (Note 1)
Effective tax rate (Note 2)
Current ratio (Note 3)
Quick ratio (Note 4)

Lg
REHER
AR RRESEANEGER

BEERE
BEFE

BRERE (BAL)
HHEIRR
R R IR

BRAEF (GBAL)
AR

B % b %
PR R R (ff 7 1)
BB (M it2)
BN X (H1iE3)
HELL E (Hfit4)

Year ended
31 December
2017
BE-Z—+#&
+=A=+-—H
LEE
HK$’'000
BETT

As at

31 December
2017
R=-ZB—tF
+=BA=+—H
‘000

T &

231,302

91,931

79,252
564,624

350,351

ERTRMEEER
WF=A=+—E8

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

As at 31 December 794,486

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) R+ A=+—BE2%fT

R B Y AN HE P 19 B (EAR)

794,354

outstanding as at 31 December



Financial Highlights (Continued)
VB E )

% of Segment Revenue of

: o Total Revenue
Wz (B E BT 2 E UL WS BEE DI

Revenue (HK$ million)

O GETS BT EFE 5 R%
W Security Solutions R % 5 &
7 Commercial Services % R %

. Other Services H ft IR #%
C 134
o 72%
7%
B 9016

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Profit for the Year (HK$ million)

& Net Profit Margin Dividend per Share (HK cents)

e e SRS GEAL)

W Interim A EARR B

o & Final REIRE B
35.0% 328°/ 3439% W Special #5182
306%
12.2
11.6
10.2

9.5
8.7 I
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

* Proposed final dividend ## ik 7 HA i% 8.

“E—LEEHR EZBETEZERLA



Chairman’s
««e.cpp> Statement

::Igiﬁlﬁi

04 Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017




Dear Shareholders,

BINURR:

Review

The global economy in 2017 performed much better than expected
notwithstanding a number of key uncertainties over the course of the
year with regard to the policies of the new US Administration, the highly
anticipated rate hikes of the US Federal Reserve and the deleveraging of
the China economy. Against such cloudiness in the year, the momentum
in the US economy actually strengthened, the US dollar exchange rate
went down rather than up despite interest rate increasing three times
and China’s economy managed to maintain a steady growth. Benefited
from the global economic growth boosting regional trade flows in Asia
to major economies, it was quite a pleasant year for the Hong Kong
trading community in 2017. With a favourable operating environment in
2017, the Group's turnover recorded a growth of 4.6% year-on-year
from HK$231.3 million in 2016 to HK$241.8 million in 2017.

As all our other costs increased only marginally, the Group’s operating
profit for 2017 was up 2.4% to HK$94.2 million compared to the
operating profit at HK$91.9 million in 2016. As mentioned in my
statement in the 2017 Interim Report, we had to record an exceptional
impairment loss of about HK$8 million for one corporate bond holding
in our other financial assets for the first half of the year. We did, in the
second half of the year, dispose half of the concerned corporate bond to
lower the exposure. Taking into the account the loss on such a disposal,
the impairment loss on our other financial assets for 2017 was revised
to HK$8.2 million in total. With a share of profit of our PRC associate at
HK$2.4 million in 2017 versus a share loss of HK$10.6 million in 2016,
the Group's profit before tax was up 8.6% from HK$81.4 million in
2016 to HK$88.3 million in 2017.

Taking into account the recognition of the deferred tax charge arising
from the utilisation of unused tax losses of Digital Trade and
Transportation Network Limited (“DTTNCo"), the Group’s after tax profit
for 2017 at HK$74.1 million was down 6.5% year-on-year. Excluding the
deferred tax charge of DTTNCo, the Group's after tax profit to
shareholders for 2017 at HK$76.2 million was up 8.4% from HK$70.4
million for 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREREE B

Review (Continued)

Regarding the performance of our key business segments in 2017, as
foreshadowed in my statement in the 2017 Interim Report, both
Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS") and Security Solutions
continued steady growth in the second half of the year, with revenue
for the former increased by 1.5% and later 35% year-on-year to
HK$169.1 million and HK$40.1 million respectively. With a more
stringent costs control, the segment profit for GETS recorded a
handsome increase of 6.7%; and for Security Solutions,
doubled to HK$5.8 million compared to 2016. For our Commercial
Services segment, the revenue at HK$13.6 million and profit at HK$6
million for the year was down about 12.5% and 14.7% respectively
year-on-year. Though the result of the Commercial Services segment was
unfavourable in 2017, we do not consider that a cause for concern. The
drop of revenue and profit was partly due to the delay of a couple of

its profit

projects, previously scheduled for completion before end of 2017, to
2018. Also attributed to the decline of the segment performance was a
new business venture being kicked off by the team in the second half of
2017 with resources already been incurred for the development but
revenue only expected to start coming in earliest in the second half of
2018.

For our other services, as foreshadowed in my statement in the 2017
Interim Report, we recorded a slight improvement on the full year
performance. Though the revenue dropped marginally from HK$19.5
million in 2016 to HK$19.0 million in 2017, the segment profit in 2017
at HK$11.4 million was up 7.1% from HK$10.7 million in 2016. While
our other GETS-related services business remained largely stable, we have
overall incurred less cost not only on those services but also on research
work upon completion of some of our market studies.

Business of our PRC associate, Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science &
Technology Services Company Limited (“Nanfang”) was, as expected,
continuing a steady and healthy recovery in the second half of 2017
since the beginning of the year after the settlement of their previous
legal issues. However due to a change of their accounting estimate
introduced in the second half of the year relating to the useful lives of
the intangible assets, our share of profit from Nanfang at HK$2.4 million
for 2017 was just marginally more than that for the first half of the
year.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017

[l B (%)

ERZT-EFETEEBOBZRE  EWAA
E’s\:f'f tFEPYPREIEREECET  BF
EH5RE([GETS ) RRZ T REN T+ F

%ii*”%ai"ﬁ A& 2 WHRIEE FF1.5% > M
FINEN35% » 5 Bl EE #169,100,0007T M 78 B

40,100,0007T ° B 5 E B A ZE S~ - GETSZ
DEHERIEEBE LFA6T7%  MARETHEM
%udﬁ?&ﬂﬁ*“ NEFEEREZE 5,800,000
ToBBEERE D B iwukﬁn%ﬁm%
13,600,0007@ Kt FI| 74 7% #6,000,0000T 9 Bl E
FRAD125% R147% - HABERE DB 2 =

%—ti%%ﬁ*ﬁuﬁﬁé 1&1&1?3 /755 BEHAE
éiﬁl”ﬁ(ﬁ?&&iﬁ?&?‘JTEﬁZFl D HERRE

tiifﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%{IEELii_q
—)\¢ S— @5l BnabRETHRA  ZEK
RIZE—EtFTH+FRE-BHER  LERA
BRMAEER  MEBEHEFR -_Z-NFTEF)

FIGERSIH B U »
?ﬁﬁﬂzﬁj\fi’:\: —EFERHRE CERBESEMR

o BRI 2FRBMAE LS - AEKEH
*f—ﬁiﬁﬂﬁw 500,000 LB E =T —+F
7 #19,000,0007T * — T —+F 2 o ¥ Fh H
— T — X F#%10,700,0007C E MN7.1%E = F
— -+ & % 11,400,0007T ° E L GETSHE B8 AR 75 KX
BEERET  BMTEEZSREEEELERD
B RETFHHHRTHE - FRIIEZKAE
TEE 2R o

—mATk PEBE AR ERM S ERRERE
ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂ(rﬁm)aimﬂw&ﬁiﬂﬁﬁé&
¥R T —tF T EFHEBRER -
ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁiﬁ/ééwﬂﬁi,ﬁﬁza.ﬁﬂz%b’éTii*ﬁ
FritE) =% FoMWEE A RN TR
# . 57 #2,400,0007T °



Prospects

While the general sentiment towards the global economy in 2018
continues to be optimistic, certain economic uncertainties including those
linked to the Brexit negotiations, possible adverse effects on global trade
and economy due to the US trade policy and protectionism warrant
some attention. Closer to home, other factors such as the possible rise
of the interest rates in Hong Kong due to the continuous and gradual
interest rate hikes of the US Federal Reserve and the sustainability of a
stable growth of the China economy, are likely to have a more direct
impact on the Hong Kong economy which may affect somewhat our
core e-commerce business.

Nonetheless, we are reasonably optimistic about the outlook of our core
business in GETS in 2018. We expect the operating environment for
GETS to be stable in 2018 since the Government has announced the
award of the new GETS licence from 2019 to 2024 (plus possible
extension up to 2027) to us, and the other two existing GETS service
providers. With the same three players continuing under the new GETS
licence regime, we anticipate a familiar competitive environment. As
always with our well proven stable and quality services provided to our
customers for more than two decades, we are confident that we shall
continue to uphold our dominant market share in GETS in 2018 and
beyond under the new licence. As the GETS market has proved to be
rather robust and resilient, barring any unforeseen circumstances
substantially upsetting the Hong Kong trading environment, we expect
our GETS business to remain a stable one in 2018.

As regards the bigger picture about the Government's Trade Single
Window (“"SW") implementation which will be rolled out in 3 phases and
eventually take over GETS earliest by 2024 as their original plan, we are
closely monitoring the progress and development of this mega project.
So far the official public message (in the Chief Executive's 2017 Policy
Address statement) is that the first phase of the SW involving voluntary
submission of thirteen trade documents under existing law is scheduled
to be launched in mid-2018. Regarding SW phases 2 and 3 which
would impact the GETS market,
significantly for phase 3, the actual implementation arrangements and
new legislation

marginally for phase 2 and more

progress will depend on the policy development,
enactment and amendments to some forty pieces of existing legislations,
funding approval for the system design and development and the actual
time required for the system development work. While the Government
have started engaging industry stakeholders to provide advice to the SW
implementation details, as an incumbent GETS service provider and a
potential value-added service provider (“VASP”) under the future SW, we
are keeping close eyes on the likely future SW operating and business
environment for VASPs leading to potential opportunities and threats to
our business in the medium to long term. We would gear up our
resources to participate actively in their consultation process as and
when appropriate and formulate our strategy accordingly in the light of
the actual development of the SW project.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREREE B

Prospects (Continued)

For our Commercial Services business, as stated earlier in my Statement,
the team has already got on hand a couple of projects previously
planned for launch in 2017 and now delayed to 2018. More excitingly,
riding on the booming retail market and growing e-commerce trend
creating huge demands for our supply-chain e-solutions for sales order
management, fulfilment and delivery, our team is seizing the
opportunities to promote our solutions directly to retail merchants as
well as to third party logistics service providers as services to their end
customers. With our relevant domain knowledge, strong customer
references and referrals from satisfied customers, the team has been
working on some solid and qualified leads which hopefully would reap
the harvest in 2018. For the new business venture mentioned earlier, we
expect soft launch of the project would start in the first half of 2018.
While we are reasonably confident of the business concept of this
initiative, we are mindful of the pace of its market acceptance as it
could be seen as a game changer and would likely take time for users to
appreciate its real values and adopt usage. We should be in a better
position to assess the real business potential of this initiative upon a
reality check soon after the mass rollout in the second half of the year.

As for our Security Solutions segment, with the solid and healthy sales
pipeline already built up and the success in 2017 providing us with
strong customer references, we are particularly optimistic about its
business outlook in 2018. The resources we have invested in past years
on research and development of biometric authentication solutions
should come to full fruition in 2018. With their rich and versatile
features, applications of our biometric authentications solutions go
beyond banking and financial industry for mobile transaction
authentication and authorization. We have deployed our biometric
solution for banks to simplify the KYC (“Know-Your-Customer”) process
required for account opening of their clients. Regarding e-ID as one of
the key Government IT initiatives, we are keeping close eyes on its
progress and would seize opportunity as appropriate to leverage our
domain knowledge and suite of solutions to work with the Government
to extend the use of e-ID for conducting online commercial transactions.
With increased focus on identity management, we are going to rename
this segment to Identify Management (“IDM"”) in the future.

After a couple of years of delays, our Android-based Point-of-Sales
("PoS")/payment solutions have finally been deployed to the market
through our first bank customer before the end of 2017. Building on the
success of this first case, we hope to ramp up our installations in 2018
with our bank customers and partners. We would stay vigilant and
reorient our strategy as appropriate. Since the revenue of this business
will still be insignificant, we shall move it to other services in 2018
rather than in Security Solutions/IDM.
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Prospects (Continued)

To further enhance and enrich our solutions so as to stay competitive in
the market, we acknowledge the need for innovation and creativity in
our solutions. Artificial Intelligence (“Al"”) as a topical subject is not just
a buzzword to us as we have since last year started investing resources
to look into the application of Al on our Commercial Services and
Security Solutions. We have so far identified several useful and
interesting aspects where we could make use of Al to enhance our
solutions providing more benefits and/or conveniences for users. While
we would continue investing in the research and study of such
technology and related applications in 2018, we expect the development
of some of our initial ideas would complete within the year. We are
excited about our suite of Al-enabled Commercial Services and Security
Solutions.

Last but not least, regarding the performance of our investments in PRC
associates in 2018, we are rather confident as since 2017, we no Ionger
need to share the loss of LF/BEMMEEEFLIMEELERA
("U-Link”) and in this case we are largely referring to the Nanfang
business which not only has had a heathy recovery after the settlement
of their previous legal issues, but also has strengthened its momentum
since then.

Dividends

As always we take our shareholders’ interests as our priority. On this
basis, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board of Directors”) has decided to recommend a nearly 100% payout
of the Group’s profit of HK$76.2 million after excluding the deferred tax
charge of DTTNCo at HK$2.1 million for 2017. This means a final
dividend of HK 6.3 cents, which together with the 2017 interim dividend
of HK 3.2 cents, will result in a total dividend of HK 9.5 cents for 2017,
higher than the total dividend for 2016 at HK 8.7 cents by 9%.

“Board” or the

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FHEREE @)

Acknowledgement

Tradelink was established 30 years ago in 1988. As we celebrate our
30th anniversary in 2018, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to
all who have helped us in our journey to this historic moment, including
our shareholders, customers, partners, and last but not least, my fellow
Board members and staff members.

When we were first set up, our objective was to promote the use of
e-Commerce to facilitate Hong Kong's external trade sector. Over the
years, while remained true to this task, we have diversified our business
to other areas beyond the trade sector. In 2017, we have revitalized a
new mission statement: “To empower our clients with business enabled
e-solutions for their commercial and financial activities”. Along this
framework, we have devised a three-pillar strategy to guide the business
direction and activities of the company. Pillar-1 is our GETS business
which is a mature business generating stable and sizeable revenue to
support, amongst other things, new initiatives development. Pillar-2 are
our Commercial Services and Security Solutions business which are
growing business and hopefully growth drivers for the company. Pillar-3
is our new initiatives (in this case would include the Smart PoS business
and the new venture under the Commercial Services segment) for which
revenue might be uncertain and unstable but potentially seeds for future
growth. We shall strive to achieve continuous growth for Pillar-2 and to
invest to learn so as to get return for our Pillar-3. With these three
pillars, we hope we shall sustain a heathy and continuous growth of our
business in the short to medium term.

Finally, before closing, | would like to thank my fellow Board members

for their continued support and all my staff for their hard work in the
past year.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEN R ED T @)

Business Review

E-Commerce — GETS Review

With global economy maintaining a moderate expansion providing
support for our export and coupling with a firm domestic demand, 2017
was a healthy year for the trading and manufacturing sector in Hong
Kong. Benefited from the economic growth, the overall GETS market
grew 1.3% vyear-on-year. With increase in our business volume, our
GETS revenue grew from HK$166.6 million in 2016 to HK$169.1 million
in 2017, a 1.5% surge. Though the competitive environment in 2017
was relatively calm at the run-up to the expiry of the current contract
thus lessening the price pressure from our customers, our GETS price
ceilings in the two extension years (2017 and 2018) under current
contract with the Government have been capped at the 2016 levels. As
such, our overall GETS revenue surge of 1.5% in 2017 year-on-year was
indeed rather encouraging. With more vigorous control over our costs,
our GETS profits climbed up to HK$55.6 million in 2017 compared to
the profit at HK$52.1 million in 2016, a handsome increase of 6.7%.

As we foreshadowed with confidence in our 2017 Interim Report, we
have successfully been awarded the new GETS contract by the
Government from 2019 to 2024, extendable up to three more years till
2027 at the Government's option to allow adequate flexibility for
transition to the SW full implementation (in 3 phases with phase 1
scheduled to launch in mid-2018). According to the announcement of
the Government, besides Tradelink, the other two service providers
awarded the new GETS contracts are the other two incumbent GETS
service providers. With the same three service providers continued in the
GETS market under the new contract, it is expected that the competitive
landscape in the short to medium term would comparatively be more
predictable, instead of a potential disruptive situation whereby new
player(s) had been awarded the GETS contract(s) to enter into the
market anew.

Looking ahead to 2018 as the last year of the current GETS contract, we
expect a relatively stable environment in term of the market competition
and a smooth transition to the new contract commencing 2019 for
reasons explained above. We do not expect significant price pressure
from customers nor major customer defects. Aside from the overall GETS
market which is tied to the Hong Kong's external trade activities and a
factor outside our control, we are confident of the outlook of our GETS
business in 2018.
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For the Government's planned SW implementation, we note that their
current high level timeline for phase 1 launch still stands and major tasks
for phases 2 and 3 including stakeholder engagement, preparation for
legislative changes, funding approval for the SW implementation and the
actual system design and development work are also being pursued as
planned. We shall continue to closely monitor their progress and
participate in their stakeholder engagement process as and when
appropriate so as to enable us to better understand the likely future SW
business environment. Accordingly we can formulate our detailed
strategy to prepare for our future role as a potential VASP in 7 to 10
years' time under SW.

Meanwhile, as always, we shall strive to continue upholding our
premium service quality as a key differentiator from our competitors and
offer value-added services to our customers so as to enhance their
stickiness with us, whether under GETS or in the future under SW. To
our massive GETS customer base in the trading and logistics industry, we
shall continue to identify opportunity to offer our suite of commercial
supply chain e-solutions that could facilitate their business activities and
operations. While keeping close eyes on the Government’s development
of the SW in coming years, we shall go all out to deepen and tighten
our relationships with our GETS customers in terms of offering them
more non-GETS related commercial services and solutions hence
lessening our reliance on GETS revenue from them. Until the SW full
implementation in possibly 10 years’ time, we shall seize all possible
opportunities to enhance our market position to prepare for the future
open SW business environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEN R ED T @)

Business Review (Continued)

E-Commerce — Commercial Services Review

Revenue from Commercial Services at HK$13.6 million in 2017, was
down 12.5% from the revenue recorded in 2016 at HK$15.5 million.
Segment profit also dropped 14.7% from about HK$7 million in 2016 to
about HK$6 million in 2017. Though the team has successfully
concluded some hot cases in the second half of the year as
foreshadowed in the 2017 Interim Report, the segment result for 2017
was somewhat unfavorable. It was partly due to the delay in the
conclusion of a couple of projects with completion date previously
planned to be within 2017 but as the required internal approval process
of the customers concerned took longer than expected, such projects
could not be completed before the end of the year. Also contributing to
the drop in revenue and profit of this business segment in 2017 was
due to the fact that the team has diverted considerable resources to
work on a new community-wide business venture for which development
work has started in the third quarter of the year and would continue in
the first quarter of 2018.

Albeit the apparent disappointing performance of this business segment
in 2017, the team has in fact completed the development of three
brand new products. Together with the new business initiative
mentioned, the team has actually invested in a total of four new
products/services in 2017 to augment our suite of supply-chain
e-solutions enriching the functionalities and scope of our applications.
All the three new products sponsored by customers who are renowned
names in the market have successfully been delivered in 2017. Riding on
the growing e-commerce trend, we have developed and delivered a new
e-shop platform to our customer for capturing online products/services
sales and managing product inventory, price and promotion. As an
extension of the e-shop, we have delivered a retail order management
application sponsored by a renowned local trading and distribution
company. The application functions as a mobile e-shop for placing
orders for products sold at physical shops. Our third new product
developed and delivered last year to a key logistics service provider was
an order fulfillment system that supports online business of their end
customers. The system integrates the logistics service provider's
warehouse management system with their end customers’ own online
shops as well as online sales channels on various e-marketplace for
orders management, fulfillment and inventory replenishment. With the
booming e-commerce and retail market in recent years, we are seizing
the opportunities to promote and sell our suite of supply chain services
and products to retailers and third parties logistics service providers who
offer end-to-end inventory management, warehousing services and
goods delivery for their end customers.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEN RS

WAREHOUSE

As regards the new community-wide business initiative, until after its full
launch with customer patronage and actual business transactions which
we hope to be sometime later in 2018, we shall still be in the
investment phase of the project. As the operation of this new service
might well be seen as a game changer, we are mindful about the actual
market acceptance and usage of this new service despite its apparent
operational benefits and business values to all stakeholders concerned.
The soft launch within the second quarter of 2018 will provide a reality
check of this initiative. We shall closely monitor the market response and
revise or re-orientate our approach or strategy as appropriate.

Looking into 2018, besides the new community-wide initiative for which
we may have certain degree of uncertainty, we are pretty confident of
the outlook of the Commercial Services business segment in 2018. The
completion of the projects delayed from 2017 mentioned earlier is
merely a timing issue as we are quite certain that the delivery of these
projects shall be completed within 2018. As said, riding on the booming
e-commerce growth and coupled with our extended portfolio of
solutions and applications supported by success stories of renowned
customers from a wide variety of industries, the team is building a solid
and healthy sales pipeline with some hot cases with sizeable scale which
we have reasonable confidence of concluding them within 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

ERENW®AED T E)

Business Review (Continued)

E-Commerce — Commercial Services Review (Continued)

For our business growth in a highly competitive supply chain e-solution
market, we acknowledge the importance and need for the continuous
improvement of our products so as to enhance their functionalities,
versatility, effectiveness, and user experience to meet the ongoing
changing market needs. To this end, we have been investing resources
since 2017 to conduct research and studies on the applications of
emerging new technology and innovation on our products where
appropriate. Several new design and application ideas developed will be
further pursued in 2018 with a couple likely to have pilot ready within
the year. Amongst these ideas, one application is to make use of Al to
learn from actual transaction data collected from our Warehouse
Management Systems (“WMS") and Delivery Order Management Systems
deployments in past years to optimize the programming logics for better
decision making, such as improved shelfing/putaway in warehouse,
vehicle scheduling and routing etc. Also riding on the Augmented Reality
("AR") trend, we are studying the use of AR glasses in conjunction with
our WMS replacing bar code scanners so as to simplify user operations
and improve effectiveness of our solution. We are excited with the
progress made so far and shall continue our research and development
work while keeping abreast of any technological and/or market change.

Security Solutions — DigiSign/TESS Review

Continuing the favorable performance in first half of 2017, growth
momentum of our Security Solutions business has further strengthened
in the second half of the year. For 2017, this business segment recorded
an impressive revenue growth of 35% to HK$40.1 million from HK$29.7
million for 2016, and a profit at HK$5.8 million doubling that in 2016.

As stated in our 2017 Interim Report, our security tokens delivery
services performed remarkably well for 2017 due to the increased
demand compared to the previous year from our major bank customer
as well as a new customer since the beginning of 2017. Also
contributing to the surge of the topline of this business segment was
the revenue from a number of biometric authentication projects
completed and delivered before the end of 2017. The time and
resources spent since late 2016 on research and development of our
biometric authentication solutions followed by further rigorous
enhancement of the solutions in the first half of 2017, has come to
fruition in the second half of 2017 as several new orders were
confirmed and delivered before the end of the year. They included
phase 2 of the project for our major bank customer and two sizeable
local banks. Specifically for one of our local bank customers, our
biometric authentication solution was developed and deployed to
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facilitate their KYC process for account opening of their clients. We have
extended the scope of applications of our biometric authentication
solution from its classical use for bank user login and transaction
authorization on mobile device, to being used for simplifying the KYC
process for bank user account opening.

Meanwhile since the issuance of the guidelines from the regulatory
authority requiring licensed or registered entities engaged in online
trading to implement two-factor authentication for clients to login their
online trading accounts starting April 2018, we have an extended
market for our biometric authentication solutions which now includes
securities companies. Indeed we have received a first order from a
renowned securities company before the end of the year; as well as on
hand a number of hot leads from the securities trading industry with
keen interests to adopt our biometric authentication solutions in 2018.
In view of the varying size and scale of operations of a more massive
number of securities trading companies, we are adopting a more flexible
approach for the deployment of our biometric solution supporting
individual on premise installation as well as a subscription based service
model.

Given the solid customer references we have for our biometric
authentication solutions for online banking/security trading as well as
KYC for bank account opening, coupled with the strong demand in the
market for such solutions to combat security risks and comply with the
relevant regulatory requirements, the outlook of our electronic identity
management (“e-IDM"”) business in 2018 is promising. We expect
another year of harvest in 2018 given the solid and healthy sales
pipelines already built up since last year.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

ERENW®AED T E)

Business Review (Continued)

Security Solutions — DigiSign/TESS Review (Continued)
Similar to our Commercial Service products, the Security Solutions team
has also been researching and studying the continuous enhancements of
our suite of e-IDM solutions making use of new technology and
innovation. One of the foci of our research team is to study the use of
Al technology to improve the accuracy of facial recognition of our
biometric authentication solution, with reference to local users’ facial
characteristics. Leveraging on the technological changes and
advancement, the team will carry on their research work and make use
of those technologies as appropriate to develop innovative applications
and/enhancements to our products to improve user experience, service
quality as well as to extend the scope of applications. We have several
new design ideas to enhance our e-IDM products including Al-enabling
our biometric authentication solution which we would continue to work
on in 2018.

Meanwhile we will keep close eyes on the development of the
Government’s Smart City policy initiative, in particular their e-ID project,
and seize any opportunity that may come up for our e-IDM business.
Turning to our mobile PoS (now renamed “Smart PoS” for its smart
capability for supporting business applications running on the device), we
eventually have reached the end of our tunnel as the first end-to-end
payment path supporting major credit cards payment on our Smart PoS
through our first bank customer has been established from merchants to
end customers. Our Smart PoS solution has successfully been deployed to
the first merchant customer of our bank client for pilot use before end
of 2017. After this pilot deployment, the team will work with the bank
to deploy the solutions to other merchant customers who are already
being lined up by the bank. Meanwhile the team will continue the
development work on the second payment path through another bank
customer and explore opportunity to build more new payment paths
through other banks and/or payment gateways so as to allow use of our
solutions by more merchants. Over the course of these years, we have
had a difficult journey with bumpy rides yet in return we have acquired
valuable experience that enable us to understand much better the
dynamic and complexity of the payment market for this business. With
the fast changing technology and market demands, we shall stay vigilant
and take extra caution to review and evaluate our strategy and business
model for this product from time to time.

Regarding positioning of our Smart PoS, barring any drastic changes one
way or the other, we plan to move it out of our Security Solutions
business segment to our Other Services segment in the near future
depending on its actual progress and business outlook. Over times
superseded by events, the nature and focus of our Smart PoS business
has clearly diverted away from those for Security Solutions.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017
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Business Review (Continued)

Other Services Review

Our other services include primarily our GETS-related services such as our
own Road Cargo Service ("ROCARS"), outsourced call centre services for
Customs and Excise Department’'s (“C&ED’s”) ROCARS and paper-to-
electronic conversion services for our GETS paper users. Revenue from
our Other Services in 2017 at HK$19 million dropped slightly by 2.3%
from HK$19.5 million in 2016, but profit for the year was actually up
7.1% year-on-year to HK$11.4 million compared to the 2016 profit at
HK$10.7 million. The profit increase was due to that fact that while on
one hand our costs to provide the other services were largely stable, on
the other hand, we have incurred less cost in 2017 as research and
feasibility studies of some new initiatives which we started in 2016 were
concluded during the year.

For the outsourcing arrangement with C&ED for operating call centre
services for their ROCARS, we are pleased that we have successfully
been awarded a new 3-year contract commencing January 2018
extendable for one more year at C&ED’s option. That part of the
revenue of our Other Services can therefore continue in coming years.
Given our existing Other Services primarily are all GETS-related, we
expect the performance of this business segment continue to be stable
in 2018. That said, should our Smart PoS business be moved to group
under this segment as practical considerations may warrant in 2018, its
performance might be affected and hopefully only slightly.

Investment in PRC Associates Review

As the carrying value of our investment in U-Link has already been fully
written down to zero by end of 2016, as mentioned in our 2017 Interim
Report we no longer have to share their results in 2017. As such the
performance of our PRC associates in 2017 referred only to Nanfang, our
major associate in China. Our total share of result of Nanfang in 2017
was a gain of HK$2.4 million compared to a total share loss of HK$10.6
million from our PRC associates in 2016. Though apparently the Nanfang
performance for 2017 was not that impressive given we have already
recorded a share gain of their result in first half of the year of HK$2.2
million, their business has indeed been undergoing solid growth in the
course of the year with better than expected increase in revenue. Their
result in 2017 was affected by a change of their accounting estimate
made in the second half of the year causing a significant surge of their
costs which they needed to account for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Business Review (Continued)

Investment in PRC Associates Review (Continued)

Though the result of U-Link would not affect our performance, we shall
continue to monitor their development and see if there could be any
breakthrough. We understand that they have started to change their
business model in late 2017 but the result from such a change has yet
to be seen.

Regarding Nanfang, with the growth momentum they have been
building up since 2017 after their settlement of their previous legal
issues, we have confidence in their business prospect in coming years.
Though one of their key challenges is their nation-wide single window
development in China affecting one of their core businesses, they have
been diverting their businesses to other areas and have focused on
winning development projects for Government agencies which they have
had some successes in 2017.

Financial Review

The Group's revenue for the year rose 4.6% or HK$10.5 million from
HK$231.3 million in 2016 to HK$241.8 million in 2017. The GETS
revenue at HK$169.1 million, was higher than the revenue of 2016 at
HK$166.6 million by 1.5% or HK$2.5 million. The increase was benefited
from the overall GETS market growth. The revenue of Commercial
Services dropped HK$1.9 million to HK$13.6 million in 2017 from
HK$15.5 million in 2016. Despite a strong growth recorded for the first
half of 2017, the decline in revenue of Commercial Services in the
second half of the year was mainly due to some project delays by
customers. Revenue of our Security Solutions segment in 2017 grew
35.0% to HK$40.1 million, higher than the revenue in 2016 at HK$29.7
million by HK$10.4 million. We had a high volume of security tokens
delivery for our major bank client during 2017. The increase was also
attributed to the successful deployment of our biometric authentication
solutions to our banking clients in the second half of 2017. The revenue
of Other Services in 2017 at HK$19.0 million was slightly lower by
HK$0.5 million when compared to HK$19.5 million in 2016.

The Group's interest income in 2017 was HK$16.9 million, a drop of
12.9% or HK$2.5 million compared to HK$19.4 million in 2016. The
other net income of HK$1.5 million in 2017 came from the switching of
part of our corporate bonds during the year, lower than the net income
in 2016 at HK$6.4 million by HK$4.9 million due to the high volatility of
bond prices in the anticipation of interest rate increase in the market.
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Financial Review (Continued)

The Group’s operating expenses before depreciation in 2017 was
HK$159.7 million, a year-on-year increase of 0.8% or HK$1.3 million
from HK$158.4 million in 2016. Staff costs increased from HK$103.1
million to HK$105.6 million, up by 2.5% or HK$2.5 million as compared
to last year. The amount of cost of purchases rose HK$4.7 million from
HK$18.6 million in 2016 to HK$23.3 million in 2017. This was due to
the increase in volume and thus costs of security tokens delivered for
our major bank client and the completion of biometric authentication
solutions and other projects of the Security Solutions segment. The other
operating costs at HK$30.9 million incurred this year were lower than
the amount at HK$36.8 million last year by HK$5.9 million. The decrease
was mainly due to our effective cost control coupled with the increase in
foreign exchange gain by HK$2.9 million from the US dollar-
denominated financial assets held during this year compared to that of
2016. Depreciation charges this year amounted to HK$6.3 million,
HK$0.4 million lower than last year.

The Group's profit from operations for the year of 2017 was HK$94.2
million, an increase of HK$2.2 million or 2.4% as compared to 2016.

During the year of 2017, the Group recorded an impairment loss of
HK$8.2 million as a result of decline in the market value of a corporate
bond in our investment in other financial assets held during the year.
Half of that corporate bond was disposed of during the second half of
2017 to lower the exposure.

The share of results in 2017 from PRC associates was a profit of HK$2.4
million as compared to the share of net loss in 2016 at HK$10.6 million.
The swing was HK$13.0 million. Nanfang'’s results improved during 2017
after the settlement of their historical legal case in 2016. There was an
increase in cost due to a change in the estimated useful lives of the
intangible assets at Nanfang in the second half of 2017, thus reducing
our share of profit from this associate by HK$1.3 million. As a result, the
share of profit in 2017 from this associate was just slightly higher than
the profit of HK$2.2 million shared for the 2017 interim period. For
U-Link, our PRC associate operating 4PL business in Shanghai, we no
longer shared its results this year. The loss shared from U-Link in 2016
was HK$7.4 million.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, DTTNCo, recorded a deferred tax credit of
HK$8.9 million during 2016 upon the recognition of deferred tax assets.
As DTTNCo continued to grow in revenue and generate profit, a
deferred tax charge of HK$2.1 million was recognised during 2017. This
is the major reason for the increase in taxation expense by HK$12.1
million year-on-year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Financial Review (Continued)

The Group’s after tax profit for 2017 came to HK$74.1 million, a drop
of 6.5% year-on-year. Ignoring the effect of the deferred tax charge of
HK$2.1 million for 2017 and the deferred tax credit of HK$8.9 million
for 2016, this year’'s profit after tax profit increased to HK$76.2 million,
representing a profit growth of 8.4%.

Basic earnings per share for 2017 were HK 9.3 cents, lower than that
for 2016 at HK 9.9 cents by HK 0.6 cents. Diluted earnings per share
for 2017 were also HK 9.3 cents, lower than that for 2016 at HK 9.9
cents by HK 0.6 cents.

Dividend

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK 6.3 cents per share
for 2017 (2016: HK 6.3 cents per share), which is same as for the year
2016. The proposed final dividend, together with the interim dividend of
HK 3.2 cents per share (2016: HK 2.4 cents per share) paid on 9
October 2017, represents a dividend payout ratio of 99.0% of the
Group's profit excluding the deferred tax charge of HK$2.1 million.

The proposed final dividend will be submitted to shareholders for
approval at the annual general meeting on 11 May 2018. If approved,
the final dividend will be paid to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 17 May 2018, on or about
30 May 2018.

The Board reminds shareholders that the Company’s dividend policy
enunciated at the time of our IPO in 2005 is that it will pay no less
than 60% of its distributable profit as dividend. The fact that the
Company has paid out all of its attributable profit in the past and nearly
100% of its profit before charging the deferred tax charge this year
does not mean that the policy has changed.

Liquidity and Financial Position

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total cash and bank deposits
of HK$84.1 million (2016: HK$44.3 million). The cash increase of
HK$39.8 mainly reflected a drop in our investments in corporate bonds
which were treated as available-for-sale debt securities, from HK$407.1
million as at 31 December 2016 to HK$367.2 million by HK$39.9 million
as at 31 December 2017.
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Liquidity and Financial Position (Continued)

The other financial assets as at 31 December 2017 were fixed income
USD-denominated corporate bonds with no more than US$3 million
nominal value each invested in any single issuer with maturity dates less
than five years. To balance risk and return, all investments in corporate
bonds were made in accordance with the investment guidelines which
had been approved by the Investment Committee comprising three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director of
the Company. The weighted average of the portfolio coupon and yield
were about 4.0% (31 December 2016: 4.9%) and 3.8% (31 December
2016: 4.4%) respectively. As at 31 December 2017, 74% (31 December
2016: 68%) of the total amount was invested in investment grade
corporate bonds. The remaining 26% (31 December 2016: 32%) was
invested in non-investment grade or non-rated corporate bonds. All
corporate bonds held as at 31 December 2017 were tradable in open
market except one corporate bond that has been suspended from
trading since April 2017 due to the financial difficulties encountered by
the issuer. Before any opportunities were identified to acquire new
businesses, the cash surplus were parked in corporate bonds as part of
our treasury operations to improve the yield of the Group’s cash
surpluses.

Total assets and net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$561.9 million (2016: HK$564.6 million) and HK$354.4
million (2016: HK$350.4 million) respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no borrowings (2016: Nil).

Capital and Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the capital and reserves attributable to
shareholders was HK$354.4 million (2016: HK$350.4 million), an increase
of HK$4.0 million from the end of 2016.

Charges on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has obtained two bank guarantees
totaling HK$2.2 million (2016: two bank guarantees of HK$2.2 million)
issued to the Government for the due performance by the Group
pursuant to the terms of the contracts with the Government. The bank
guarantees are secured by a charge over deposits totaling HK$2.2 million
(2016: HK$2.2 million).

Other than the foregoing, the Group did not have any other charges on
its assets.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Capital Commitments

There were no capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December
2017 not provided for in the financial statements. The capital
commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2016 not provided for
amounted to HK$0.5 million, mainly in respect of the purchase of

hardware and software for the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 261 staff (2016: 258), of
which 223 are in Hong Kong and 38 in Guangzhou. The related staff
costs for the year came to HK$105.6 million (2016: HK$103.1 million).

The Group’s remuneration policy is that all employees are rewarded on
the basis of market levels. In addition to salaries, the Group provides
staff benefits including medical insurance and contribution to staff's
mandatory provident fund. To motivate and reward staff, the Group has
various commission, incentive and bonus schemes to drive performance
and growth.

The Company operates two share option schemes to reward the
performance of staff: one for assistant manager grade and above and
the other one for staff at senior vice president grade and above.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates
and Related Hedges

As at 31 December 2017, other than its investments in the PRC
incorporated entities and debt securities denominated in US dollars, the
Group had no foreign exchange exposure and related hedges.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s accounting policies and
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017. It also had independent discussions with the internal auditor and
the external auditor, KPMG, without the presence of the management
team.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EELRRERABR B

Directors

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P., aged 75, was appointed a Director
on 19 September 2000. He is also our Chairman. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from the Imperial College, London, the
United Kingdom and a Doctorate from Brown University, the United
States. He joined Textile Alliance Limited in Hong Kong in 1973 and in
1983, was appointed Managing Director (title changed to Chief
Executive since 2010) of TAL Apparel Limited (“TAL"), which currently
employs over 25,000 employees. Dr. LEE is now the Chairman of TAL.
He was a Director of The Link Management Limited (now known as
“Link Asset Management Limited”) and of Phillips-Van Heusen
Corporation. He has over 40 years' experience in the textile and garment
industry. He is actively involved in a number of trade organizations in
Hong Kong. He was the Chairman of the Innovation & Technology Fund
("Textiles Projects”) Vetting Committee, council member of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and is currently the Honorary Chairman of
the Hong Kong Garment Manufacturer’s Association, Honorary Chairman
of Textile Council of Hong Kong Ltd, board member of Global Apparel,
Footwear & Textile Initiative, Chairman of Hong Kong Research Institute
of Textiles & Apparel Ltd and the Chairman of the Committee of
Overseers of Lee Woo Sing College of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He was named in the Queen’s birthday honours list as an Officer
of the British Empire (“OBE") in 1996. He was appointed a Justice of
Peace (“J.P.”) in 1997 and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star
("S.B.S.") at the Fourth Anniversary of the Establishment of the HKSAR
in 2001.

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Keung, aged 58, was first appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in March 2013 and subsequently
took over the CEO position in July 2015. He is also the Vice Chairman of
the Pan Asian e-Commerce Alliance, a regional trade group for the
e-commerce sector partly founded by Tradelink in 2000.

Before joining the Company, Mr. TSE had worked mostly in the financial
industry covering the Asia Pacific region. He began at State Street in
1993 to develop and lead its investment servicing business in the region
and completed his career there as an advisor till early 2015. Before State
Street, he had worked for Standard Chartered, Ogilvy & Mather, Baring
Securities and the Hong Kong Government.
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Directors (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE has served on many outside committees and boards. He is
currently on the Process Review Panel of the Financial Reporting Council,
the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee, the Investment Committee of
Hopu Fund and Membership sub-committee of the Kowloon Cricket
Club. He also serves on the governing boards of the Global Legal Entity
Identifier Foundation, New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association,
Lawrence University and Lee Woo Sing College of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong.

Mr. TSE received the CW Chu Scholarship to study in the US and
obtained his BA from Lawrence University. He got his MBA from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and also got the Government's
sponsorship to obtain his MPA from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, aged 48, was appointed a Director
and acting DCEO of the Company on 15 November 2011. He was the
DCEO of the Company and re-designated to be the Chief Technology
Officer of the Company (“CTO"”) on 1 January 2017. He is also a
Director of the Company’s various subsidiaries and associates. Mr.
CHENG holds a Master of Commerce degree in Information Systems
from the University of New South Wales, a Master of Engineering
degree from the University of Sydney, a Bachelor of Engineering degree
with Honours in Electrical Engineering from the University of Sydney and
a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Sydney. Mr. CHENG
has over 20 years' experience in IT-related business, covering internet
security, domestic and international supply chain, logistics and finance.
He was a specialist in the consultancy on the setting up of a Public Key
Infrastructure by the Hong Kong Government and is currently a member
of the Advisory Committee on the Code of Practice for Recognized
Certification Authorities of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region as well as a member of the Expert Review Panel of
Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics and Supply Chain Management
Enabling Technologies.

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, aged 61, was appointed a Director on
2 September 2008. She joined the Company in 1992. She is currently
the Chief Operations Officer of the Company and is also a Director of
the Company’s various subsidiaries and associates. Ms. CHUNG
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
degree and a Master of Science degree in Engineering. Prior to joining
the Company, Ms. CHUNG worked in the then Government of Hong
Kong for over 11 years providing management consultancy services to
government bureaux and departments. Since joining the Company in
1992, she has gained over 25 years of solid and diversified experience in
the management of various aspects of e-commerce business in both the
public and private sectors.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EELRRERABR B

Directors (Continued)

Non-executive Directors

Dr. LEE Delman, aged 50, was appointed a Director of the Company on
29 October 2012. Dr. LEE Delman holds a doctorate from the University
of Oxford and a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical & Electronics Engineering
from the Imperial College, London. He is the President and Chief
Technology Officer for TAL Apparel Limited (“TAL"). He is responsible
for driving TAL's long-term strategy in operations, technology and value-
added services to customers. He looks after information technology and
supply chain projects — from IT infrastructure to logistics management
throughout the entire organization. He is the architect behind the
company'’s current enterprise resource planning (ERP) system. He is also
responsible for global operations initiatives such as standardization of
work methods, cultivation of a continuous improvement organization
and corporate social responsibility.

Dr. LEE Delman joined TAL in 2000. He was appointed a member of the
TAL Group’s Executive Committee in 2006 and became President and
Chief Technology Officer in 2010. He has a strong background in
research. Prior to joining TAL, he was a researcher at UK based Sharp
Laboratories of Europe for three years. There, he was responsible for the
commercial application of modern computer vision techniques to stereo
photography and stereoscopic displays. He has worked as a research
fellow at University of Pennsylvania in the US and University of Leeds in
the UK in various aspects of imaging.

Dr. LEE Delman has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director and a member of the Risk Committee commencing from 21
March 2017, a member of the Nomination Committee and member of
the Audit Committee commencing from 1 December 2017 of The Bank
of East Asia, Limited (listed on main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited).

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth, aged 62, was appointed a Director on 26
June 2012. He was a director of the Company during the period from
16 September 1996 to 9 May 2008. Mr. YING retired from COSCO-HIT
Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited (“CHT") as the Managing Director, Asia
Container Terminals Limited as the Executive Director and the Hutchison
Port Holdings Trust (a trust listed on the Singapore Exchange) as an
EXCO member on 30 April 2016. Mr. YING has over 31 vyears’
experience in the finance and logistic sector. Prior to joining CHT, he
had held various executive positions at Hutchison Port Holdings Limited
("HPH").
Terminals Limited and the Finance Director of South China Division of
HPH. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also a fellow member of the Chartered Association of

He was the Executive Director of Hongkong International

Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He was a member of the
Port Development Advisory Group of the HKSAR.
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Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAK Hubert, aged 56, was appointed a Director on 21 October
2002. He is currently Director (Finance) of Link Asset Management
Limited (“Link") (previously known as The Link Management Limited), the
manager of Link Real Estate Investment Trust, which he joined in June
2010 and is responsible for the finance and capital markets functions of
Link. Before joining Link, he was an Executive Director of CSI Properties
Limited. Mr. CHAK held various senior management positions at PCCW
Limited between 1999 and 2007 and was an executive director of Pacific
Century Premium Developments Limited until February 2007. He holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree and a Bachelor of Science
degree in Mechanical Engineering from University of Wales (now known
as Cardiff University).

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay, aged 75, was appointed a Director of the Company
on 1 September 2009. He was the non-executive Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company from 1998 to 2002. Mr. CHAU graduated
from The University of Hong Kong in 1967. He served in the Hong Kong
Government from 1967 to 2002. Between 1988 and 2002, Mr. CHAU
served in a number of principal official positions in the Government,
including Secretary for Trade and Industry, Secretary for Commerce and
Industry, Secretary for Broadcasting, Culture and Sport, and Secretary for
Health and Welfare. Following his departure from the Government, Mr.
CHAU was an independent non-executive director of the Hong Kong
Main Board listed China Life Insurance Company Limited from 2003 to
2009. He has been an independent non-executive director of the Hong
Kong Main Board listed SIM Holdings Limited since 2008; and Wheelock
& Company Limited since 2012. Mr. CHAU was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government in 2002.

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan, aged 56, was appointed a Director of the Company
on 9 February 2015. She has over 30 years of experience in financial
management and planning. Ms. CHAN joined The Dairy Farm Company,
Limited on 16 April 2016 as North Asia Food Finance Director. The Dairy
Farm Company, Limited is a member of Dairy Farm International
Holdings Limited which has a standard listing on the London Stock
Exchange as its primary listing, with secondary listings in Bermuda and
Singapore. Before joining the Dairy Farm Group, Ms. CHAN was CFO,
China Beverage and Senior Region Financial Planning & Analysis Director,
China Region of PepsiCo Inc. in Shanghai. During her employment with
PepsiCo Inc., she had also worked in Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Hong
Kong. PepsiCo Inc. is listed on The New York Stock Exchange. Prior to
joining PepsiCo Inc., Ms. CHAN had worked in Hong Kong for
ExxonMobil Chemical and Nestlé S.A. (listed on SIX Swiss Exchange). Ms.
CHAN graduated from University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1983
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economic and Administrative &
Financial Studies and obtained a Master of Business Administration in
Marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1985.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EELRRERABR B

Directors (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy, aged 68, was appointed a Director on
11 May 2007. He has over 23 years of experience in financial advisory,
taxation and management. He was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers
and retired in June 2005. In October 2005, he joined a professional
consulting firm, Russell Bedford Hong Kong Limited (now known as
Russell Bedford Hong Kong), as Director-Tax & Business Advisory. Mr.
CHUNG is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Taxation Institution of Hong Kong and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"). He was the President of
the Hong Kong branch of ACCA for the year 2005/06. He is currently
also an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of Lee Kee Holdings Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited).

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P., aged 57, was appointed a Director on 13
May 2005. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree from The University of Hong
Kong. Mr. HO is the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Shippers’
Council. He has over 23 years’ experience in the Shipping and Logistics
industry. As he now shapes the thrust of the Shippers’ Council mandate
as the voice of the Hong Kong shippers, he has considerable experience
in aspects of trade and transport of goods. Prior to the Shippers’
Council, he was Deputy Managing Director of Swire Shipping (Agencies)
Limited and Taikoo Maritime Services Ltd, gaining experience in liner
shipping, warehousing and distribution, freight forwarding, container
haulage, mid-stream operations, China feeders, transport and logistics
services. Mr. HO is a member of the Logistics Development Council, the
Logistics Industry Training Advisory Committee, the Town Planning Board
and the Private Columbaria Appeal Board. He is also a member of the
Transport & Shipping Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce and Logistics Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council. He was appointed a member of the Port
Operations Committee and the Dangerous Goods Standing Committee
for several years and Chairman of the Hong Kong Liner Shipping
Association for 1993-1995. He is the current Chairman of Hong Kong
Logistics Management Staff Association, Fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Logistics & Transport in Hong Kong and its Immediate Past President,
Advisor to the China Council for the Promotion of International Trade of
International Trade Guangzhou Sub-Council, and the Shenzhen Ports &
Harbour Association. Mr. HO has been elected as a member of the
Election Committee for the Chief Executive in 2011 and 2016.
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Senior Management

Mr. TSE Kam Keung — Chief Executive Officer

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew — Chief Technology Officer

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily — Chief Operations Officer

Ms. CHU Pik Kwan, Peggie — Chief Financial Officer (with effect
from 1 January 2018)

Mr. TSE, Mr. CHENG and Ms. CHUNG are also directors of the
Company. Their biographical details have already been set out above
under the sub-heading “Directors”.

The biographical details of Ms. CHU are set out as follows:

Ms. CHU Pik Kwan, Peggie, aged 42, is currently the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company which she joined in 2004. Prior to that, Ms.
CHU worked in KPMG for audit services. She holds a Bachelor's degree
in Professional Accountancy and a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Ms. CHU is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has
over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBRES

(1)

(2)

(3)

Compliance with Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code")

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance and the Board believes that good corporate
governance is fundamental to effective and proper management
of the Company in the interests of its stakeholders. It has made
every effort to ensure full compliance with the code provisions in
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Save as disclosed herein, the
Company confirms that it has complied with all code provisions
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-executive
Directors should attend the annual general meeting ("AGM") of
the Company. Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth, one of the Non-
executive Directors of the Company, did not attend the 2017
AGM due to other business engagements overseas.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules to govern its Directors’ dealings in the
Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors
have confirmed compliance with the required standards during
2017.

Risk Management & Internal Controls

The Group is committed to the continuous enhancement of its risk
management framework, capabilities and culture across the Group
to strengthen its ability in achieving its business objectives.
Appropriate risk management activities are embedded into the
business planning, project management, contract management,
business operations and organizational procedures. The Group is
willing to take reasonable and manageable risks in pursuit of its
strategic business objectives. The reasonableness and manageability
vary from business segment to business segment.
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(3) Risk Management & Internal Controls

(Continued)

Once risks, including those which are Environmental, Social and
Governance-related, have been identified, recorded, analysed, and
the agreed treatments have been implemented, an appropriate
monitoring and reporting regime will be established to provide
assurance that the treatment is effective and helps to control the
risk. Appropriate risk treatments are embedded into daily
operations. The risk will be continuously monitored depending on
the subsequent risk rating and the strength of controls to treat
the risks. All staff have the responsibility for the continuous
monitoring of risks and operation of controls within their area of
responsibility. In particular, close attention would be paid to those
risk areas with a strong reliance on internal controls and processes
to bring the risk to an acceptable level.

The Company believes that effective communication and
consultation is essential throughout the risk management process
as it enhances the understanding of risk identification, analysis
and evaluation among process owners and risk management team
in the Group. During the reporting year, individual departments of
the Company at least monthly reviewed and updated their
respective own risk logs. The responsible persons of the
departments updated and reported the risk logs to the Risk
Manager and the responsible executive director (the “Responsible
ED") of the Group on a regular basis. The Responsible ED then
presented the consolidated risk logs to Senior Management for
identification and assessment at management and Group levels.
Senior Management updated the Board on any significant risks
and progress via monthly reports or in Board meetings.

The Board recognizes the need for sound and effective risk
management and internal controls systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board
acknowledges its overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. With the support of
Senior Management and the Audit Committee, the Board
reviewed the effectiveness of the systems which covered different
areas, including without limitation, the financial, operational and
compliance controls in compliance with Code Provisions C.2,
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Such systems were designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the
Group's business objectives, and could only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material mis-statement or loss.

(3)
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(3) Risk Management & Internal Controls

(Continued)

The risk management system framework adopted by the Group
was designed by reference to the principles and process outlined
in the international standard of 1S031000:2009. Appropriate risk
management activities were embedded into business planning,
project management, contract management, business operations
and organisational procedures. The six steps involved in the risk
management process are:

1. Establish the risk context (both external and internal
environments)

Identify the risk

Analyse the risk

Evaluate the risk

Modify the risk (risk treatment)

Monitor and review the risk treatment

o VA WN

Our risk management process and risk management framework
can be represented diagrammatically as follows:

Risk Management Process 1SO31000:2009
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(3) Risk Management & Internal Controls (3) EEIE K R If B2 (1)
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework B B & EHE 48

Evaluate the effectiveness of the risk
management system

FERREERSHRK

Independent Assurance

Oversee the implementation of the risk BRE
management system

EERREERANER

Risk review, assessment, analysis
and reporting

BBESE b 2MAER

Risk identification, recording and monitoring

B BB - RC B

As an on-going process, the Company has assessed its internal KAFRFEANLE The Committee of
control system with reference to The Committee of Sponsoring Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) internal Commission ([ COSO) =T —=F A H &
control framework 2013, specifically in relation to the five EIER FETEANSETRS  FAR
elements of: control environment, risk assessment, control BEVRIRIE - RMRET(E  BEIREE) - BB NE
activities, communication and monitoring. RERIEILE

“E-LFFR EZBEFEZERAA

35



36

O

or

porate Governance Report (Continued)
XERWMEE W)

(3) Risk Management & Internal Controls

(Continued)

To further strengthen the risk management and internal control
systems, the Company’s internal auditor (“Internal Auditor”) has
been designated by Audit Committee to conduct a review and
audit tests to verify the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems in place. A review report was presented to
Audit Committee, which based on the report formed the opinion
on the effectiveness of Tradelink’s risk management and internal
control systems and reported to the Board accordingly. The
external auditors would obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to their audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances though not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control. The external auditors would
communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that they identify during the course of their audit. If
necessary, remedial actions will be taken timely by the Company.

During the year of 2017, Internal Auditor has conducted a review
of Tradelink’s risk management and internal control systems. In
particular, Internal Auditor has conducted the following:

. A gap analysis and evaluation of effectiveness of risk
management system by using 1SO31000:2009 as a basis for
comparison;

° A COSO entity level control gap analysis (‘{COSO Review’) to
ascertain if the Company has established entity level
controls that are consistent with the key concepts of the
control framework recommended by COSO — ‘Internal
Control — Integrated Framework’;

. Audit tests to verify the effectiveness of the Company's
internal controls in place.

The Company also has a whistle-blowing procedure in place to
encourage its staff to raise concerns, in confidence, with the
Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company. During the reporting year, no whistle-
blowing report received.
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(3) Risk Management & Internal Controls

(Continued)

Based on the confirmation from Senior Management, the reviews
from the Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee, the Board
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
are adequate and effective for the reporting year. There were no
significant control failings, weakness or significant areas of
concern identified during 2017.

The Board also considered the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions were
adequate.

The Group handled and disseminated inside information in
compliance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"). The
Board, with the recommendation of Senior Management, would
identify and determine whether certain information needs to be
disclosed as inside information under the Listing Rules and the
SFO. Once certain information has been determined as inside
information, it would be disclosed as soon as practicable by way
of announcements.

The Company has in place separate internal policies for dealing in
the Company’s shares by Directors, general staff and those staff
who are likely to be in constant exposure to inside information.
All employees and Directors are not allowed to deal in the
securities of the Company when they possess unpublished inside
information. Pre-clearance on dealing in the Company’s securities
is mandatory for Directors and those staff who are likely to be in
constant exposure to inside information.

During the reporting period, Directors and relevant employees, as
identified by Senior Management, were notified of the periods
when dealings in the securities of the Company were prohibited.
All inside information was disclosed timely by way of
announcements. Before the disclosure of inside information by
announcements, it was kept confidential and would only be
disclosed to, and handled by, those employees who had a
genuine need to know. Documents containing inside information
are protected by passwords.

In addition, every employee is subject to the Code of Ethics and
Conduct of the Group and is expected to achieve the highest
ethical and professional standards of behavior.
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(4) Board of Directors

()

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2017, the Company is led by a Board
comprising three Executive Directors, three Non-executive
Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, and five
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Independent Non-
executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board
as required by the Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The five
Independent Non-executive Directors have all confirmed in
writing to the Company that they meet the guidelines for
independence in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the
Board are:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Keung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew (Chief Technology Officer)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily (Chief Operations Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Dr. LEE Delman*
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

(* Dr. LEE Delman is a nephew of Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry,
S.B.S., J.P)

The Board oversees the overall management and operations
of the Company. Major responsibilities include determining
the Company’s overall business, financial and technical
strategies, approving
budgets and major supervising the

setting key performance targets,
expenditures,
performance of management with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value. Matters not specifically
reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily operations
of the Company are delegated to Senior Management
under the supervision of respective Directors and the five

committees of the Board.
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(4) Board of Directors (Continued)

()

Board Composition (Continued)
The Company has adopted a board diversity policy and

published the
believes that

same on the Company’s website. The Board
diversity is vital for Board effectiveness.

Selection of Board candidates shall be based on a range of

diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s

business model and specific needs, including but not limited

to gender, age, educational background and work-profile.

The diversity profile of the Board is set out in the following
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(i) Board Composition (Continued) (i) E=Eg4A/k@E

(4) Board of Directors (Continued)

WORK PROFILE
THER

Business and Industry

[EESES1SS

Government

BF

Professional (e.g. legal,
accounting, IT, investment

and asset management)

H5E (k2 g5
BB REREEER)

Others
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The Directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board on EEHehREFELETMEES

the advice of the Remuneration Committee and have
considered their specific duties and responsibilities.

Mr. CHAK Hubert and Mr. CHAU Tak Hay will respectively
have served on the Board as an Independent Non-executive
Directors for more than nine years as they were first
appointed by the Company in 2009. The Board considers
that each of Mr. CHAK and Mr. CHAU is independent
despite their respective long service and nominates each of
them to stand for re-election as an Independent Non-
executive Directors at the forthcoming AGM. Further
appointment for each of them will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. The circular to
shareholders accompanying the resolutions will include the
reasons why the Board believes each of them s still
independent and should be re-elected.

The biographical information of Directors is set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 26 to
30 of this annual report.
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(4) Board of Directors (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Changes of Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Information Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

There have been no changes in the information of Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company since publication of
the 2017 interim report up to this annual report, save and
except that:

(a) Dr. LEE Delman has been appointed as a member of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee of The Bank of East Asia, Limited
(listed on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited) commencing from 1 December
2017.

(b) Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. has been appointed as a
member of the Private Columbaria Appeal Board
from 29 September 2017 to 28 September 2020.

Appointment, Rotational Retirement and
Re-election

There are no service contracts between the Company and
three of its Independent Non-executive Directors namely,
Mr. CHAK Hubert, Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy and Mr.
HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. The term of service for each of the
above Independent Non-executive Directors is the period up
to his retirement by rotation in accordance with Article 100
of the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to
that, one half of the Directors (or, if the number is not a
multiple of two, then the number nearest to but not
greater than one half) retires each year but are eligible for

re-election at each AGM.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer are held by Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S.,
J.P. and Mr. TSE Kam Keung
effective segregation of duties. The Chairman is responsible

respectively to maintain

for overseeing the functioning of the Board and the
strategies of the Group while the Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for managing the Group’s day-to-day

businesses.
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(4) Board of Directors (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)
The Chairman of the Board held a private session with the
Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive
Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors
Conference of the
Company held on 22 September 2017.

immediately after the Directors’

Directors’ Time Commitments

The Directors have confirmed that, during the course of the
year, they devoted adequate time to discharging their duties
as members of the Board and its Committees. The Directors
also confirmed that they had been provided with monthly
updates on the Group’s operations, performance and
business prospects to enable them to discharge their duties.
Additional information, explanation and clarification were
provided by Senior Management in response to questions
raised by them in the course of their reviews of such
materials.
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(4) Board of Directors (Continued)

(vi) Board Meetings and General Meeting
During 2017, four board meetings and an AGM were held.
The attendance of Directors in board meetings and AGM of
the Company is as follows:

B M T
Board meetings 2017 AGM
attended/ attended/
Eligible to attend Eligible to attend
CHE SERERE
BHESEREE —ET—-tF
EEESENH BRERBEXREREH
Chairman and Non-executive Director TEREITES
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SB.S., J.P. ZT)EEL - sBS, )P 4/4 171
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. TSE Kam Keung (Chief Executive Officer) #8858 5% 4 (7T 44 #) 4/4 11
Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew WIS & (B e E)" 3/4 1”1
(Chief Technology Officer)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily BIEEL L (EEHE 4/4 171
(Chief Operations Officer)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Dr. LEE Delman @ FEAE L 3/4 11
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth @ RFXEHAES 4/4 01
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. CHAK Hubert 2os ke 4/4 11
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay FAEERLE 4/4 171
Ms. CHAN Chi Yan @ BRER B 2r +@ 3/4 11
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy BB ELAE 4/4 171
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. (ERVE-T N 4/4 171
Director retired during 2017 TE—tEREES
Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred FTRIERE(HFHEE)D il 1”1
(Chief Financial Officer) ©
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(4) Board of Directors (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Board Meetings and General

(Continued)

Notes:

Meeting

(1) Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew was unable to attend the
board meeting on 28 March 2017 due to sickness.

(2) Dr. LEE Delman was unable to attend the board meeting on
28 November 2017 due to other business engagement.

3) Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth was unable to attend the 2017
AGM due to other business engagement overseas.

(4) Ms. CHAN Chi Yan was unable to attend the board meeting
on 28 November 2017 due to other business engagement
overseas.

(5) Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred retired as an Executive director after
conclusion of the 2017 AGM on 11 May 2017 and retired as
Chief Financial Officer with effect from 1 January 2018.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. In this regard, the Directors
have confirmed that appropriate accounting policies have
been selected and applied consistently and that judgments
and estimates made were prudent and reasonable in light
of the information provided by Senior Management.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017, the accounting
accepted in Hong Kong were adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the applicable laws were complied
with.

principles generally

The Board has prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis and is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
doubt in the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors of the
Group are disclosed in the “Report of the Auditors”.
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(4) Board of Directors (Continued)

(viii) Directors’ and Auditors’ Attendance at the 2017

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

AGM

The Directors’ attendance for 2017 AGM held on 11 May
2017 is shown in the above table under the sub-heading
“Board Meetings and General Meeting”.

The Company’s external auditors, KPMG, also attended the
2017 AGM to confirm the audited financial statements of
the Company and to answer questions from shareholders.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

It is our practice that all newly appointed Directors will have
to attend an induction programme to enhance their
knowledge and understanding of the Group’s business and
operations and their responsibilities and obligations under

the Listing Rules and regulatory requirement.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
arranged a 6-hour in-house conference to brief all Directors
corporate strategy and
developments in directors’ duties and internal control/risk

on business updates, recent
management. All Directors participated in the in-house
conference. In addition, the Company allocated financial
resources to support and encourage the Directors to
participate in continuous professional development training
to refresh and enhance their knowledge and skills to
perform their roles, functions and duties of a director.
Directors have provided their training records to the
Company during the year.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
Officers’ liability insurance to indemnify them for liabilities
in respect of legal actions arising from its day-to-day
business activities. During the year, the insurance coverage
was HK$100 million.

Board Evaluation

The Board recognizes the benefits of regular evaluations of
its performance. During the year, an evaluation covering
Board and Board Committees performance was conducted
by the Corporate Governance Committee with the
assistance of Senior Management. Areas covered included
the overall effectiveness of the Board and its Committees,
attendance, participation and contributions both during and
outside meetings. The conclusion was satisfactory.
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(5) Board Committees (5) EEZEE
The Board has established the following committees: Audit, EEGEKLTNIEER BEREEY
Corporate Governance, Remuneration, Nomination and Investment TEEREE @ FHEZEg BRZ8
Committees. eRKRELZESE

(i) Audit Committee (i)
The Audit Committee currently consists of five Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee oversees the overall financial
reporting process as well as the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal controls. In
addition, it is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board for the appointment, reappointment or removal
of the external auditors. It also reviews and monitors the
external auditors’ independence and objectivity as well as
the effectiveness of the audit process to make sure that it
is in full compliance with applicable standards.

The Audit Committee met twice in 2017. The attendance of
members is as follows:

EREEE
ERZBERBARAREIIERTT
EFEEMK-

ERZREERADANBENT
BE 3R A2 17 A K R F E.IE&W*BWT
EEARBEM - IS BREZES
ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%&~§%ﬁ§&iﬁﬁ9l\ﬂq
REH MEEFSEHERRE &
ZERZEERERTMERINEZEY
BERBUMEE URERERF

BER BUBREZEFZE
By E AR -

T —tHF BERLZEEEHRIM
MAEsH ZEHEENT

28

Audit Committee
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

BiHE/AE®K
Names HEBEREE®
" A BFLNHE
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) EHRE S E(FE) 2/2
Mr. CHAK Hubert 22 JH 58 5 A4 2/2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay B ER A 2/2
Ms. CHAN Chi Yan B%f’%?izzi 2/2
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. Al B4 P 2/2

During 2017, the Audit Committee performed, among
other matters, the following duties:

(a) reviewed the Group's financial statements for 2016,
the draft 2016 annual report, the draft 2016 results
announcement and the proposed 2016 final dividend
and recommended them to the Board for approval,

(b) reviewed the Group's interim financial statements for
the 6 months ended 30 June 2017, the draft 2017
interim report, the draft results announcement for
the 6 months ended 30 June 2017 and the
proposed 2017 interim dividend and recommended
them to the Board for approval;

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017

RIE—+F FEREES KEM
%Iﬁﬂ\\ CEETT R T

(a ?E’f?ﬁ‘i@*“*ﬁiﬁﬂ%iﬁ
R ZE-RFEREHAK
:2*/\¢¥?§Q\%§ﬁ$&
“E-RFRRRBRE I
Ut mEE R R AR
%

(b)y BEHRAEEHEE-_ZT—EFA
A= +EIJJ:/\IHEI’JEPHHE7H%
EE —tFHHPREE
A E&z —Z—+tF XA
ZStRHILEANEAZERAEE S
AR ZFT—tFHIRS K
BrUsitmEREgRHES
DA HE A%



(5) Board Committees (Continued)

()

(i)

Audit Committee (Continued)

(0) reviewed and approved the various audit plans and
audit reports prepared by the Internal Audit
Department of the Company;

(d) reviewed the reports on risk management and internal
control of the Group and to ensure that the risk
internal control

management and systems are

adequate and effective;

(e) reviewed connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions (if any);

(f) reviewed whistle blowing procedure and any reported
incidents;

(9) met with the Internal Auditor independently to discuss
the work of the Internal Audit Department;

(h) reviewed the remuneration of the Internal Auditor;

(i) met with the external auditors, KPMG, independently
to discuss the financial reporting and internal control
issues encountered during the 2016 annual audit;
and

() reviewed the proposed audit fee for 2017 and
recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditors to the Board for consideration and final
approval by shareholders at the AGM.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During 2017, the audit and non-audit fees payable/paid to
KPMG were: an audit fee of HK$0.95 million (2016:
HK$0.93 million) and a non-audit related service fee of
HK$0.09 million (2016: HK$0.07 million). The
represented taxation service fees.

latter

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
Independent Non-executive Directors. The main
responsibilities of the Committee are to ensure and uphold
good corporate governance functions of the Company and

its subsidiaries.

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TtEERABREE (B

(5) Board Committees (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)
During the vyear of 2017, the Corporate Governance
Committee met twice. The attendance of members is as

follows:

(5) i%;ﬁé(mﬁ)

(i) LXEREES(H)
R-FT—LF XERZEEY
BRUIMREH ZEHEXRMT

Corporate Governance
Committee meetings
attended/Eligible to

attend

BHE S&#K

Names HECEEREES
®E BERH
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, limmy (Chairman) EHE S E(FE) 2/2
Mr. CHAK Hubert 2ok A 2/2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay B ER 22
Ms. CHAN Chi Yan ﬁfﬁ@ﬁi 2/2
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. fAISL B A )P 2/2

At the two meetings, the Corporate Governance Committee
reviewed, among other matters, the Group's policies and
practices on corporate governance and the relevant
compliance disclosures in the 2016 Corporate Governance

Report and 2017 Interim Report.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of one Non-executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and Senior Management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The attendance of members is as follows:

Mrg®L CEELLZEES KHE
M?E%'mﬁ$ﬁlm¢%§u
BEEEER_ZT—AELEER
WEM_T— t¢¢ﬂﬁimﬁ?
WIEASHREER -

L\

(i) FHEES
HWESeh —SIIENITEELM

FEIIFFRITEREMK
FHZESAEREERSRER
/\EE’J BB R R ﬁé%’*
RHHEERS -

FR - FHEEGERIT-RGH
ZEHRFEERNAT

Remuneration
Committee meetings
attended/Eligible to

attend

BHESE®K

Names HEFHESS
®A =P8
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay (Chairman) B S (F ) il
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy ﬁﬁ&l?ﬁi 171
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SB.S., J.P. FhEE 4 0 SBS., JP 11
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(5) Board Committees (Continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

e -
TtEERBREE B

(5) EXZEE(A)

(iii) Remuneration Committee (Continued) (i) FMEES (A

At this meeting, the Remuneration Committee performed, hegml FWEse KREMSEE
among other matters, the following: (a) reviewed the ST @BV ESRaME R
remuneration packages of Directors and Senior AEMFHFEYREREZRESS
Management and recommended the same to the Board for HE OEZESERNRNTEER
approval; (b) made recommendation to the Board to grant BEREABRARHEBRE: RO
share options to Executive Directors and eligible grantees; HEECMAFNTES, Bk
and (c) made recommendation to the Board for the HITEEHRBEL -
approval of the service contracts for Non-executive
Directors/Independent non-executive Directors.
Remuneration paid to Executive Directors and Senior MPTESREREEAEXLN
Management = i
Details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors in 2017 RZE—EFEINTHRITEEHD
are set out in Note 9 to the Financial Statements. e B R U
Remuneration paid to Senior Management* in 2017 by RZE—tF MafREBAE*X
band is as follows: EFH BN F AT EHE -

Number of staff

BITA#E

HK$6,000,001-HK$8,000,000 75 #6,000,0017T £ 78 8,000,0007T 1
HK$4,000,001-HK$6,000,000 75 #4,000,0017T £ 78 6,000,0007T —
HK$3,000,001-HK$4,000,000 75 #53,000,0017T £ 78 #4,000,0007T 3

HK$2,000,001-HK$3,000,000

7 #2,000,0017T & & #3,000,0007T

* Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred (the ex-CFO retired on 1 January * TEELEMPBKRER_Z
2018) —NF—A—HEK)

(iv) Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairman of the
Board and two Independent Non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to review the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and
to select suitable candidates for appointment as Directors in
the general meeting. The selection of candidates is based
on the criteria as set out in the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company.

(iv)

—E-LFEFER

REZES
REZEEHEFELIRLMNEE
SIFRITEEAX

REZBENRBARRITEEZEN
RiE - RERAES  BHEBIIFNT
EEMNBEIE TREABEAE N
RERAELBEZERESE - AR
AR ANBEERNH N AR A
BE=egkBZTILERE-

EZRETESEARLA
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEEAWMES )

(5) Board Committees (Continued)

(5) EEZ5g(A)

(iv) Nomination Committee (Continued) (iv) REBZE=E(#H)
During the year, the Nomination Committee held one FAN - REZEGERIT—RAGH
meeting. The attendance of members is as follows: ZEHEEMT :
Nomination
Committee meeting
attended/Eligible to
attend
BHE/S&E%
Names HEREEZSS
% E BELRH
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. (Chairman) (ORVE= NN E YY) il
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy MRS 171
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SBS., J.P. ETyiEH 4 - SB.S., J.P. 11
At the meeting, the Nomination Committee (i) reviewed gEL REZEEORILEZR
and recommended five retiring Directors for re-election by BE_Z—tERRBEFRGHRK
shareholders at the 2017 AGM. Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred REZSANREESZ -FTRES
did not offer himself for re-election due to retirement; and A PR BB RS R>()VEZ
(i) made recommendation to the Board for the approval of EEe R ER T —LtEFRERF
the service contracts for Non-executive Directors/ ARG LEBZEZIENTES B
Independent Non-executive Directors who was re-appointed VIIRTESHORBEEL -
at the 2017 AGM.
(v) Investment Committee v), REZE®
The Investment Committee consists of one Non-executive REZEGH —RIRTESETR=
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. BELIFERITESTHEK -
The duty of the Investment Committee is to oversee the REZEGNBAREBARARN
Company’s investments in financial instruments and the eRMITANKENRERENTE
management’s execution of the investment policy guidelines EEMTREBRKESMNER-
laid down by the Board.
During the year, the Investment Committee convened two FRN REZEECARMAEH
meetings. The attendance of members is as follows: ZEHEENMT :
Investment
Committee meetings
attended/Eligible to
attend
BHEA&EK
Names HEREZE®
®E BERE
Mr. CHAK Hubert (Chairman) 2w 5k () 2/2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay FEER 22
Ms. CHAN Chi Yan REWE LT 2/2
Dr. LEE Delman @ FRIARELO 0/2
50 Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017



(5)

(6)

(7)

Board Committees (Continued)

(v) Investment Committee (Continued)
Note:

(@) Dr. LEE Delman was unable to attend the Investment
Committee meetings on 14 March 2017 and 8 August 2017
both due to prior business commitments overseas.

At the two meetings, the Investment Committee reviewed
the execution of the investment policy by the management,
the portfolio of the Company’s investment and considered
the proposed changes to the investment guidelines. The
Investment Committee also discussed the global economic
and investment outlook and reviewed the investment
strategy.

Company Secretary

Mr. HO Chi Kin Joseph, the Group's Senior Vice President of Legal
& Compliance, is the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. HO
has confirmed that during the year under review he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholder(s) holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
the shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at
general meetings can send a request to the Company to convene
a general meeting pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). The request must state the general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include
the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at the meeting. The request must be
authenticated by the relevant shareholder(s) and sent to the
Company in hard copy form or in electronic form.

(5) EEZEE

Corporate Governance Report (Com‘mued)
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B 5
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orate Governance Report (Continued)
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Shareholders may also put forward proposals at general meetings
in accordance with Sections 580 or 615 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a relevant
right to vote at the general meeting or at least 50 shareholders of
the Company who have a relevant right to vote at the general
meeting may request the Company to circulate statements
regarding resolutions proposed at the general meeting; or request
the Company to circulate resolutions which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the AGM. The requisition
must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) concerned and sent
to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form where, (i)
in the case of a requisition for the circulation of statements
regarding resolutions proposed at a general
requisition must be received by the Company not later than 7
or (ii)
requisition for the circulation of resolutions to be moved at the

meeting, such

days before the general meeting; in the case of a
AGM, the requisition must be received by the Company not later
than six weeks before the relevant AGM or if later, the time

when the notice of the AGM is dispatched.

Pursuant to Article 101 of the Company's Articles of Association,

no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in
writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected shall have been given to the Company in each case,
(being a period of at least seven days)

commencing on the day after dispatch of the notice of general

during the period

meeting at which elections to the office of Director are to be
considered and ending on the day that falls seven days before the
date of the general meeting (both days inclusive). The procedures
for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for election
as a Director are set out in the Corporate Governance Section of
the Company's website.
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(8)

(9)

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company has established Shareholders Communication Policy
and is available under the “Investor Relations” section of the
Company’s website. The Company encourages two-way
communication with its shareholders and Investors to enhance
understanding of the Group’s performance and developments.

During the year, the Company held two forums for its individual
shareholders on 21 April 2017 and 8 September 2017 to brief the
shareholders on the 2016 annual results and 2017 interim results
respectively and the latest corporate developments. The April
session was attended by 25 individual shareholders and September
session by 25 individual shareholders.

The Company arranges meetings for institutional investors,
analysts and media to discuss the Company’s latest developments
with Senior Management. In 2017, the Company held eight
meetings in which Senior Management met with a total of
fourteen institutional investors and analysts. After the
announcements of the 2016 annual results and 2017 interim
results respectively, the Company organized two media luncheons
with a total of 25 financial reporters and journalists to brief them
about the Company’s financial results and business developments.
A media interview was also conducted during the year.

Almost all Board members, including Chairman of the Board and
Chairmen of the respective Board Committees, and Senior
Management of the Company attended the 2017 AGM to answer
questions raised by shareholders.

Constitutional Document

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
("constitutional document”) is available on the Company’s website
and the website of the HKEXnews of the Hong Kong Exchange
and Clearing Limited. There was no amendment to the
constitutional document during 2017.

(8)

(9)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)

HtERE

1B 15

This ESG Report includes our disclosures related to the requirements as
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the "ESG Guide”), Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Listing
Rules”).

About Tradelink

Tradelink is an e-commerce services company and its principal activity is
to provide Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS") for
processing certain official trade-related documents. Leverage on its core
competence, Tradelink has diversified its business in other areas
including electronic commercial services and security solutions, some of
which being operated by the Company’s subsidiaries. The mission of the
Company is to empower its clients with business enabled e-solutions for
their commercial and financial activities.

Scope of the ESG Report

This ESG Report focuses on aspects which have been identified as
material to the Group’s business by the Board and its key stakeholders
namely, its employees, investors and shareholders, customers, suppliers
and the community. As our core business is operated in Hong Kong, the
scope of reporting in this ESG Report covers Tradelink and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017.

ESG Strategy & Reporting

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Board has overall responsibility
for the Company’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Company has been
pursuing its ESG strategy since its adoption by the Board on 29 March
2016. Our ESG strategy is summarized as follows:

Environment

— We are committed to sustainable business practices that help
protect the environment.

— We run our business in a responsible manner and minimize
environmental pollution.

— We implement internal policies to reduce environmental impact and
raise employees’ awareness of the efficient use of resources.

— We support or collaborate with organizations which promote
environmental protection.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE - g REBRSE H)

Social

—  We manage our human resources and maintain our employer-
employee relationship with the employees in strict compliance
with the relevant labor laws.

— We use our reasonably best endeavors to engage suppliers which
are in compliance with their local environment and labor laws.

— We make positive contributions to the community.

Governance

— Tradelink is committed to a high standard of corporate governance
and detailed information in relation to Governance aspect is
shown separately under the heading “Corporate Governance
Report” in the annual report.

The Board will review the ESG strategy and identify areas for
improvements from time to time or when appropriate.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to
evaluate and determine ESG-related risks to ensure that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place.
The Board has also delegated its responsibilities to the Corporate
Governance Committee to review performance and compliance on
corporate governance matters of the Company. Both the Audit
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee would report back to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations for the Board'’s
consideration and approval.

During the vyear, the Board received a confirmation from Senior
Management on the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems on the basis of the risk management and
internal control reports. The same reports have been endorsed by the
Audit Committee.
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Stakeholders’ Engagement

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

The Company values the opinions of its stakeholders and engages them

on a continual basis in order to understand their views, meet or even

exceed their expectations and implement its ESG strategy more smoothly

and successfully. In 2017,
stakeholders’ opinions via various channels:

Stakeholders

the Company collected the following

Concerned matters

RE HEehEARE (#)

RFiENS R

ARAERFOENBEERTHBFERETLHE
UEREENES WEXEZBHNEHRE -
feMmEHIERIDEETARANRE HERE
AR - R_T—tF ARABBZERER
ETIFHNENER

Engagement channels

F0E BINER SHERE
Employees — Employee rights and benefits Staff intranet portal and staff climate
(=] — Training and development survey results sharing session

Investors and shareholders

REELBR

Customers
®P

Suppliers
HrEm

Community

At [

— The work environment
— Work-life balance

— EEEF KRBT

— BIIRER

— TEIREE

— TEBRAEEZHRFE

— Investment returns

— Business performance
— Business strategies

— Corporate governance
— REE R

— EBRR

— ETE RS

— EEAR

— Product/service quality

— Product/service price

— Customer information
confidentiality

— Business ethics

— ER/RBEER

— Em/ RIGER

— BEFENREMN

— EEBEE

— Business ethics and credit
— Fair trade

— Mutually beneficial strategic

alliances
— Environmental protection
— AXBREIER
— RNERG
— EEENBRBH
— BRIERE

— Community development
— Social welfare

— HRERE

— HEEH

BETAMBREIERATHERSZS

Announcements, circulars, annual report,
interim report, annual general meeting,
investor forums and shareholder meetings
RE-BE FHR -PH BRRBFX
g REEWEIBRRERAS

Product/service terms and conditions,
contracts, meetings and training, after-
sales service (customer inquiries or
complaints), customer satisfaction survey
Em/ MEERIREE 64 &K
FHl SRRB(ZEPERMAIRF)  F
BEREERAE

Contracts, meetings, compliance confirmation
from key suppliers
R gF TEHEBSREER

Volunteer work and charitable activities

BIRBLEELY

ESG-related risks were also raised and discussed in the Company's risk

management meetings which were held on a regular basis. Comments
and recommendations were reported back to Senior Management.

BHRE HERERNERITENANRBEH
BTWEAREEZEE LRERTHW YERASR
EEABERERREBRE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE - g REBRSE H)

Materiality Assessment

During the year, the stakeholders’ opinions collected were reviewed and
assessed. Taking into account the reporting principles as set out in the
ESG Reporting Guide, the business nature and principal activity of the
Company, the relevant information under the Social Areas of the ESG
Guide, which is considered to be important to its investors and
stakeholders, would be disclosed in details in this ESG Report.
Information on the relevant policies adopted by the Company and how
such policies comply with the relevant laws and regulations would also
be disclosed.

Given the fact that the Company is an e-commerce services company,
the three aspects under the Environmental Area, namely Emission, Use of
Resources and the Environment and Natural Resources, are not
considered material enough which need to be disclosed in accordance
with the ESG Guide. Nevertheless, the Company understands the
importance of environmental protection and undoubtedly supports it. In
this regard, the Company constantly reminds its staff to protect the
environment and use energy and resources effectively and efficiently by
issuing policies and guidelines on the related subjects. In this ESG
Report, we would voluntarily disclose the policies and practices which
have been adopted by the Company with a view to conserving the
environment.

Environmental

The Company has implemented several environmental policies to protect
the environment. We have been running and will continue to run our
business in a responsible manner and minimize environmental pollution.

The Company takes actions in daily operations to reduce environmental
impact such as using LED lamps, reminding staff of turning off lights
and air-conditioning when not in use or out of office, keeping air-
conditioning at 25°C, posting internal posters on saving water, installing
tap water controllers to limit the water flow and speed to save water
consumption, using e-forms to reduce use of paper and installing
recycling bins for metals, plastics and waste paper collections in office.
Besides, the Company produces corporate stationeries, reports and
souvenirs made by environment-friendly materials, uses recycled papers
and toners, and also adopts green dish in Company Annual Dinner to
raise employees’ awareness of efficient use of resources and
conservation of the environment. The Company is willing to support or
collaborate with organizations which promote environmental protection.
All these policies aim at not only environmental protection but also cost-
saving for the Company.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017

EEMFMA

FR - FONENELRLBRENFGB -EEER
FoHekEABRSHEIMBRERA - AAF
EBHERTERY HREZERFOEIAX
BRERE HEREAMEEIMERBETH
HEAEHN SRRE HEREARETHAR
B o ARPRBMBABRERZERENAEST
BEDED ZOER T &R -

HRARBAR—REFTHERBAR  WHER=
ERFHRECIERY  BREMAUERRERX
RERMEZUESAERARRBERE HERE
AMERESMEHEE - AWM - ARFHARKER
EMBEMN BELIF U ARABHEBA
B RES AT HiRBEEERERFIALE
MERERMER RARE HEREAR
& BMEEBEEARE S ERERRE RN
MIRARBERTH -

B iE

AEBDEHZERERBTORERBE - HME
KERERGEEFRDNAEERBRESLEAERE
AR E MRS -

ARFABBEEBRNTEHAREHRENZ
2 PILAERFALEDRE - 1R EE (R B 72 T /A s Bt B ot
RERBFERARZH  HEFHEBERFNER
25  RELEFAMAB R - TR B RKIEHIRR
BIKRRRE - ABERAKE EHAEFRBEMNU
BRORBAERBAETRBRESE  BHRER
By EUAE  gbAh - AR BRBERFRYBRERF
XA HERER BDRBEREAERRKD
VERRBFREMESERES URSREE
HERBERMRERENES - AR BBAE
ELRROBBAEELF - LASHERKEN
TERRERRFR MBAHEARARRRAE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Environmental (Continued)

The Company also promotes environmental awareness of our employees
and the good use of resources through different programs. During the
reporting period, the Company has mobilized our staff to support Non-
Governmental Organizations (“NGOs") campaigns such as:

— collecting used red packets for recycling by Greeners Action,

— collecting books for recycling in support of the Used Book Recycling
Campaign organized by World Vision Hong Kong,

— collecting usable eyeglasses to the needy organized by The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University,

— collecting mooncakes for the needy and mooncake boxes for
recycling organized by St. James' Settlement,

— donating food/Chinese New Year gifts to the underprivileged in
support of the campaign organized by Food Grace; and

— donating shoes to help the underprivileged in Africa to support a
shoe-recycling program organized by Caritas.

Caring Our Employees

Employment
Employee profiles and turnover rates in 2017 of our operations in Hong
Kong, breakdown by gender and age are shown at table below.

RE HEehEARE (#)
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Number of Overall turnover rate

employee 2017

EBEEAH"™ TE-LFERRAE

Our workforce BT 223 12.11%
Breakdown by gender R R E D

Female i 107 10.28%

Male EEga 116 13.79%
Breakdown by age RERE D

< 25 < 255% 17 35.29%

25-29 255% 2295% 24 25.00%

30-39 305% £395% 57 10.53%

40-49 405% 2495% 95 8.42%

> 50 > 5075% 30 3.33%

The Company manages its human resources and maintains its employer-
employee relationship with the employees in compliance with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485), the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap.
608) and the different legislations against discrimination.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Caring Our Employees (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

To the Company, employees are valuable assets. The Company provides
equal employment opportunity and competitive remuneration packages
to attract and retain employees. The Company has issued and would
continue to review and update policies and guidelines relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare.

The Company offers employee benefits better than the requirements of
Employment Ordinance like fully-paid sick leave, maternity leave and
paternity leave, and provides birthday leave, marriage leave,
compassionate leave, examination leave, voluntary service leave, medical
insurance and ex-gratia payment to retiring employees. The Company has
employed disabled employees and provided them with disability-friendly
working environment. The Company has adopted a lactation policy and
provided a lactation room to support breastfeeding mothers as part of
the Company’s family-friendly policies and benefits. In addition, during
the reporting period the Company has encouraged staff to have
healthier diets and provided fresh fruits for their consumption every
Mondays.

In order to promote work-life balance, the Company provides flexible
working hours to employees, makes part-time job arrangement for
working parents, and the Tradelink Staff Club has organized different
leisure activities for employees and their family members during
weekends and holidays. The Company has also designated a room to be
the common room for holding staff social activities.

Development and Training

The Company has policy on training subsidy. The Company supports
employees to attend external, job-related training courses and seminars
to improve their knowledge and skills for discharging their duties at
work and enhance their career progression. Moreover, the Company
provides training subsidy to staff for payment of course fees and
examination fees for job-related courses or qualifications. During the
year, the Company has organized in-house training and workshops on
job-related subjects, like positive influence skills and talks on MPF
updates.

Labour Standards

The Company abides by the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) and its
regulations and have not employed any child and forced labour.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Caring Our Employees (Continued)

Health and Safety

The Company provides a safe and healthy working environment and
protected employees from occupational hazards in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, including without limitation the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) (“OSHO") and the
regulations under the OSHO.

During the year, the Company has cleaned the air duct of its registered
office in Hong Kong. For sanitation and hygiene reasons, toilet seat
sanitizers have been installed in toilet rooms. From time to time, the
Company provides occupational health and safety information to its
employees so as to raise their awareness on workplace safety. During the
year, the Company has also invited a doctor to deliver health talk to
employees.

The Company always puts office safety as their top priority. The
Company would do its utmost to minimize the risk of fire in office. In
accordance with fire regulations, all Tradelink offices have been installed
with fire sprinklers and fire extinguishers, which are checked annually by
qualified persons. In order to increase the staff's safety awareness, fire
drill was conducted, during the year, to show the location of fire exits
and the way to the exit in case of a fire.

Anti-corruption

The Company has zero tolerance to corruption. As a matter of fact, the
Company is deemed a “public body” under the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) to reflect the nature of the GETS services and the
Company’s market position as a major service provider with a licence
granted by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “"Government”) in running important public functions. In this
regard, Senior Management and directors of the Company who will likely
be regarded as “public officials” for the purpose of the common law
offence, have been advised on their various liabilities under the common
law offence on “misconduct in public office”.
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Caring Our Employees (Continued)

Anti-corruption (Continued)

For employees in general, in order to comply with Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) and other relevant anti-corruption laws and
regulations, the Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Conduct
(the “Code”) which is applicable to all employees of the Group. The
Code which is subject to the review and comment by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC"), provides the details about the
liabilities as employees of a public body. All employees are required to
read the Code and understand and observe them both in letter and in
spirit at all times. They must observe the prescribed standards of
behavior when performing duties at work. The Code addresses, inter
alia, the following key areas:

— Proprietary and Confidential Information
— Conflict of Interest

— Prevention of Bribery

— Gifts, Gratuities, Hospitality

— Notification of Suspected Corrupt Conduct
— Personal and Private Dealings

To provide education to employees on anti-corruption, the Company
invites ICAC to conduct anti-corruption talk to the employees every year.

Moreover, the Company has whistle-blowing procedures to encourage
staff to report, on a confidential basis, any misconduct, dishonesty,
corruption, illegal activity or wrongdoing within the Company which they
become aware of to the Vice President (Internal Audit), who is the
delegate of the Audit Committee. If the whistle-blower believes that the
Vice President (Internal Audit) has a conflict of interest in the matter, the
report can be made directly to the CEO. Likewise, if it is believed that
the CEO has a conflict of interest in the matter, the report may be made
directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee or the Chairman of the
Board. No such report was received during the reporting period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Our Partners and Customers

Supply Chain Management

The Company values mutually beneficial long standing relationships with
the suppliers and customers by providing high quality services to
customers and developing mutual trust with suppliers.

In the Company’s procurement policy, it is specifically stated that the
Company would use its reasonably best endeavors to select and engage
suppliers which are in compliance with their local environmental and
labor laws. Moreover, the Company requests its key suppliers to provide
written compliance confirmations confirming, inter alia, that they are in
compliance with their local environmental laws and regulations and they
will run their businesses in a responsible manner and minimize
environmental pollution.

Product Responsibility

The Company provides hotline service, on-site technical support and
training for customers who use our services and products. The Company
also pledges to continuously improve its service and products through
enhancements and upgrades with an aim to deliver the best possible
reliable and quality solutions to our customers. The Company does the
best to meet the set service targets and strives to achieve high standard
in different aspects of its operations.

Tradelink observes the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) (the
“PDPO"”) and the data collection principles under the PDPO in
conducting its business. The Company educates and requires its staff to
handle personal data of its customers carefully and properly. Access to
the personal data of the customers is limited to those employees who
have a genuine need to access to such personal data in order to
perform the services to the customers. The Company will only process
the personal data of its customers to the extent, and in such a manner,
as is necessary for the purposes of provision of its services and in
accordance with the customers’ instructions and will not process the
personal data for any other purposes. The Company will not disclose the
personal data of its customers to other third parties without the consent
of its customers. The Company stipulates clearly its obligations in this
regard in its terms and conditions of services offered to customers.
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Our Partners and Customers (Continued)

Innovative Services/Products

Emphasis on our IT Staff Training

As an E-commerce services company, we accord special attention
to our IT staff. We encourage and support continuous
enhancement of their professional skill and domain knowledge of
our IT staff so as to enable them to fully embrace new challenges
from leading-edge technology and maximize the usage of new
technology to improve our products and solutions. Our IT staff
members attended relevant courses to ensure their IT knowledge
are up-to-date with the latest industry standards. Owing to
clients’ changing needs and latest technology development trend,
our IT staff members also attended specialized courses and
acquired relevant qualifications so as to equip themselves with the
skills to cope with the latest market and technology development.
With the technical competency acquired in relation to cloud usage
and big data, our teams have successfully improved user
experience of our cloud services and provided comprehensive data
analysis for our clients to help them increase their business
efficiency.

Improve our solutions with application of artificial
intelligence (Al)

Tradelink’s team always strive for continuous improvement of our
service quality, in terms of services effectiveness and user
experience. Through ongoing R&D and with customer feedback,
our teams have extendedly improved our solution capabilities. In
particular, we have been investing resources to conduct R&D on
applying Al technology to improve and enhance our commercial
solutions and security solutions. Using Al to sort and analyze
relevant data, we aim to enhance our warehouse management
system to help operators speed up the warehouse operations.
Through optimizing the goods location through Al-assisted
instructions, warehouse operators can reduce the goods pickup
time and save the manpower for moving goods, and enhance the
efficiency of whole warehouse management process. At the same
time, we are also working on applying Al technologies into our
biometric authentication solutions to enhance the accuracy of
facial recognition. These are a couple of examples that
demonstrate our work on applying new technologies to improve
our performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Our Partners and Customers (Continued)

Innovative Services/Products (Continued)

. Strive for Excellence
With the ever-changing technology, especially in the industry
where we live, we need to closely follow the market trends and
apply the new technologies effectively to upgrade our products
and solutions. This is also the value we continuously uphold.
Tradelink is able to gain the respect, trust and support from
industries and customers due to our team’s effort to strive for
innovation and provide the best services and solutions to our
clients as always.

Our Community

Caring our Community

The Company is committed to improving the community well-being and
social services. We devoted our resources and effort to contribute to our
community in different areas and also seize the opportunities to help
people to help themselves. During the reporting period, the Company
worked closely with a number of local NGOs and community groups to
provide support on their charitable and community works. Benefited
from participating in the work with these organizations and groups, our
staff members also enhance their awareness in caring the society and
understand how to facilitate the needy through various channels.

The Company encourages staff members to participate in different
voluntary works to contribute to the society. Apart from helping NGOs
to publicize voluntary services and recruit workers, the Company
provides flexibility to staff in participating in those voluntary works
during office hours. We encourage staff members as well as their family
members and friends to take part in those voluntary works to extend the
participation so as to benefit more people in the community in need of
support. The Company has implemented a voluntary service leave policy
under which an employee can take up to 2 days’ full paid leave in a
year for participation in service of a charitable nature. During the
reporting period, over 14 days of voluntary service leave were taken by
our employees in total.

. Voluntary work for sale of Oxfam Rice and “Run for Girls"
charity run
Tradelink organized a volunteer team to participate in the Oxfam
Rice Event 2017 in May 2017. We encouraged our employees and
their family members to manage rice stall and support the charity
sale of Oxfam Rice. Thanks for the active participation of our
team, we were honored to receive the second runner-up in
fundraiser (corporate volunteer team) award for this event.

RE HekEEARE(H)

BHREEF (&)

AR E ()

. NB=EH
MERFAR BRMAKCEMAENTEL
Rt #PBZEHETEBE  ERER
MMEC RAERRBRTE WA BH
M—BERFHEE- - BRSFETEH B
oREPRHURERBESR BES
BRETEREPEE FERXHF-

Tt &

BELHE
ARBHENBE L SRBU R GRS - RIVRK
EREMNESNREENTEEBELER I
MERSHHARFEE - RBREHPAN - RNAFH
ZEAMIBTRBLEEEEETAE B
ENRERMETEREXE ZER2EBESE
BELEENTE BETEOHEROEBRSGARE
BLTHRNEERSERERNATEA LM
BF -

ARAREEE2ESEZB TENERMLSE -
BB EBRARREEERTREMRBER I
ARBHETETEELE R TIERREZ2EZ
EXBIE-BRMNAEHETIEFRHAF2HER
EXBTHEURS2HEE BHELEZEF
ALRE -ARARAEHEZLIRBRIABE &
HEESFEEEMRANIFRE  U2EK
R% - R|MEHAN - HMAEELEREBTEOX
BEIRBRE-

o o M

. BREYLBRRINEB - ZZIBH! JRZER
BEBKITHE
R-E—+tFRA BEHBAEAEETE
o 2HEEHRKBZREATE - HMEBRE
BRAFRANEREREL T HEEE
MoK e 2REEBKIEHR 2 E - RAIKELE
HEBE(RASZIEK) ZEHHRE -

“ELFFER EZBEFEZERAA

65



66

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Our Community (Continued)

Caring our Community (Continued)

Voluntary work for sale of Oxfam Rice and “Run for Girls”
charity run (Continued)

On 9 April 2017, our voluntary team also provided assistance at
the carnival booth at “Run for Girls” charity run organized by the
Plan International Hong Kong and Cosmopolitan with the aim of
fighting for girls’ rights and justice and protecting girls in
developing countries from discrimination and violence.

Parenting Skills Sharing session for staff and Support Plan
International

A parenting sharing session by a celebrity director was held in the
Tradelink Office in January 2017. As agreed with the speaker,
Tradelink donated his fee to Plan International Hong Kong, a
charity which advances children’s rights and girls’ equity. The
representative from Plan International also attended the talk and
shared her charity work with our colleagues. This talk not only
provided practical parenting advice to our staff members’ but also
aroused our awareness of empowering children’s rights and
equality for girls.

Participation in the Business-School Partnership Program with
Raimondi College

We joined the Business-School Partnership Program organized by
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce in 2017. The
program provides a platform for communication among students,
teachers and businesses with the aim of helping students to gain
more understanding of the commercial world. First time
participating in the program, Tradelink was assigned to partner
with Raimondi College and in March 2017, our CEO delivered a
talk to the Raimondi students sharing his past experience and
advice to young people. More than two hundred students
participated in the sharing session.

Art Jamming Workshop & Purchase of Drawings from Charity
for 2018 Corporate Calendar

2017 was the second year that Tradelink invited ADAM, a social
enterprise set up by the Arts with the Disabled Association Hong
Kong, to organize an Art Jamming Workshop for our staff. ADAM
is an artist agency which aims to create job opportunities and
increase income for artists with disabilities in Hong Kong. At the
workshop, the artist from ADAM shared her experience in creating
beautiful art pieces without being bounded by her limitation. She
also provided professional guidance to our staff in their drawings
with the theme of footprint. Drawings of the artist we purchased
and our staff drawings made at the workshop were used for our
2018 Corporate Calendar.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Our Community (Continued)

Caring our Community (Continued)

3 Taking every small step to contribute to different social
enterprises
Tradelink seizes various opportunities to purchase products and
services provided by non-profit making organizations. We ordered
catering services provided by New Life Restaurant under New Life
Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association for company activities, Oxfam
Fairtrade Hampers as Christmas gifts for customers and iBakery's
cookies which were made by disabled employees for our media
function. Tradelink always believes in taking these small steps to
help people so as to help themselves and at the same time
introduces their products to the recipients.

Charity Donation

The Company promotes contribution to the community not only from
within the organization but also from our customers. Under our
customer loyalty program, customers can use their bonus points to make
charity donations to charitable organizations such as the Hong Kong
PHAB Association and Oxfam Hong Kong. Many a little makes a mickle,
the program accepts small donations and during the reporting period,
we had more than 350 customers donating their bonus points to these
two charitable organizations. Also for our seasonal offer for Dragon Boat
Festival, we made arrangement for customers using their bonus points to
redeem rice dumplings with donations at the same time made to
charitable organizations.

The Company believes all these would create an atmosphere that raises
our employees’ concern for the community and also inspires more people
to take part in serving the community.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Our Community (Continued) HE (&)
Community Recognition HERT

During the reporting period, the Company was pleased to receive the RIBEHR  ARFNZEH S HBEN TIEHES
following rewards that recognized work of the Company in various A @ W T 5418 -
social aspects.

Award: Organizer:

#15 EWEM:

Award for Family-Friendly Employers to Tradelink Family Council and Home Affairs Bureau
RERERE —EB5B FEZEMEBELR

Award for Breastfeeding Support to Tradelink Family Council and Home Affairs Bureau
TREIAREE — 258 XEZERRBEBR

Good MPF Employer Award for the year 2016/17 to Tradelink  Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
and Digi-Sign BEMELAERFEERER
[15 % of 1B £2016/17] — E 5 3@ Kk Digi-Sign

Support for MPF Management Award 2016/2017 Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
2016/201 74 B 15 & & 12 42 BEIMRELTEERR
Caring Company Logo 2016-17 to Tradelink and Digi-Sign Hong Kong Council of Social Service
2016-17F E[E R R E 175 — B 5 8 &Digi-Sign ERMERBES
List of Barrier-free Companies 2016-19 to Tradelink Hong Kong Council of Social Service
2016-19F EMEHRELELE ERMERBES
Happy Company Label (2015-2017) to Tradelink and The Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and the Hong
Digi-Sign Kong Productivity Council
[0 7 2£(2015-2017) | R 76 — & 5 8 & Digi-Sign ERRARGLEURESREBLEENRER
“Green Office” label and “Eco-Healthy Workplace” label in World Green Organisation
Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme (GOALS) 2017 R e EE
201748 & 3 X = SR A1 BI(GOALS) M [ 47 & F A = |12 5%
(2R T1EM]
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Directors’ Report
EEEREE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 11th and
12th Floors, Tower B, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of Government
Electronic Trading Services (“GETS") for processing certain official trade-
related documents. Leveraging on its core competence, the Company has
diversified its business into other areas including electronic commercial
services and security solutions, some of which being operated by the
Company's subsidiaries.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out on Note 715 to the “Notes to the Financial
Statements”.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion
on the Group’s future business development and possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and these sections form part of this Directors’ Report.

The Group's financial risks are shown in Note 26 to the sections headed
“Notes to the Financial Statements”.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators can be found throughout this Annual Report.

The Board believes that a strict compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations is pivotal to the success of the Company. For this purpose,
the Board has delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Corporate Governance Committee and Senior Management to monitor
and implement the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
the legal and regulatory requirements that have a significant impact on
the Company.
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Business Review (Continued)

As an entity incorporated and listed in Hong Kong, the Company is
governed, managed and operated pursuant to the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on the corporate level. The Board has adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, and its
committees have their own terms of reference defining their respective
rights, duties and obligations. Besides, the Company is deemed to be a
“public body” under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) to
reflect the nature of the GETS services and the Company’s market
position as a major service provider granted a licence by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“Government”) in running important public functions. The Company has
also acted in strict compliance with the Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485), the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) and the different legislation
against discrimination.

On the operational level, the various businesses of the Group are
conducted in accordance with, among others, the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619), the Unsolicited Electronic Messages Ordinance
(Cap. 593), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) and the
Electronic Transactions Ordinance (Cap. 553). The member companies of
the Group have registered their trademarks and domain names to
protect their intellectual property rights, which are considered crucial to
their businesses. In particular, the Company conducts its core business of
providing the GETS services to the industrial and trading sectors in
conformity with the Import and Export Ordinance (Cap. 60) and the
GETS Contract signed with the Government in addition to the above-
mentioned ordinances.

For the Group’s environmental policies and performance and the key
relationships with its employees, customers, suppliers and community,
the discussions are shown in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (“ESG Report”) and the ESG Report forms part of this Directors’
Report.

Important event after the reporting period

The Government has accepted its tender for the provision of GETS
services for a period of 6 years commencing on 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2024 which may be extended by the Government at its sole
discretion for a further period or further periods of up to thirty six (36)
months.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017

EBESR (A

ER—REZTBEMARLE ETHRF - ARF
EEXRE®E LEREERBED F6228(R 7 &
Py~ BEEPIESNE(EF RBPBHIDEEE
BEXZMERARERLMRUER BER
BE -BEEECLHMLTETAZERTETESFR
SMRETR - MEZBG NSNS @B
REME - A EHERN  BEREE - B
RIBEEBIEG F201 2 LI EG) - AR A
WRBIAHEE] URRGETSRFIEE KA R
AEREREEFITHRERA (B REEZ
BEEQHARBEMRBNTIERBHEBO TS M
iz o KRB IR RS & ST B BE P E57RE B 1F
PI) ~ & B OE Bl £485F (58 H 1 R 1 & & B &
Py~ BB LD Fe08E(HIE T E KD KA B
BH) A RDEB -

EEEEE L ARBEZEEBREFTBEMNE
BI9ECGHRFIEN) - BABIEDIES3ECERAE
FAEMED) - FRADIB486EEAE # (FLER)
GO R EFBEDESSBE(ETF R KK E -
REBEHKERQFDEMHEREEARESEE
EBEENNBER - EBM = - B LG
SN RAB IR E B A DI F60E G D EH)D
NMEBFETNGETSE KRR LER  mT
ENESITERMGETSR -

AEERTREMEZBAALERE TP #E
BRHtENTIEEERHERNER HeREARSE
(RE -HEekEeWmS]) MRR HLERE

AREBKAEEGHREEN &0 -

BEHRCEEZESH

BREENAARZIZEENREBNTE SRS -
BT hNhF-—A—HE-_Z-_WNF+=-A
=+—H8 AH6F BN 2EMBREU—E
RZBHEE—FEREREZ=+/C6)EA -



Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
financial year is as follows:

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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TEFFRHEES

RAMBRFEIZREPRHEREDREBEAEE
MEERLRBEEMDT

Percentage of the Group’s Total

EEAEERAENTE A
Sales Purchases
SHEH R
The largest customer ISUNESS 7.6%
Five largest customers in aggregate A AZRF & & 13.4%
The largest supplier BARMHER 6.9%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate REEE A 15.4%

Of the five largest customers, three are banks, one is a major German-
based mail order house, and one is a Government department. As at
end of 2017, their length of relationship with the Company ranges from
2 years to 15 years.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers or suppliers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 94 to 178.

Recommended Dividend

An interim dividend of HK 3.2 cents per share (2016: interim dividend of
HK 2.4 cents per share) was paid on 9 October 2017.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK 6.3 cents per share (2016: final dividend of HK 6.3 cents per share)
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The proposed dividend is
expected to be paid on or about 30 May 2018 to qualified shareholders
subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out
in Note 14 to the “Notes to the Financial Statements”.
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Share Capital

Shares were issued during the year on exercise of the share options.
Details of the issue of shares and the movements in share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 25 to the “Notes to the

Financial Statements”.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the financial year 2017 and up to
the date of this report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Keung

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred (retired after the conclusion of the annual
general meeting on 11 May 2017)

Non-executive Directors
Dr. LEE Delman
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company at the date of this
report are shown on pages 26 to 30.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each AGM one half of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of two, then the number nearest to but
not greater than one half) shall retire from office. Ms. CHUNG Shun
Kwan, Emily, Mr. CHAK Hubert, Mr. CHAU Tak Hay, Mr. CHUNG Wai
Kwok, Jimmy and Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. will retire at the
forthcoming AGM. All retiring Directors, being eligible, will
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

offer

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017

[N
4 o SE IR AR B I 1T 0 T R ATARID » AR AR P

RS 1 B8 1T R R 7 B B R 1B Bk A [ B 7% S R B A
B Hf 525 -

S

REFBRFEARBERRE
REEESWT

ETERHANARR

IERFEHTES
EZThEE+ 0 SBS, JP.

HITES

55 58 55 £

BEREE

s IRAE 22+

FEREEER -_FE—tFAA+ —HETH
BRE Efﬁﬁ?%ﬁfﬁff R

FHTES
FREAEL
RFXEE

BYFHITES

22 358 bt A
EEER A

E% lﬁi

Tﬂi%%i )P

)‘5’\7T'<$ﬁ¢ T2 A MAEENHARRESHREER
BE N F26E EF308 °

BREARFZABERMAE100%  REKER
BFARgL BEREFNFH(IAMWESHEL
BB RARREESNZNYEZER)A
WESR -FEIEFHZL BHELL  BAERL
£ ERBEEERFNIEEE JPHERES
R-MIAREEFHTAERLBENR IS ETT
BRERBEF RS LEBEE-



Directors (Continued)

The Directors of subsidiaries during the financial year 2017 and up to
the date of this report were:

Mr. TSE Kam Keung

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred (retired on 1 January 2018)

Ms. CHU Pik Kwan, Peggie (appointed on 1 January 2018)

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, subject to the
statutes, every Director of the Company shall be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which Director may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of the Director’s
office or otherwise in relation thereto. Such permitted indemnity
provision is in force at any time in the financial year and at the time of
approval of this report.

Director’'s Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Dr. LEE Delman was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 29
October 2012 and is the President and Chief Technology Officer for TAL
Apparel Limited and accordingly may be regarded as interested in all
contracts and other dealings between TAL Apparel Limited and members
of the Group during the year under review.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract, transactions or arrangements of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party or
were parties, in which a Director of the Company or any entities
connected with the Director had a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Directors’ Service Contracts (Continued)

Details of three Executive Directors’ employment contracts and five Non-
executive/Independent Non-executive Directors’ service contracts are set
out below.

Mr. TSE Kam Keung signed a contract to act as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company with effect from 1 July 2015, for a three-year
term until 30 June 2018, subject to a 3-month written notice to
terminate the contract by either the Company or Mr. TSE.

Under the employment contract of 30 August 2004 signed between the
Company and Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, the contract can be
terminated by the Company or Mr. CHENG by giving one month’s notice
or payment in lieu of notice. On 15 November 2011, Mr. CHENG was
appointed as Acting Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and on 26 June 2012, he became the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. In line with the business developments of the Company,
he was re-designated as the Chief Technology Officer of the Company
on 1 January 2017.

Under the employment contract between the Company and Ms. CHUNG
Shun Kwan, Emily dated 20 March 2008, Ms. CHUNG acts as the Chief
Operations Officer of the Company. The contract can be terminated by
the Company or Ms. CHUNG by giving one month’s notice or payment
in lieu of notice. Since Ms. CHUNG reached retirement age at her 60,
her employment contract was extended on 14 July 2016 and 17 July
2017 respectively, each for a 1-year period.

In the 2017 AGM, the Company entered into service contracts with
three Non-executive Directors namely, Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S.,
J.P., Dr. LEE Delman, Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth and two Independent
Non-executive Directors Mr. CHAU Tak Hay and Ms. CHAN Chi Yan,
each for a period of three years. The service contract can be terminated
by the Company or the Director by giving one month’s notice in writing
or payment in lieu of notice. The five Directors abovementioned shall
retire by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules or at such time as may be required by
resolution of the Board of the Company.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
As at 31 December 2017, Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P., a Non-
executive Director, had a deemed interest in 101,125,000 shares of the
Company through his indirect shareholding in TAL Apparel Limited and
95,673,000 shares in the Company through his direct shareholding in
Eastex (HK) Limited respectively. Dr. LEE Delman, a Non-executive
Director, had a deemed interest in 101,125,000 shares of the Company
through his indirect shareholding in TAL Apparel Limited. The deemed
interests 101,125,000 shares of the Company held by Dr. LEE Nai Shee,
Harry, S.B.S., J.P. and Dr. LEE Delman were the same shares held by TAL
Apparel Limited. Mr. TSE Kam Keung, Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew
and Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, Executive Directors of the Company,
held 4,070,000, 2,755,843 and 2,994,605 ordinary shares of the
Company registered in their own names respectively as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO").

The Directors of the Company are entitled to options under the share
option schemes of the Company, details of which are set out in the
section “Share Option Schemes” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interest or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, any of its holding company, subsidiaries or other associated
corporations, as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies.

Share Option Schemes

The Company currently has two share options schemes in operation, the
first one was adopted on 14 October 2005 (the “Share Option Scheme
2005") and the second one was adopted on 9 May 2014 (the “Share
Option Scheme 2014").
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Share Option Scheme 2005

Under the Share Option Scheme 2005, the Board has the absolute
discretion to offer any employees (whether full-time or part-time),
directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors), consultants,
business associates or advisers of the Company or any company within
the Group options to subscribe for shares, provided that the total
number of shares issued or to be issued to any one grantee in any 12
month period does not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue. The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal
consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the offer of an option.
Each option has a 10-year exercise period. Commencing from the first,
second and third anniversaries of the grant of the options, the relevant
grantee may exercise up to 25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the
share options (less any number of shares in respect of which the options
have been previously exercised).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme 2005 is to assist the Company
to attract and retain the best available personnel and to provide
additional incentives to employees, directors, consultants, business
associates and advisers to promote the success of the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme 2005 shall not
exceed in aggregate 10% of the issued capital of the Company at its
adoption date, being 77,763,250 ordinary shares (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”). Options that have lapsed shall not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit. The Scheme Mandate Limit
may be renewed by obtaining approval of shareholders in general
meetings of the Company provided that such total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme 2005 under the Scheme Mandate Limit as
renewed shall not exceed 10% of the shares issued at the date of
approval of such limit (the “Refreshed Limit”). Options previously
granted (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised)
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Refreshed Limit.

The subscription amount payable in respect of each share option upon
exercise of an option is determined by the Board and may not be less
than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK's daily quotation sheet
on the date, which must be a business day, of a written offer of
such option (the “Date of Grant”);

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in

the SEHK's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and
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Share Option Scheme 2005 (Continued)

(iii)  the nominal value of the shares.

The Share Option Scheme 2005 expired on 13 October 2015. However,
share options previously granted under this Share Option Scheme remain
valid, subject to the same terms and conditions and the unexercised
share options under this Share Option Scheme will lapse after 13 April
2018. The details of which are set out in Note 25(b)(ii) under the
heading “Notes to the Financial Statements” on page 160.

Share Option Scheme 2014

Under the Share Option Scheme 2014, the Board has the absolute
discretion to offer any employees (whether full or part-time), directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), consultants, business
associates or advisers of the Company or any company within the Group
options to subscribe for shares of the Company, provided that the total
number of shares issued or to be issued to any one grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue. The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal
consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the offer of an option.
Each option has a 10-year exercise period and the details of vesting
conditions are set out in Note 24(a) under the heading “Notes to the
Financial Statements” on pages 153 to 155. The Share Option Scheme
2014 will expire on 8 May 2024. However, share options granted under
this Share Option Scheme before its expiry date will remain valid, subject
to the same terms and conditions.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme 2014 is:

(a) to assist the Company to attract and retain the best available
personnel; and

(b)  to provide additional incentives to employees, directors, consultants,
business associates and advisers to promote the success of the
Group;

by providing them with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company through an offer of grant of options. The Shares subject to
the Share Option Scheme 2014 will be identical in nature with the other
Shares of the Company.
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Share Option Scheme 2014 (Continued)

The total number of share which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme 2014 shall not
exceed in aggregate 10% of the issued capital of the Company at its
adoption date, being 79,207,319 shares on 9 May 2014 (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). Options that have lapsed shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit. The Scheme Mandate
Limit may be renewed by obtaining approval of shareholders in general
meetings of the Company provided that such total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme 2014 under the Scheme Mandate Limit as
renewed shall not exceed 10% of the shares issued at the date of
approval of such limit (the “Refreshed Limit”). Options previously
granted (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised)
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Refreshed Limit.

The subscription amount payable in respect of each share option upon
exercise of an option shall be determined by the Board and shall be not
less than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK's daily quotation sheet
on the date, which must be a business day, of a written offer of
such option (the “Date of Grant”); and

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in
the SEHK's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant.

At the AGM of the Company on 8 May 2015, shareholders approved the
amendments to clauses 10.1(D), 10.1(E) and 2.1 of the Share Option
Scheme 2014. Such amendments to the Share Option Scheme 2014 give
the Board a discretion to waive or extend the 90-day Limitation with
authority to impose conditions to any such waiver or extension and to
provide an appropriate exercise period for each grant of options during
the Scheme Period. This provides the Board with necessary flexibility it
needs to deal, in the best interest of the Company, with the different
types of situations that may arise over the course of the ten-year validity
period of the Share Option Scheme 2014.
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Share Option Scheme 2014 (Continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options
during the year:

No. of options

Effect of options
lapsed upon
termination of
employment/

No. of options
outstanding as

Directors’ Report (Continued)
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“E-NFEBERESS A

TREEFAAREEBRED

Th

Market value

outstanding as  No. of options  No. of options  No. of options expiry of the 10- at 31 Exercise  per share on
at 1 January  granted during exercised during cancelled during year exercise December Exercise  price per exercise of
2017 the year the year the year period 2017 Date granted period share options”®
RELER, R-B-—t%F
R-2—-t#& TETERER t-A=t+- BRETER
—A-BHERTE FRREHG FRITEN FREHH MEAXRE BERTESN BRERMGH
HBRERE BRERE BRERE BRERE BRENTE BRERE RHAH TEH BRITEE En
HK$ HK$
BT oy
Directors
=
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, 900,000 — — — — 900,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
S.B.S., J.P. —ZT-|mE &
FNEEL SBS, JP. ~NA=+H
100,000 — — — — 100,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—E-1%F T
+tA=H
Dr. LEE Delman 200,000 — — — — 200,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
FEABL —T-mE T
~A=+A
100,000 — — — — 100,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—E-1%F T
+tA=H
Mr. YING Tze Man, 200,000 — — — — 200,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
Kenneth —T-mE +45
ESp ¢ ~AZ=+A
100,000 — — — — 100,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—E-HF T
+tAZH
Mr. CHAK Hubert 900,000 — — — — 900,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
BEBtE —E-mEF +F
~A=+H
100,000 — — — — 100,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—E-HF +F
+tA=H
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay 500,000 — — — — 500,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
ArEREREE —E-mF +F
AV ERE
100,000 — — — — 100,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—EF-0F TF
+tA=H
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, 800,000 — — — — 800,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
Jimmy T T4
ERELE ~NA=+H
100,000 — — — — 100,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—E-1% T
+tA=H
T LFFR EZBETEZIERAA
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Share Option Scheme 2014 (Continued) —E-NEBERESE (E)

Effect of options

lapsed upon
termination of No. of options
No. of options ploy / di Market value
outstanding as  No. of options  No. of options  No. of options expiry of the as at Exercise  per share on
at 1 January granted during exercised during cancelled during 10-year exercise 31 December Exercise  price per exercise of
2017 the year the year the year period 2017 Date granted period share options”?
RALEE R-B-tF
R-F—t#F TETERER t-A=t+- BRETER
—A-BHERTE FREHN FRTEH FREHD MAME AERITEN BREMH
HEBRERE BRERE BRERE BRERE BRENTE BRERE RHAHY TEH BRITEE EA
HK$ HK$
g BT
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, 900,000 — — — — 900,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
1P —T-mF &
IS EEE P ~NA=tH
100,000 — — — — 100,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—T-H%F +&
+tAZH
Mr. TSE Kam Keung 200,000 — — — — 200,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
AW LE —T-mE &
ANA=t+H
100,000 — — — — 100,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—ET-8F &
+tA=H
1,200,000 — — — — 1,200,000 04/07/2016 10 years 1.57 —
—E-REF &
+tAmA
— 2,400,000 — — — 2,400,000 28/04/2017 10 years 1.592 —
—E—tF &
mA=+NR
Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, 1,200,000 — — — — 1,200,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
Andrew —Z-mF +5
BERBELE ~NA=+H
1,000,000 — — — — 1,000,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—Z-1%F +&
+tAZH
900,000 — — — — 900,000 04/07/2016 10 years 1.57 —
—E-RE +5
+tAmAE
— 500,000 — — — 500,000 28/04/2017 10 years 1.592 —
—E—tF +%
MA=+/\H
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, 500,000 — — — — 500,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
Emily —T—mF &
FIEHLZ L ~NA=tH
700,000 — — — — 700,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—T-1%F +&
+tAZH
900,000 — — — — 900,000 04/07/2016 10 years 1.57 —
—T-X%F +F
+tAmA
— 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 28/04/2017 10 years 1.592 —
—E—tF +F
mA=+NRE
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No. of options

Effect of options

lapsed upon
termination of No. of options
employment/ outstanding as
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Market value

outstanding as  No. of options  No. of options  No. of options expiry of the at Exercise  per share on
at 1 January granted during exercised during cancelled during 10-year exercise 31 December Exercise  price per exercise of
2017 the year the year the year period 2017 Date granted period share options®
RALEE,  R-B—tfF
R-2—-t#& TETERER t-A=t+- BRETER
—A-BHERTE FRREHB FRTEN FREHN MEAME BERTESN BRERMGH
HERERA BREHE BREHE BREHRE BRENYE BREBE BREAH TEE SROTEME wEA
HK$ HK$
BT fiow
Employees* 454,542 — (100,000) — (354,542) — 19/03/2007 10 years 1.42 1.62
EE* z +4&
198,718 — — — — 198,718 14/04/2008 10 years 1.01 —
—Z2ENF +4&
mA+mE
2,800,000 — — — — 2,800,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
—T-mF +4&
AA=+H
2,600,000 — — — — 2,600,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—Z-RF +4&
+tAZH
2,800,000 — — — — 2,800,000 04/07/2016 10 years 1.57 —
—E-RF +&
+tAmA
— 3,000,000 — (100,000) — 2,900,000 28/04/2017 10 years 1.592 —
—EB—tF +&
MA=+/\H
Ex-employee’ 2,400,000 — — — — 2,400,000 30/06/2014 10 years 1.90 —
RlEE" —T-lmF T
~A=t+H
2,400,000 — — — — 2,400,000 02/07/2015 10 years 1.78 —
—ZT-F T
tAZH
1,600,000 — — — — 1,600,000 04/07/2016 10 years 1.57 —
—T-XREF T
+tAMA
Total 27,053,260 6,900,000 (100,000) (100,000) (354,542) 33,398,718
@t
* Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred retired as an Executive Director of the Company  * TEREEAE T tFRABFAGHERERAE
after the conclusion of the 2017 AGM. KRABHITESE -
# The Board had waived the 90-day Limitation to the ex-employee for exercise ~ * EE D RAEEITE A2 F6,400,00017 #E ik

of the total of 6,400,000 share options of the Company.

" Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised.

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names of
the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the
weighted average value per option is provided in Note 1(p)(ii) and 24(a)
to the “Notes to the Financial Statements” respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company,
or its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in the Company or any other body corporate. m °©
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Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year, save for the share option schemes
described in this report.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interest in the
Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2017 amounting to 5% or
more of the ordinary shares in issue:

IR A b 88 15 =

B AN ¥R 5 Pt 0 B AR AT 3150 - 0 A T B
RAFERE R WEFT A RER D -

ETERRRKRAD R EER G E
mRRRE
ARFBER-F—LF+-A=+—BHEEA
DRB BT 08 25 58 B B17 8 BRS5% %A
ERBEMT :

Ordinary shares

ZER
Corporate/

Registered individual Number of % of total

shareholders interests shares issued shares

aa/ HEBRTRG

BEBRR B AR KRB EE wYEIHL

Substantial Shareholders FERX

South China (Jersey) South China (Jersey)

Holdings Ltd. Holdings Ltd. — 101,125,000 101,125,000 12.73%
TAL Apparel Limited BERKARAA 101,125,000 — 101,125,000 12.73%
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, E=ThEH L 0 SBS, JP.

S.B.S., J.P. — 95,673,000 95,673,000 12.04%
Eastex (HK) Limited Eastex (HK) Limited 95,673,000 — 95,673,000 12.04%

The register of interest in shares and short positions kept under Section
336 of the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by South China
(Jersey) Holdings Ltd. is the same as the 101,125,000 shares disclosed by
TAL Apparel Limited, its 100% owned subsidiary; and the interest
disclosed by Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P., is the same as the
95,673,000 shares disclosed by Eastex (HK) Limited, his 100% wholly
owned company.

Apart from the above, the Company had not been notified by any
person who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017, which was recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

There are no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions pursuant to the Listing Rules during the year of 2017.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The Company did not have any bank loans and borrowings as at 31
December 2017.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 179 of the Annual
Report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. Particulars of this retirement
scheme are set out in Note 23 to the “Notes to the Financial
Statements”.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Auditors

The Company’s auditor, KPMG, will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SBS., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Other Information
HiE R

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 8 May 2018 to
Friday, 11 May 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered to determine the shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting ("AGM")
to be held on Friday, 11 May 2018. In order to qualify to attend and
vote at the AGM, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong for registration, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 7
May 2018.

The register of members will also be closed from Thursday, 17 May
2018 to Monday, 21 May 2018, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong for registration, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 16
May 2018.
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Report of the Auditors
REMBES

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 94 to 178, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Report of the Auditors (Continued)
ZEAEREE (8)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition in respect of the provision of

FAREFTSH

FRESFFAERERMANEXHE  REHAX
PR AV BBRENBIRAEENER - GLE
ARREBRMBABRRGE A BRRNLABRE
ETREN BT EHELEREHEZBNE
B

RUBFEFEZRBENHKRERR

Government Electronic Trading Services

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 103.

BRMGEEBFRENAIRREI03A A&7 HE -

The Key Audit Matter
BREESER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPNESNMEEZSE

Revenue of the Group is derived from the provision of
Government Electronic Trading Services ("GETS”) for
processing certain official trade-related documents and from
project and other service income. Revenue from GETS
accounted for 70% of the Group’s revenue for the year

ended 31 December 2017.

Revenue is recognised when the related services are
rendered to customers.

The Group uses complex information technology (“IT")
systems to track the point of service provision for GETS. The
calculation of the GETS charge is automatically performed
by the IT systems based on pre-defined key parameters,
including unit price and transaction volume.

EEENBERERHERSE THRRE S ESHABXHN
BEEFE SR ([GETS]) RAKREIBEE MEAMRBUA -
GETSHWAGEEEHEEZE _ZE—+tF+-_A=+—HBILF
B EH70% °

WETDRAE P REERREERER -
BEREEAEMNEAR R (BB R KRR ERGETS

MRHIRENRE - GETSERAMNGERERANMKESRER
BERENEARSB(BEERELEERERSE) BT -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue in
respect of GETS included the following:

with the assistance of our internal IT specialists, identifying
and evaluating the key relevant IT systems and the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls, with particular emphasis on the
capturing and recording of GETS transactions;

with the assistance of our internal IT specialists, assessing
the calculation logic of the pre-defined formulae built into
the IT systems and the related parameters (including unit
price and transaction volume) used in the calculation of
GETS charges;

comparing the details of the monthly manual journal
entries relating to the input into the accounting system of
aggregate GETS revenue with the reports generated by
the IT systems;

BB HGETSI S RN BT F 84
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Revenue recognition in respect of the provision of
Government Electronic Trading Services

Report of the Auditors (Continued)
ZE RN R EE (B)

B8 F T 5 (F)

RUBFEFESRBHKEER

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 103.

FRHEEBEHREINEIRREI03E B ZFTHE °

The Key Audit Matter
EREETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETNWEEZSBE

A record of GETS transactions is generated by the IT
systems from which the GETS charges, in an aggregate
amount, are manually input into the accounting system on
a monthly basis.

We identified revenue recognition in respect of GETS as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the Group’s
total revenue and because the reliance on complex IT
systems with the subsequent manual input into the
accounting system increases the risk of error in recording
revenue.

HEMAMXRSRMCEGETSN X Z RSB ABAAT &
ABFHRL -

HAISGETSH R ER BRI REREFEH  BREMGEE
SEHAKRRNERMY  THHRNKBEEMNEAR KR
HARBREFBBASTRAEN T THERNERRR -

e comparing the unit price for each GETS charge as recorded
in the IT systems with details in contracts signed with
customers, on a sample basis, and to test the operating
effectiveness of internal controls in respect of the
authorization of and input of the unit price changes;

e comparing cash receipts from customers during the year
and subsequent to the financial year end with invoices
issued to customers during the year, on a sample basis;
and

e inspecting underlying documentation for other manual
journal entries relating to revenue which were considered
to be material or met other specific risk-based criteria.

o BEEA BEEMAMRERMALENETRGETSE BN
BEUEBREATPRAINARFFIFEETHLE LA HERE
WA N A BT (B AR B B AR AT e R BDHR ) OB 1T A

o BEEA BEARMBFERRENEZTFPHNER W
ANEFARFTPELNBERETLEER &

o MEEWSAMNEMERNLN S EMEERRSEDN
FI DS HEB X -
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Report of the Auditors (Continued)
ZEAEREE (8)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Assessment of impairment of available-for-sale debt
securities

B8 &5 58 ()

T4 A A A ORE ST A

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 111 to 113.

FRH G SN BEENTISRREINAZEI3H A 25T
B °

The Key Audit Matter
BREESER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPNENNMEEZSE

The Group invests in corporate bonds to earn interest
income as part of the Group’s cash management strategy,
which is governed by the investment guidelines approved by
the investment committee of the Group. As at 31
December 2017, the Group held a portfolio of available-
for-sale (“AFS”) debt securities with a fair value of HK$367
million.

The Group recognises impairment for AFS debt securities in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss when there is
one or more objective evidence of loss events (“indicators”)
which could indicate impairment. Such indicators include:

e significant financial difficulties of the issuers of the AFS
debt securities; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.

EEERBCEBESFUARBASURA (FAEEEREE
EREN 0 ZRBXEEEREZESFHENERE
BalMRE - R_B—tF+_A=+—H BEE£EFA
AHEEE((AIHREENDESEBES  EOABERER
367,000,0007T °

EFAE-RIULEENFEER(ERDBRAIHRLE
BEBESFARRER EEEEFAEERTHERUHL
EEBESHRE RFHEERE:

o HAHHEBBHESFETAEBBERNYHRERH X

o BRFIWRIMNAEHAE -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of available-for-
sale debt securities included the following:

e comparing the fair values of all AFS debt securities as at
31 December 2017 with external third party sources and
recalculating the cumulative fair value gain or loss;

e discussing with management whether there was any
indicator of impairment of individual AFS debt securities
as at 31 December 2017 and critically challenging
management’s assertions and conclusions by considering
whether there was any indicator of impairment of
individual AFS debt securities for which there was a

December 2017

recent movements of debt

cumulative fair value loss as at 31
through analysing the
securities prices in the market based on external third
party sources and assessing if any other indicator which
may have led to impairment of AFS debt securities as at
31 December 2017;

BMARFHEAIHREEREESNGEENENEF 215
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Assessment of impairment of available-for-sale debt
securities

Report of the Auditors (Continued)
ZE RN R EE (B)

B8 F T 5 (F)

W EEEE SR ERN G

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 111 to 113.

FRHGEEHBHRENTISRREINEEEI13H 885
B °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANETNMEEZEE

Where indicators of impairment are identified, the valuation
of AFS debt securities is determined by management based
on readily available data for liquid market. Where such
observable data is not readily available, as in the case of
level 3 financial instruments, then estimates need to be
developed which involve significant management
judgement. Any impairment recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss is the cumulative difference
between amortised cost (less any impairment previously
recognised) and fair value.

We identified the assessment of impairment of AFS debt
securities as a key audit matter because of the significance
of AFS debt securities to the Group’s total assets and the
degree of management judgement exercised in
determination of whether indicators exist and fair value of
AFS debt securities where observable market-based data is
not readily available.

fBARERR  THEEERTESNGEESHEEER
BRABTSEESEEMETE EUARN28ERY
FERR AR EBEFEBRE=ANBEHLT THUHR
ERAENBESERAINEEEMLA EETHEGIR
EEEMEARHE N BRaRERNBERSEHK A
ORBECEROETARAE ERAABEMNRFEZR -

BMERATHBEEERESNBEN G ASBRET =
B AANHLEEBESHESEREENERE N RE
EREEEEFERMITEMNERBHEBRENRTEED
BEEBEYERAUTSHNAIRLEEEBESFAABENESR
300

e for AFS debt securities that indicators of impairment are
identified and no observable market-based data available,
as in the case of level 3 financial instruments, evaluating
the key assumptions and judgement applied by the Group
in determination of the fair value of such AFS debt
securities;

e with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
performing independent valuation of the level 3 financial
instruments and comparing the valuations with the
valuations prepared by management of the Group; and

e assessing whether the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, including fair value hierarchy
information, appropriately reflected the Group’s exposure
to financial instrument valuation risk with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.

e MRAAREBEAEBNE=A HREBIBRERERL
BERBEEMEZBENTHEERBESME  FHEE
BREEHATHEEREESNAABEMKBNE
R R A

o ERMAMBEEZERNBHIT ETE=ZREBITAN
BYfE THREEEEEASRENMEE: &

o ZEMITEEANNMEAT  FHEAUBEBREROEE (&
BAABESHEEREREERRESEARN SR
TAMKERRE-
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Report of the Auditors (Continued)
ZER R EE (8

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibilities
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Report of the Auditors (Continued)
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Report of the Auditors (Continued)
ZEAEREE (8)

BB R BT ARE M BERRARE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in

consolidated financial statements HZE{F (&)
(Continued)
o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going o HESHARBAKE ST ERNBE EE

HAER - RIBEFMEDRNBZERE BER
BREEREEXBRAEENERTEE
T RMA SR ERBRFERL R
NEEBRRE MREMBREFEEK
THEEN ISR EREEMBRETIRS

EREIZGAMBRRTOMEEEE -
BREEMOBETIR  AIHMEEERIE
BREBR - WM AR ENZEE R
EREMRSHNERERE - R KREKE
FHBE RIS ERE T REAEFER

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern. B o
o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the e ESRAVMBRENEEI®RA &8

MR BRERE URESHBRERE
BHRERBRABMIZMER-

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

HEEENERIEEEDOTEELE
BMaR BENEARE MEHEAH
BHRERBR -HMEEESEEND
A EBEMAT BRMAREFTE R AR

E2HEE-

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial e
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other FrEMEBEIN  RIEFEXEZESEBTHED
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit ZE: & E BRI L  EABA RS 8RR
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 37 2 5T & bk Bl H A S0 45 & A9 (1 7] & A BREA ©
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have HFIERAEZZESRIEN  FARFMETAE
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and EHBUYMMNEBESEBEE R WEMPIER
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may B RIEABHWRAS Y ERMBILENER
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where EREREMEIE  ULEERANERT  BEEHNEH
applicable, related safeguards. & 18 BfE o
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEEmER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE=Z—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—BLLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 BT BT T
Revenue I = 3 241,830 231,302
Interest income WA 16,892 19,386
Other net income H A W23 ) F 58 5 1,463 6,354
Cost of purchases HE AR (23,279) (18,577)
Staff costs 12 B KR 6(a) (105,607) (103,052)
Depreciation e (6,270) (6,723)
Other operating expenses Hih g (30,860) (36,759)
Profit from operations BERF 94,169 91,931
Impairment loss on other financial assets £ ftb 81 7% & 2= il (B &5 18 12 (8,242) —
Share of results of associates Fi{hB & N El ¥ E 2,415 (10,557)
Profit before taxation Bk B A % R 6 88,342 81,374
Taxation I8 7(a) (14,222) (2,122)
Profit for the year AN JE s A 74,120 79,252
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREF GEA) 13
Basic BN 9.3 9.9
Diluted Ha 9.3 9.9

The notes on pages 101 to 178 form part of these financial statements. 551018 & 51788 H) K fE 8 ok B 75 3 & 09 — &6
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company % ° FZN4F € % F 9 BRI B R 1~ T 2K 2 &) A #5
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note 77. BABRBFBERAZ1T -

94 Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBEakHEMZE WA R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZE—-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
HiaE BET T BT
Profit for the year REEBF 74,120 79,252
Other comprehensive income for the 75 B H fth 2 [ Wk 25
year (after tax and reclassification (BRBREHSE
adjustments): TEE)
ltems that may be reclassified HiegEgmoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BH&RHIAR
Exchange differences on translation of BEREARLME
financial statements of the People’s (THE)EBH
Republic of China (“PRC") M m&aEN
operations =% 1,459 (1,080)
Available-for-sale debt securities: AP EERES
net movement in fair value reserve DRBERKE
gE % 12 2,840 (7,388)
Total comprehensive income rEEEEKREEE
for the year 78,419 70,784

The notes on pages 101 to 178 form part of these financial statements. %1

N

015 = 178 E #) B 71 8 5K B 75 Rk & 19 — 20

4 o

E-+EFR

EZRETESEARLA
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ﬁ?— AN Zl- iﬁz l’-_lj(‘ N %E
wh 13 /E\ Vi) /R
As at 31 December 2017 R -_ZE—+HF+_-_F=+—H
2017 2016
=E-—tF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K&t BET T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LESN N 14(a) 25,996 26,222
Goodwill EES 15(b) 9,976 9,976
Interest in associates P Bt 2 R B #E 2 16 17,278 13,685
Other financial assets HmB s & E 18 367,181 407,115
Deferred taxation IR FE R IR 8(b) 6,823 8,920
427,254 465,918
Current assets RENEE
Trade receivables JE U AR 3R 19 28,933 26,029
Other receivables and prepayments H {h JE WK TE | T8 S 518 20 21,631 28,348
Deposits with bank |ITIF 4,246 4,286
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE 79,860 40,043
134,670 98,706
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade creditors, accounts payable and ~ JEfTBR U~ B 5K IE K&
other payables H M S 3B 21 200,101 207,683
Taxation 18 8(a) 4,097 3,141
204,198 210,824
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (69,528) (112,118)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABEE 357,726 353,800
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Provision for long service payments REIRTS € B H 22 3,093 3,035
Deferred taxation IEER I 8(b) 223 414
3,316 3,449
NET ASSETS EERE 354,410 350,351
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
iR A B OR R (8)

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZZT—+tF+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—EB—tHF —T—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
o3 BET T BT T

Capital and Reserves EXRFEE
Share capital & A 25(b)(i) 296,039 295,870
Reserves 1 58,371 54,481
TOTAL EQUITY EEBRE 354,410 350,351

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 KEFEEWR _ZT—N\F=ZA_+=HHERE®E

March 2018. T B o
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SBS., J.P. *E
Chairman ZhEEL  sBS, JP.
TSE Kam Keung HITEEF
Executive Director i 87 58
The notes on pages 101 to 178 form part of these financial statements. 21018 & 5
5o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

= N7

nv_\ /E\ *ﬂE

m & B &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE=Z—_ZT—+tF+_A=+—BILFE

Equity

Share Capital  Exchange  Fair value Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve profits equity
AAREE
BRE  EXHE ERRE fkfE  REEN ERLH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt E¥TR BMTT BETr B%Tx E%Tz  BETx
As at 1 January 2016 RZB-RE-F—-H 295,415 3,092 1,416 1,282 59,444 360,649
Changes in equity for 2016 “E-AENRTEESD
Dividends approved in respect of FEEBHERE
the previous year 11 — — — — (63,553) (63,553)
Issue of new shares BOIHKRR 25(b)(i) 455 (74) — — — 381
Equity-settled share-based transactions —~ MBREZETMUBH AERAZSH — 1,156 — — — 1,156
Lapse of share options BRELAN — (5) — — 5 -
Profit for the year AEERA — — — — 79,252 79,252
Other comprehensive income for the year 74 & H 4 2 I 25 — — (1,080) (7,388) — (8,468)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE 2 HUNEEE - - (1,080) (7,388) 79,252 70,784
Dividends declared in respect of the AFEEEABREHRE
current year 11 — — — — (19,066) (19,066)
As at 31 December 2016 and R-ZZB-AE+=A=+-BR
1 January 2017 —E-t¥-f-H 295,870 4,169 336 (6,106) 56,082 350,351
Changes in equity for 2017 ZE-tENREAEREE
Dividends approved in respect of the FEEERERE
previous year 11 — — — — (50,059) (50,059)
Issue of new shares BIIHRG 25(b)(i) 169 (27) — — — 142
Equity-settled share-based transactions ~ bARRIER B I LA AEENRZ S - 984 — - - 984
Lapse of share options BB AR R — (98) — = 98 =
Profit for the year REFRN — - - — 74,120 74,120
Other comprehensive income for the year 7% & H 2 HE K — = 1,459 2,840 = 4,299
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2EUEAE — - 1,459 2,840 74,120 78,419
Dividends declared in respect of the AEEDRBRENRE
current year 11 — — — — (25,427) (25,427)
As at 31 December 2017 R-B-+tE+=-A=+-H 296,039 5,028 1,795 (3,266) 54,814 354,410
The notes on pages 101 to 178 form part of these financial statements. 51018 = 178 H K Mt & % Ak 81 7% R 70 — &6
oS

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE=E—_ZFT—+HF+_A=+—HBLFE

2017 2016
—ZT—tF —E—RF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
b iF BT T ok b
Operating activities REEK
Profit before taxation B 54 A A 88,342 81,374
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation e 6(b) 6,270 6,723
Net gain on disposals of property, HEWE WMERZE
plant and equipment Wz 588 6(b) (30) (44)
Interest income KB U A (16,892) (19,386)
Share of results of associates FriG B2 R R EE (2,415) 10,557
Equity-settled share-based payment LA B 45 & 30 DA IR 19
RERH I 6(a) 984 1,156
Net foreign exchange gain P& 3 W2 5 58 6(b) (3.298) (444)
Net gain on disposal of available-for- PETHEEEHEESD
sale debt securities Wz 588 5 (1,463) (6,354)
Impairment loss on other financial Hh W% & ERERE
assets 12 8,242 —
Operating profit before changes in R & EELEEHAH
working capital REBA 79,740 73,582
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, — J& U Bk 3 « E b fE Uk 3018
other receivables and prepayments ki RER D
(3% h0) 3,715 (2,741)
(Decrease)/increase in trade creditors, FERRR - B RIER
accounts payable and other payables HihEMZRECRD)
#hn (2,577) 2,748
Decrease in customer deposits received B WEFIZEH D (4,947) (6,803)
Cash generated from operations REEENERE 75,931 66,786
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BB BFEH (11,360) (8,793)
Net cash generated from operating RKETEBELENRESFHR
activities 64,571 57,993
—T-r5FH HHEEFRIEMAD 99



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

RAEREmE X&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #ZE —-Z—

+tF+ A=+ —BLFE

2017 2016
—E2—+tF T—RF
Note HK$’'000 HK$ 000
Bt &t BET T BT T
Investing activities RETEE
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- & &] #f i & & 15 &
sale debt securities Fr 18 5K 18 254,025 236,535
Payment for purchase of available-for- & A 7] i {1 & & 75 3%
sale debt securities BT 4 308 (215,985) (415,849)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant &% % - lﬁﬁ%&?&ﬁ
and equipment FT 1% 38 30 160
Payment for purchase of property, BEME BE R&#E
plant and equipment BT 4 58 (6,044) (3,748)
Interest received 2 F B 17,874 17,378
Proceeds from disposal of associates o B D R PTG KB — 87,585
Receipts/(placement) of deposits with B, (17 A) SR1T1E 3R
bank 690 (199)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFBFREL (FTA)
investing activities HeFE 50,590 (78,138)
Financing activities BEED
Proceeds from shares issued under RAR R AR R 5T B B 1T AR 19
share option schemes Fr 18 318 142 381
Dividends paid to equity shareholders B4R AR ERZH A
of the Company s\ (75,486) (82,619)
Net cash used in financing METEBMANESEHE
activities (75,344) (82,238)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BRERBELSSEE M
cash equivalents (R ) F 8 39,817 (102,383)
Cash and cash equivalents as at R—A—HWERER
1 January ReZE 40,043 142,426
Cash and cash equivalents as at R+-ZA=+—HBHHERSE
31 December REEEHE 79,860 40,043

The notes on pages 101 to 178 form part of these financial statements. 551018 % 51788 H) K} 7 #8 ok B 7 3R & 09 — 26
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br 7% ¥R 3k MY &

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on
(“SEHK™).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company and its

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
subsidiaries (“the Group”) are discussed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 7(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for available-for-
sale debt securities, which are stated at their fair value (Note

1(1).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

1 TESFHE

(a)

(b)
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AD(ZAEeRMmEERNEBN(E
BB BHmELEL)) (FEEEFTEL
(TEREFEADERE BEARE
SR REBCRAGEIDREMREL
ZEMBHRRTCERBTEBARSM
BERAR (BB ES EMRA
TEFRADFEANFERE - XA
AREMBAR(EEIAKE] MEA
MEEGHBEEHINMOT -

BRI AGRME T REEFT
PKER M MERED)  AREN BN
5 B AN & A H R B an AR Rk R AR AT
RA - RAHEARBESTHE AR
YIRGE R bt BN £R B A R e T AT R AR
ERI(EER B RE LR MEHEF K
REHHTEDRBR UL FTBERRE
e BERBNMBERRMZI1OA -

BB ERNEREE
HE_Z—+F+__A=+—HIEFE
Mire M BRE BEAEEREAEE

P2 R RAE AR ER -
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AR - BRI E B E SR B
AR R BB ZF16) -

REUETEC(EEVBRE LN
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ROERARMEBAREE  BFE KRAR
X BER - 2 F A REBEERRKR IR
BERERRIREEEREGERZEFRB/AT
TTEBAEEMNERAMEARMEL M5
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HEE K B {E AR E S 1 B A R &
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant

accounting policies

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. Major sources of estimation uncertainty are disclosed in
Note 2.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$69,528,000 (2016: HK$112,118,000). Notwithstanding the
net current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 has been prepared on a going
concern basis as the directors of the Group are of the opinion
that the Group would have sufficient funds to meet its
obligations as and when they fall due, having regard to the
following:

i.  The Group will continue to generate positive operating cash
flows; and

ii. it is not expected that significant customer deposits are
required to be refunded in the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
None of these impact on the accounting policies of the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TEEBX (&
(Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition (d) EmREE

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Transaction fees, handling fees and registration fees
Revenue is recognised when services have been provided
to customers.

(ii) Annual subscription fees
Revenue is recognised on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the period of the subscription.

(iii) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been transferred to customers and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

(iv) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

(v) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(vi) Services income
Services income is recognised when the relevant services
have been provided to customers and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation (or amortisation) and impairment

losses (Note 1(k)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be
measured separately from the fair value of the leasehold

land at the inception of the lease (see Note 1()));
— interest in leasehold land; and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the

date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements

the remaining term of
the lease
Platform hardware and software, 3-5 years

computer and office equipment

Motor vehicles
Furniture and fixtures

Building 20 years
unexpired term of the

Leasehold land

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TEEBX (&
(Continued)

(f) MEAARFERES

(f) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Note 1(n) depending on
the nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant

accounting policies

(Continued)

()

(9)

Subsidiaries interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

and non-controlling

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see Note 1(i)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see Note 1(g)).

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses (see
Note 1(k)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

management,

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties, contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TE& X (&)
(Continued)

(9) BEQARAREGE D F (M)

(g) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see Notes 1(h) and (k)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7 ¥ & Y 5E o)

1 Significant
(Continued)

(g) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, when the Group ceases
to have significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or joint
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial

asset (see Note 1(i)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 71(k)), unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as

held for sale).

(h) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously

held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and

is tested annually for impairment (see Note 1(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TEEBX (&
(Continued)

() HEBRRAZBHRE

(i) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from
the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a
quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or
interest earned on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in Note 7(d)(iv) and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses
(see Note 1(k)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale debt
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price
in an active market for an identical instrument and whose fair
value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 1(k)). Dividend income from equity securities
and interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in Notes 7(d)(iv) and (v),
respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of debt securities are also
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7 ¥ & Y 5E o)

1 Significant

accounting policies

(Continued)

()

()

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see Note
1(k)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring interest in leasehold land is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017

1 TESTHERE)

()

()

HittEBRRAEHZRE (H)

ERIERZRERKERNERMZ
1) R BESHEREN D EE
BHE -REAGNAEEALEAEH
B ESRAHERRER, R ER -

HEEE
MAKEREERBRLHERTARAL
R FIEBN KRNI — R REM
RipEPRRAER -—BHLZHABEE
EAEREBE-EARZIH—FRINR
Z)ELBEHE - AEENERHE
REBRZEOMEBFEmEL - LW
ERZRTABHENEARTA -

RAKERBHEHEFRENEEM S - &0
FHBEERBR D A RN ER R
nHWBEAEE AFHEESEDER
REREEERANEE - TEHEBE
REBH R EMER R E T REED
HEDSBEREEMEE -

NEASEREEEMEERAFEE
BB RIRRBEEEFEE NN REER
EHMRENSH AN REEFR
FPABZER  BMAEMEELRTF
BRMAEEERMELENKEERE
BRoh o BB IH B BN B & R g
RRREENFFREN— 80 - HAHE
SREEENSHRBRERTHE -

HELHEENEBRATDREERA
B E ORI -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TEEBX (&
(Continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale debt
securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investment in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see Note 1(g)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with Note 1(k)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with Note

1(k)(ii).

(k) Impairment of assets (k) EERBE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7 ¥ & Y 5E o)

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TEEHE (#&)
(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued) (k) EERBE (&)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) BERBEAIZIHSREREMERR
securities and other receivables (Continued) B E (&)

— For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the — BERRAEYERAERERA
impairment loss is measured as the difference between BEMs  REEBBRMBE
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the ENEREEEREUMBEE
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current K938 1T T35 [0 3R SR AL 3R (anBL 3R
market rate of return for a similar financial asset FEBRN)HFAHNARRERE
where the effect of discounting is material. HZERAE - RKABEARD
Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost IR FE 75 R E B 18 T[] o

are not reversed.

— For trade and other current receivables and other — TRIREE AKX AR ER A P IR BR
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the X~ Eofth BN AR pE ORI R H A
impairment loss is measured as the difference between WMBEEMmMS  WEBBIEE
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of ENREEERTEEERY
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the HE R F R (Bt 5 & E S V)8
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the REFTEMENERFN X)W
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition AR EEX) IR BRI
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is BenelRENEETE -1
material. This assessment is made collectively where It 5B 7% B E A EE R R
these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, B flmmc B BE R kI
such as similar past due status, and have not been B B 4 5 E AR (E - Rl
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for AEERRET VBEEN
financial assets which are assessed for impairment RIRIR &2 RIEEZ AW
collectively are based on historical loss experience for AEEEABRUEERBRE
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the MEENBTERER R
collective group. (=
If in a subsequent period the amount of an MREEHEREEESES
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be Bk & & L EERRE
linked objectively to an event occurring after the ERREENENHEHE FH
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is BEBESREIBRE - RE
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an EBEEMNBRETNEEREENRK
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying HEBBETEANTFERIARE
amount exceeding that which would have been RAEMNBEEIE M EL EE M
determined had no impairment loss been recognised A o

in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TEEBX (&
(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued) (k) EEBE (&)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) BEBEERBRABLEBRERAEMERR
securities and other receivables (Continued) A (&)

For available-for-sale debt securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in
fair value can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TEEHE (#&)
(Continued)

(k) EERMEE)
(i) HtEENRE

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7% ¥ & B 5T o)

1 Significant 1 FESFEHEKX(E

(Continued)

accounting policies

(k) EERE (&)
(i) H & = 1R E (F)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
it belongs,

recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in

generating unit to which exceeds its
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect

of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

— Recognition of impairment losses —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7 ¥ & Y 5E o)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules on SEHK, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see Note 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently,
the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income
and not profit or loss.

(I) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see Note 1(k)(i)).

(m) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TE& X (&)
(Continued)

n) BERIEEE

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7 ¥ & Y 5E o)

1 Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TEEBX (&
(Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued) (o) Fri5 % (&)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and B EERRECRBLEH R HEE
movements therein, are presented separately from each other B DEESFAINR R EEEEE -
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current WMARRKAEBELRE FHEFEER
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax AHMIEEERAPHIBEABNITEER
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally KR & O EIMEM - BIREATIBE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current EREEAATEEE  MELEHRER
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: EFREEEERIBAE

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company — WAARHHREEERBE: AQF
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to HAEBEE LUFREEE - HEHE
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or FAESEEENSTERE X

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate — WMAEBELEHEEERAR: mHERE
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on B —B B E BR T &R ME
either: nE# :

— the same taxable entity; or — BE—ERBEAL
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period — WATREAERNEAL - 78H

EARKRE—ABHKEESRE
ERZHENELTERER G
BEENRGENFEELEZRA
HRBEEERBEAATEE
Bkt &R R AN IAE
ERBEAHHEAR-

in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(p) Employee benefits (p) EEEF
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to (i) EHEERAEREMITEKRETE

defined contribution retirement plans

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits that
are due to be settled within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related
service. Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

EOREEN

5 HE B R A e 1R B 1R AR RE AR 75
BERAERE T —ERAAAEND
BE®RHN -#Fe FELL FE
BHEH - EH-FOR KA S
Ko 3F & 8548 A B P AN B B R AR
T F E IR B o 0 EIE A SRk (B
NMEKRERD R - B REEBENR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7 ¥ & Y 5E o)

1 Significant

accounting policies

(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to those share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review,
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except

reviewed. Any resulting

unless the original employee expenses

where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company'’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in share capital for
the shares issued) or the option expires (when
released directly to retained profits).

it is

Provision for long service payments
Provision is made for potential long service payment
obligations that may arise upon cessation of employment
of the Group’s employees in the future, to the extent that
there is a reasonable probability that the amounts are likely
to become payable. Such provisions are made on a
systematic basis, taking into consideration the salary and
years of service of the employees who may qualify for such
payments in the future based on their past services
rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies 1 TE& X (&)
(Continued)

(q) shs]E

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

FANIERZRRZE A NE XK
Ho NG ENEBEER ARG
BERRNEXRKE - ELRBENIER
RANHER o

NESERAFENIINEFEREERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(r) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are

considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same

group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in Note 1(r)(a).

(vii) A person identified in Note T1(r)a)i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7 ¥ & Y 5E o)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(s) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Accounting estimates and judgements
Key sources of estimation uncertainty in relation to the preparation
of these financial statements are as follows:

Goodwill

Note 15(b) discloses management’s judgement in relation to the
identification of the Group’s E-commerce segment as the
appropriate cash generating unit for goodwill impairment
assessment. Further to that, management takes into consideration
the projected volume and activity level and cash flows of the
E-commerce businesses, discounted to present value at a risk-
adjusted discount rate. These projections are based on assumptions
that take into consideration management’'s knowledge of the
business environment and their judgement on future performance.
There is inherent uncertainty in the estimation process and the
underlying assumptions relating to the future, and accordingly
actual performance may differ significantly from the projection.
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Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

Investments in associates

The Group reviews internal and external sources of information at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
Group's interest in Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science &
Technology Service Company Limited (“Nanfang”), an associate of
the Group (Note 16), may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased. The
Group estimates the interest in Nanfang'’s recoverable amount when
any such indication exists. The recoverable amount of the interest in
Nanfang, or of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
whether there is any impairment in the carrying value of the
Group’s interest in Nanfang, management may take into
consideration the projected volume and activity level, future growth
rate, and cash flows of the underlying business of Nanfang,
discounted to present value at the risk-adjusted discount rate. These
projections are based on assumptions that take into consideration
management’s knowledge of Nanfang’s business environment and
their judgement on future performance and underlying risks. There
is inherent uncertainty in the estimation process and the underlying
assumptions relating to the future, and accordingly actual
performance may differ significantly from the projection.

Investments in available-for-sale debt securities

An investment in available-for-sale debt security is considered
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more occurred loss events that have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the investment in available-for-sale
debt security. The Group determines that there is objective evidence
of impairment of an available-for-sale debt security, if at the
reporting date, there has been a significant decline in the fair value
of an available-for-sale security or any loss events set out in Note

1(k)().

The evaluation of whether an available-for-sale debt security is
impaired requires analysis of the credit standing of a particular
issuer and involves management judgement. When assessing
impairment of available-for-sale debt securities, the Group places
emphasis on issuer specific factors, such as significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency on interest or principal payments.
A credit rating downgrade, worsened liquidity or decline in fair
value below the amortised cost is not by itself considered a loss
event, but rather incorporated in the impairment analysis along with
other available information. Particular attention will be on those
individual available-for-sale debt securities for which there was a
cumulative fair value loss at each reporting date.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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Revenue

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of Government
Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) for processing certain official
trade-related documents. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in Note 75 to the financial statements.

Revenue represents the value of services provided and goods
supplied to customers. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised during the year is disclosed in Note 4.

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are
set out in Note 26(a).

Segment reporting

The Board of Directors of the Group reviews the internal reporting
by segments to assess performance and allocate resources. The
Group has identified the following reportable segments:

E-commerce: This segment generates income from processing trade-
related government documents and business-related
documents. It can be further divided into two sub-
segments as follows:

GETS This sub-segment generates income from
customers using Tradelink’s electronic
solutions for processing certain government
trade-related documents.

Commercial This sub-segment generates income from the
services  electronic logistics platform for facilitating
information flows among the trade logistics

and finance industries.

Security This segment generates income from the provision of
solutions: security products, digital certificates, security solutions and
mobile security solutions.

Other services:  This segment comprises handling fees for the conversion
of paper form to electronic messages, income from the
provision of technical support and other project services.
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4 Segment reporting (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments

with reference to fees and sales generated and the expenses

incurred by those segments. The measure used for reporting

segment results is profit before interest, taxation and depreciation.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments results as
provided to the Board of Directors for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 is set out below.
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31 December 2017
“E2—tH+=ZA=+—H

E-commerce
ETHE
Commercial Security Other

GETS services solutions services Total
BERE RTFR HUOEERH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BETR BETR BETT BY¥Tx
Revenue from external customers — %f9hIg & 169,106 13,575 40,120 19,029 241,830
Inter-segment revenue 2 5B ez — — 7,819 12,923 20,742
Reportable segment revenue T 2 85 Bk i 169,106 13,575 47,939 31,952 262,572

Elimination of inter-segment H 85 5 A ks
revenue (20,742)
Consolidated revenue mEkE 241,830
Reportable segment profit AE2EHDHEA 55,583 5,925 5,845 11,433 78,786
Interest income FEWA 16,892
Other net income H a5 5 1,463
Depreciation neE (6,270)

Impairment loss on other financial H B % & ZE R EE B

assets (8,242)
Share of results of associates Frib Bt E N B EE 2,415
Unallocated corporate income ROBEERA 3,298

Consolidated profit before SmERBAIER
taxation 88,342

“ELFFER EZBEFEZERAA
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4 Segment reporting (Continued) 4 7 EBF®E (&)

31 December 2016
—E-R"E+=ZA=+—H

E-commerce
Commercial Security Other
GETS services solutions services Total
BERE REAR HMRH @t

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT EBTIT REBTT AT BETI

Revenue from external customers ¥ MU zs 166,584 15,521 29,726 19,471 231,302
Inter-segment revenue 2 B [ Uk 28 — — 9,044 9,590 18,634
Reportable segment revenue T 2 3|5k 166,584 15,521 38,770 29,061 249,936
Elimination of inter-segment revenue & $4% & & U 25 (18,634)
Consolidated revenue REWE 231,302
Reportable segment profit 2K D HER 52,092 6,948 2,755 10,675 72,470
Interest income FEWA 19,386
Other net income H ol F 58 6,354
Depreciation weE (6,723)
Share of results of associates IRl A WNCIE S (10,557)
Unallocated corporate income ROBMEERA 444
Consolidated profit before RERBANEF
taxation 81,374

Geographic information i & & R

No geographic information is shown as the revenue and operating HRAEEBRE D Wam k& EEEHRE

profit of the Group is substantially derived from activities in Hong ERER ARTEZYMEEER -

Kong.
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B %5 ¥R R BT A o)
5 Other net income 5 Hihlz= F5E
2017 2016
S B
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale PETHEEEFESD
debt securities I 2= 558 1,463 6,354
1,463 6,354

6 BRBi Al A

BRBAENE NG GEA)

6 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(a)  Staff costs: (@ EEXKAE
Contributions to defined FEHFPCRIKET S 8
contribution retirement plan R 2,882 2,874
Equity-settled share-based payment LA A% #E 45 B0 BARR 19
expenses RERITNORXZ 984 1,156
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITARHMET 101,741 99,022
105,607 103,052
(b)  Other items: (b) EHAbIEE :
Auditors’ remuneration % 2560 B 957 945
Depreciation e
— interest in leasehold land held — FEERAMNEE
for own use (Note 14(a)) Tk
(Hit14@a)) 142 142
— other property, plant and — Bt - BE
equipment (Note 14(a)) KR AE
(Htet14(a)) 6,128 6,581
Operating lease charges in respect MENKERERS
of properties 1,416 1,206
Net foreign exchange gain FE 5 W a5 58 (3,298) (444)
Net gain on disposals of property, LEME  BE K
plant and equipment BB TR (30) (44)
ZE—+tFFHR ESE EZERAA
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7 Income tax in the consolidated statement 7

of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

REBERNAEHR

(a) FEBBRHBIES :

2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T T

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 74 & & F| 15 T 8 %
the year 12,301 11,171
Provision for PRC taxes for the year N E BB IE 25 —
Over-provision in respect of prior years A fF F [ R 58 % & (10) (28)
Deferred taxation iR FE B 1R 1,906 (9,021)
14,222 2,122

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is calculated —E L FENEBNERBELIREE

at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year. Taxation for PRC subsidiaries is similarly calculated
using the effective rates of taxation that are expected to be

applicable in the PRC.

(b)

profit at applicable tax rates:

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

HEt R TR FM16.5% (ZF — /K F :
16.5% )55 - P EIMI B A R IBZE L
FREE FANECERAERERRS
BEHERTEGFE

RERABEAENREAX HES
wmAERWT -

(b)

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation R 4 A1 o A 88,342 81,374
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RIEAERBERER OB
calculated at the rates applicable to BRI R B A= A E 8
profits in the countries concerned ZERBIA 14,601 13,326
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] 3138l 7 32 #) 7 15 ?/ =2 401 2,524
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FERB W = B IS = (1,098) (776)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KR *iﬂﬁ?ﬁlﬁﬁﬂaﬂﬁ
recognised BueeE 915 347
Tax effect of prior years' unrecognised 1 F DA {E F & R FERR Bt 18
tax losses utilised EEORBEE (2) (4,316)
Tax effect of recognition of unutilised — HERR A EH AR IBE BT IE
tax losses 2 — (8,920)
Tax effect of temporary differences not 7K 32 & 5 1% = 2 K T 75
recognised o (572) —
One-off tax reduction — KB (40) (40)
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA 7F 4 & B 48 5 5 (10) (28)
Other differences Hih =% 27 5
Actual tax expense BEEREBIEZ W 14,222 2,122
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5 7% ) = MY RE ()

Income tax in the consolidated statement 8 HZEEHBRARAERNFAEBR

of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEHBMRARNAEAFIES !

financial position represents:

2017 2016
—E—tHF T —RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 7 & &8 715 i & &

the year 12,301 11,171
Provisional Profits Tax paid BEREHFEH (8,361) (8,162)
3,940 3,009

Balance of PRC tax provision relating to A 4F [& o B0 %% 18 8¢ 4 45 £
prior years 132 132
Provision for PRC taxes for the year REFFEAFIEEE 25 —
4,097 3,141

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in ERERAE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows: T 8

Depreciation
allowances in

(b) CRBNEEHREEERAE

B IROR R ER AR ENIAE

E/(ABE)MNERBD RFRNE TN

excess of

related
depreciation Tax losses Total

Deferred tax arising from: WEEZEY
RETHEENELERE HEHRE BEEE st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
BETRT BETR BETR
As at 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"E—A—H (515) — (515)
Credited to profit or loss REBZRTA 101 8,920 9,021
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—R"FE+-A=1+—H (414) 8,920 8,506
As at 1 January 2017 R=2—-t%—-HA-H (414) 8,920 8,506
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss R B &K A/ (k) 191 (2,097) (1,906)
As at 31 December 2017 R-B—tF+=A=+—8H (223) 6,823 6,600

ZE—tFFH ESBEFESERAA
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8 Income tax in the consolidated statement 8
of financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

REMBRRKROAER (&)

b) ERINELEHBEEREE:

(Continued) (#)
2017 2016
—E—tH —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Representing: el
Deferred tax assets on the RAEMBARILEAH
consolidated statement of financial BEERBEE
position 6,823 8,920
Deferred tax liabilities on the RAEMBARRAEAH
consolidated statement of financial EERBAE
position (223) (414)
6,600 8,506

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has total tax
losses of HK$55,346,000 (2016: HK$62,513,000). In accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 7(o), deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of HK$41,348,000
(2016: HK$54,060,000) of such losses. Based on a forecast
prepared by management, future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in foreseeable future.
The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$13,998,000 (2016: HK$8,453,000)
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

5 7% ) = MY RE ()

9 Directors’ and chief executive’'s 9 EERTHREAZME
emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIEEBCA ARG E383(N KR AR (FEE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEFZERBOZ 20 WENE EH S
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is B

as follows:

Basic salary,
allowances Contributions

and other to retirement Share-based 2017

Fees benefits schemes Bonus* payments Total
Ex%Fe.

- 3:'3 URHE —B-LF

e REMERN BHRGFHER A ERHXA @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT

Executive directors HiTES

TSE Kam Keung Bl — 4,833 18 2,785 208 7,844
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew LR — 2,780 18 347 140 3,285
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily EERE — 2,464 18 685 164 3,331

LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred (retired as TREMNR-_Z-LERA
executive director on 11 May T-HRERTES)

2017) — 41 — 343 4 1,088
Non-executive directors FUTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry T 110 = — — — 110
LEE Delman E3EN 90 — — — — 90
YING Tze Man, Kenneth HFX 70 = — = — 70
Independent non-executive BUKHTES

directors
CHAK Hubert Bk 330 - - - - 330
CHAN Chi Yan BREA 310 — — — — 310
CHAU Tak Hay AERE 350 = = = - 350
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy ERE 370 — — — — 370
HO Lap Kee, Sunny & 330 - - - - 330
Total @zt 1,960 10,818 54 4,160 516 17,508




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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9 Directors’ and chief executive’'s 9 EERTHARME (&)

emoluments (Continued)

Basic salary,  Contributions
allowances and  to retirement Share-based 2016
Fees  other benefits schemes Bonus* payments Total
2 LA A SN
e REMBH RGBT AT~ BRI @5
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive directors HITES
TSE Kam Keung Hipa - 4,562 18 1,169 45 5,794
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew L3 — 2,778 18 613 149 3,558
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily BB — 2,223 18 409 247 2,897
LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred EXT — 1,948 - 328 166 2,442
Non-executive directors FHTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry T 110 — — — — 110
LEE Delman FEA 90 — — — — 90
YING Tze Man, Kenneth BIX 70 — — — — 70
Independent non-executive BUKHTES
directors
CHAK Hubert 3G 330 - — - — 330
CHAN Chi Yan BREE 310 - - - - 310
CHAU Tak Hay =g 350 — — — — 350
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy EHE 370 — — — — 370
HO Lap Kee, Sunny f] 3 E 330 — — — — 330
KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans Michael 18 — — — — 18
Total @t 1,978 11,511 54 2,519 607 16,669

*  Bonus represented actual bonus paid during the year

* JEALIEFAE 789 B BRTEAT

LI Ee BERBEARBBREIRTE
TEERITRAHNBRENE L A HNMGE
AEE LAEMANENFBOREZTER
SEEREE] —RE-

The above emoluments include the value of share options granted
to certain directors and chief executive under the Company’s share
option schemes, as estimated at the date of grant. Details of these
benefits in kind are disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Schemes” in the Directors’ Report.
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10 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2016:
four) are directors during the year whose emoluments are disclosed
in Note 9. For the year ended 31 December 2017, one of these four
directors were in the directorship for only part of the year. The
portions of the emoluments that were not attributable to the period
during which they were in directorship were disclosed below. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2016:
one) individuals are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

5 7% ) = MY RE ()

MVESHE AL

FRA - AEHESFALEENE(ZT—X
F OR)REE RENHESERHZIH
B-BE_ZT—+tFT_-_A=+—HILF
B -ZMAEEH —REENETHTR
—F TEREFECESHR MR
RTIXEE - EfmB(ZT—RF: —H)
ALTZHEEEMT

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—XF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments HehEMME 3,702 1,265
Share-based payments ARG R ERES 108 33
Retirement scheme contributions RARET B R 18 18
3,828 1,316

The emoluments of the above two (2016: one) individual with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HK$

B T

FRME(ZE—RF: —B)RaSHFALH

Under 1,000,001

1,000,001 - 1,500,000
1,500,001 - 2,000,000
2,000,001 - 3,000,000

“~ £1,000,001

1,000,001-1,500,000
1,500,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-3,000,000

MEmBEENT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF —T—RF
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals

A A&

1 1

1 _

ST LEFR HPBAETEHSERAN
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11 Dividends MKRE
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () *FEENEARAREREANR
Company attributable to the year 2
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT T
Interim dividend declared and paid of HK B &k &Ik H FHK 8 &
3.2 cents per share (2016: HK 2.4 R32BUM (= —RF:
cents per share) FH2.475 1) 25,427 19,066
Final dividend proposed after the end of RIFH EFRKE BEITRAR
the reporting period of HK 6.3 cents ¥ 5 B R 1% #R A9 R BRAR
per share (2016: HK 6.3 cents per BHRe3BIMW(ZE—R
share) based on issued share capital as 4 : & i%6.37% 1)
at the year end 50,059 50,053
75,486 69,119
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting R EBARERIRORARERRHRE
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the HRERREE-
reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) BRE—EMBEE I RF R
Company attributable to the previous financial ERRNSFAAGDREREANE
year, approved and paid during the year TRE

2017 2016

—E—t5F —T-RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T T T
Final dividend in respect of the previous B t—EAHKFE @ TR
financial year, approved and paid F L ROR - A9 R B AR
during the year of HK 6.3 cents per BERe3BIMW(ZT—R

share (2016: HK 5.1 cents per share) & GRS 1A 50,059 40,515
Special dividend in respect of the BRLE—EAMKFE  ER
previous financial year, approved and  4F ARV R R 5 89 45 B A%
paid during the year of HK Nil per BREREBW(ZE—X

share (2016: HK 2.9 cents per share) F - ZRR2.9%81) — 23,038

50,059 63,553
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI ()
12 Other comprehensive income 12 Hit 2 E W &=
Available-for-sale debt securities AHHERTES
2017 2016
—ZT—+tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok e
Changes in fair value recognised during AFEEHRRZAAEBE
the year # (3.939) (1,034)
Reclassification adjustments for amounts HeEABEORBETEN
transferred to profit or loss: DT
— net gain on disposal transferred to — HEHABRMEF
profit or loss Wz (1,463) (6,354)
— impairment loss (Note 26(e)(ii) — BB E B (W E26(e)i)) 8,242 —
Net movement in the fair value reserve EREMEEREERAL
during the year recognised in other TFEEARBEREZ
comprehensive income F 2,840 (7,388)
There is no tax effect relating to the above components at 31 E_E—+HFN_EBE—RNF+_A=+—
December 2017 and 2016. H Ll 26852 -
13 Earnings per share 138REF

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$74,120,000 (2016: HK$79,252,000) and the
weighted average number of 794,581,000 ordinary shares

(2016: 794,354,000 ordinary shares) in iss
calculated as follows:

ue during the year,

() BREZXETF

FRRERZF TR IR AR B L8 %A
A A RS A B %74,120,000 (= F
— /N4 B #79,252,000C) R AREER
B 9T L3 A% A h0 A 39 % £794,581,000
B% (= F — /X4 1 794,354,0000% & 38 %)
HFEARMT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMETHRH

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
‘000 ‘000
TR F i

Issued ordinary shares as at R—A—BEETERR
1 January 794,486 794,217
Effect of share options exercised EITEERENTE 95 137

Weighted average number of ordinary R+ZA=+—HHK
shares as at 31 December L AR b T I AR 794,581 794,354
—E—+tFFH ESZBETESZERAT 137
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13 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

13

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the

profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$74,120,000 (2016: HK$79,252,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 794,647,000
(2016: 794,605,000) after adjusting for the effect of the
potential dilution from ordinary shares issuable under the

Company'’s share option schemes, calculated as follows:

FRERN (&)

(b) ERBERF

TS B F Ty IR IR AR B X 8 R AR
B AEAE R A %74,120,000 (= F
— N4 B #79,252,0007T) Mm@ A% Y
HN#E T 15 B 25794,647,0008% (= T — X
£ : 794,605,000/%) (2 Bt A< A 7] AR 4
FEITA FRITEERNETREYE
ELARB)E AW

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) ZERMETFHRE (BE#E)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
‘000 ‘000
TR F B&
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ZA=+—HHITEEK
shares as at 31 December hnE 39 i 2 794,581 794,354
Effect of deemed issue of shares under 4% {EAR ¥ AN A &) B A b =1 21
the Company's share option schemes NEREBBETRODOTE
for nil consideration 66 251
Weighted average number of ordinary K+ _-A=+—HHK
shares (diluted) as at T iE AR hn e T AR B
31 December (#%) 794,647 794,605
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14 Property, plant and equipment MYE-BEERRE

(a) Carrying amount (a) BREIE
Platform
hardware and
software, Interest in
computer and leasehold land
Leasehold office Furniture and held for own
improvements equipment  Motor vehicles fixtures Building Subtotal use Total
FREHR
BENE  BA EEER BEEAN
%8 BAERE RE BRREE B Mt ERLHES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ARTR RETR BRI BRI AR ARTR AETR RETR

Cost: BA:
As at 1 January 2017 RZE-+F-A-8H 12,412 177,408 1,278 3,305 33,250 227,653 6,018 233,671
Additions RE 4 5,997 — - - 6,044 - 6,044
Disposals HE - (27,644) - (14) = (27,658) - (27,658)
As at 31 December 2017 RZF-tF+=f

=+-8 12,459 155,761 1,278 3,291 33,250 206,039 6,018 212,057
Accumulated depreciation: RHAE:
As at 1 January 2017 R-E—+&-A-A 11,240 171,804 522 2,674 19,536 205,776 1,673 207,449
Charge for the year FRRERR 453 3,402 415 155 1,663 6,128 142 6,270
Disposals hE - (27,644) - (14) - (27,658) - (27,658)
As at 31 December 2017 RZE-+F+=A

=+-8 11,693 147,602 937 2815 21,199 184,246 1,815 186,061
Net book value: REFE:
As at 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+ZR

=+-A 766 8,159 341 476 12,051 21,793 4,203 25,996
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(a) Carrying amount (Continued)

14 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(a) FRmEE (&)

149% - - BERRKRE A

Platform
hardware and
software, Interest in
computer and leasehold land
Leasehold office Fumniture and held for own
improvements equipment  Motor vehicles fixtures Building Subtotal use Total
FABHR
BENE  #H BER BEERK
%6 BAER "E BRRRE -3 hit BELBER 23t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost: BA:
As at 1 January 2016 W=F-xF-F-A 12,132 175,299 1,263 3123 33,250 225,067 6,018 231,085
Additions RE 692 2,223 485 348 — 3,748 - 3,748
Disposals HE 412) (114) (470) (166) - (1,162) - (1,162)
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-AF+2A
=f-8 12,412 177,408 1,278 3,305 33,250 227,653 6,018 233,671
Accumulated depreciation: RHHE:
As at 1 January 2016 RZE-RE-A-H 11,085 168,076 493 2,14 17,873 200,241 1,531 201,772
Charge for the year FRFERY 543 3832 422 121 1,663 6,581 142 6,723
Disposals HE (388) (104) (393) (161) — (1,046) — (1,046)
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-R"F+ZA
=t-8 11,240 171,804 522 2,674 19,536 205,776 1,673 207,449
Net book value: REFE:
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA
=t-A 1172 5,604 756 631 13,714 21,877 4,345 26,222
(b) The analysis of net book value of properties is as (b) MEBREFESHAMOT :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—R
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
Interest in leasehold land and building RIEFEZ TN F 2 HH
situated in Hong Kong held for own RHEIEE - BEB AN
use under medium-term lease up to EAHETHERZREF
2047 16,254 18,059
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15 Interest in subsidiaries 15 FRiEME A Rl =
(a) Details of the subsidiaries which principally affected () TEFEFEEEE EERERE
the results, assets or liabilities of the Group are as HWHBARFERBWOT :
follows:
Place of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation/  Particulars of issued ownership interest ownership interest
establishment and held by the held by a
Name of company and operation paid up capital Company subsidiary  Principal activity
EMAL/ ERTR HAAAGEN BNEAREEN
ARAER RIREELH BRRAFE RAEERASL EAEEEEIN EEEH
Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% —  Certificate authority services
BTRERBAERAR Bk 10,0001 & 3 ZERERB
Trade Facilitation Services Limited Hong Kong 50,000 shares 100% —  Dormant
305 50,0008 i 17 TEXH
Digital Trade and Transportation Hong Kong 41,000,000 shares 100% —  Provision of electronic messaging
Network Limited & 41,000,000 % 17 routing and transformation
YBEESERBRERDA services
RUBFHSEXRERRH
Up Forward Technology Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% —  Investment holding
ERMBRAERRA 35 TR AR 3 REER
EClink Technology Limited Hong Kong 99 shares 100% —  Investment holding
SRAENRERAA B 990 B 17 RERRK
Tradelink E-Biz Secure Solutions Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares 100% —  Secure solutions services
ESREFEBEAARERAA B 1,000,0000% iz 17 REAERE
iTradelink eMarket Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% —  Provision of e-commerce services
Bk 10,0000 # {3 RESTHERS
VSHIP Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% —  Provision of e-commerce services
5B 1R AR 13 REEFHERE
TRERSHBETRERS PRC HK$8,400,000 100% —  Provision of e-commerce and
BRRF s 7 %8,400,0007T e-logistics services
RESFEEREFUARE
KEESBRHBRAR PRC RMB500,000 — 100%  Provision of e-commerce and
H AR #500,0007C e-logistics services
RESFHEEREFUARE
AEBESBEFREAERRAY PRC RMB100,000 — 100%  Provision of e-commerce and
H AR %100,0007C e-logistics services
RESFHEEREFUARE
REEAHBRBRERD A" PRC RMB100,000 — 100%  Provision of e-commerce and
H AR %100,0007C e-logistics services
RESFHEEREFUARE
ENERSBRETHEERAA PRC RMB500,000 100% —  Provision of e-commerce and
H AR #500,0007C e-logistics services

RUETHERETRRE
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15 Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Details of the subsidiaries which principally affected
the results, assets or liabilities of the Group are as
follows: (Continued)

Each of these is controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note
7(f) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements.

L Subsidiaries not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total
revenue constituting less than 1% of the respective consolidated
totals.

Companies registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the
PRC.

Goodwill

The goodwill recognised by the Group arose from the
acquisition of Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited
("DTTNCo") in 2009 and is attributable mainly to the technical
expertise, intellectual property and the synergies expected to be
achieved from integrating DTTNCo into the Group’s existing
business and customer base. The goodwill has a carrying
amount of HK$9,976,000 since the acquisition date of 26
March 2009.

The E-commerce segment of the Group is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition of DTTNCo in entirety,
and there are no other units within the Group that the
goodwill can be appropriately allocated to. Accordingly, the
E-commerce segment is identified as the cash-generating unit
("CGU") containing the goodwill for the purpose of impairment
evaluation of the goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use the CGU's cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts covering a six-year
period. Cash flows beyond the six-year period are extrapolated
using a medium term growth rate adjusted on the basis of
management’s best estimates. The growth rates used do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the business in
which the Group operated. The future cash flows are
discounted, at a discount rate specific to the Group of 10%
(2016: 10%) for the assessment period, to determine the value
of the CGU. Based on management’s assessment, there is no
impairment recognised in respect of the goodwill for the year
(2016: HKS$Nil).
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16 Interest in associates

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7% ¥ & B 5T o)

16 Fr {5 B¢ & 2 B #E 1

The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of which

are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not

TREIBZRAAFE  ZFAREIRLE
MHERENFLTEEER:

available:
Proportion Proportion Proportion
Place of Particulars of of Group’s of shares of shares
Establishment issued and effective  held by the held by a
Name of associate and operation paid up capital interest Company Subsidiary  Principal activity
¥ ARA W& 2R
RIR BROTRBE MEERER PR % HERSB
BENAER EEBE RAFE BAk BAk BAlk FEEHR
Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science & PRC RMB10,000,000 20% 20% —  Provision of e-commerce
Technology Service Company Limited & AR #10,000,0007C services (Note)
("Nanfang”) REETHERS (W)
EXREFEFNERBERAA(ER))
rEEBHEERMEES PRC RMB45,000,000 26% — 26%  Supply chain management
("U-Link") H A #45,000,0007T development and
services
HEEERERRERS
ENSBARDRESRTBERAR PRC RMB1,000,000 49% 49% —  Provision of e-commerce
(B23:1:8:30) 2 A& #1,000,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHERET
iR

Note: Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science & Technology Service Company
Limited, a high-tech company providing advanced e-commerce services
in Guangdong area, enables the Group to gain exposure to this market

through local expertise.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity

method in the consolidated financial statements.

Wiat  EREE R R R R A A T R E R
BRULEETHERBOBHRAN - 4
HRBAN AR R EE RS
i -

A LB REHRBERENGEMB
RN -

Z—+H5FH BEZBETESERAA
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16 Interest in associates (Continued) 16 FTih Bt & A Rl HE = ()

(a) Summary of financial information on associates (a) BREQPTMNBBERBE
Summarised financial information from the unaudited T X R E B E QR %A R
management accounts of the principal associate, adjusted for Z RSB EACEREERE (B3
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the BT HREREHAR  WERHES
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are MHmERTPNE®EE) :

disclosed below:

2017 2016
—E2—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Gross amounts of Nanfang's assets MAEEREBEHE:
and liabilities:
Current assets mEEE 26,377 43,866
Non-current assets SEMENEE 51,250 63,562
Current liabilities mEBAE (12,333) (56,546)
Non-current liabilities SEREBE (10,310) (10,865)
Equity 1% 54,984 40,017
Revenue W= 64,410 69,421
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 5 48 & & % H (& 18) 12,680 (15,179)
Total comprehensive income 2EWNELTE 12,680 (15,179)
Dividend received from Nanfang 2 U m Tk E — —
Reconciled to the Group's interests in ¥ ANEB ISR H LR
Nanfang
Gross amounts of net assets of Nanfang 5 & & B (E &5 54,984 40,017
Group's effective interest REEBERER 20% 20%
Group's share of net assets of AEEFAEEANEERE
Nanfang 10,997 8,003
Goodwill RS 6,281 5,595
Carrying amount in the consolidated RGEAMEHRPHNREE
financial statements 17,278 13,598
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16 Interest in associates (Continued) 16 Fiib Bt E N T (E)

(@) Summary of financial information on associates
(Continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

(a) BMERAANUHEERNME (F)

FEEREANNE S QAR ER

2017 2016
—B—+tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT IT
Aggregate carrying amount of FEMBmETIEMEBEXR
individually immaterial associates in the — HYEf & R B M IR (E 4458
consolidated financial statements — 87
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share ZN£2 @ fT{h % S5 & 2 A)
of those associates’ loss from REBBEEEBARE
continuing operations (121) (7,521)
Total comprehensive income > HEW R ERE (121) (7,521)

(b) Impairment loss on interest in associate
As the recoverable amount of Nanfang was less than the
carrying amount, provision for impairment loss of
HK$3,000,000 was made in prior years. At 31 December 2017,
the Group carried out an impairment assessment for the
recoverable amount of Nanfang. The estimates of the
recoverable amount of Nanfang were based on the present
values of the budgeted future cash flows, discounted at the
market risk-adjusted discount rate of 14% (2016: 14%), by
reference to the projected volume, activity level and future
growth rates of the underlying business of Nanfang. The fair
value on which the recoverable amount is based on is
categorised as a Level 3 measurement. For the years ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016, same basis of
impairment measurement in respect of the interest in Nanfang
is performed by management. No additional or reversal of
provision for impairment is considered necessary.

(b) REEE N T BN RERSE

HREAHTKRESEERREDE &
£EE RS E 3 %3,000,0007TH)
BEBBELEG R-_T—+tF+=
A=+—B AKEEHEHHATKE
CREETRET G -EATKRESE
2EZm A HABEBOTERRE  EHK
ERARBEE  ERBERARELR
ENHRME K14% (ZT—F: 14%)
E’Jﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ?*ﬁﬁﬁiﬁwﬁaiﬁﬁﬁﬂutﬂa
Fre AT Bl EATKIBEN AR EED
BEIBFE-BE_T— t¢+_ﬁ
=+—BHERZZE—AF+ZA=+—H
HFE EEERARGEETEES
T 25 YR E o 18 78 1 58 N B BOR
ERFERD -

“ELFFER EZBEFEZERAA
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17 Interest in joint venture

17 Fith e g RaER

Details of the Group’s interest in a joint venture, which is

accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements are as follows:

Place of

Proportion
Particulars of of Group’s

TREJAEERGZAANERFTE - T)
RAEDERGEMBHRRARNOT

Proportion Proportion
of shares of share

establishment issued and effective  held by the held by a
Name of joint venture and operation paid up capital interest Company Subsidiary  Principal activity
A& LN i PN
BIR BETR Pt B Fiis R 5 RS
RENAER EEBE BRERAFE BHEEDH B BAtkk EFEER
ERIBRRBRERAA PRC RMB4,920,000 49% — 49%  Provision of e-commerce
e AR #4,920,0007C services

REEFHERS

As the recoverable amount of the joint venture was less than the

carrying amount, provision for impairment

loss of HK$1,280,000

was made in prior years. For the years ended 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016, there is no improvement in the financial
situation of the joint venture and no reversal of provision for

impairment of joint venture is recorded.

B

REZEARMAIKRE S EEAREEE K&
SEE RN BEFERAE1,280,0007T 8% A
JE‘HWEHH%% HE-_Z—tF+=A
=+t—BER-_ZE—ARE+-_A=1+—HIHF
ERE= RN 7%%‘#/&14&5&% I & 8515
AEARRERERD -

7

18 Other financial assets 18 HMMBEE
2017 2016
—EBE—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Available-for-sale debt securities at AR EETEMHAH
fair value L EEBES
— listed — W 367,181 407,115
Fair value of individually impaired 8 B 2R E 7] it & E &
available-for-sale debt securities MAREE 3,736 —
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18 H b Bt % & & (&)

18 Other financial assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group held corporate
bonds and classified the instruments as available-for-sale debt
securities with fair value changes recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. The debt securities are issued by corporate entities with

R_FE—tFER_FT—"F+_A=+—
H AEBRFRAELEGSF UKIAHEA
AHEEEBES MEARBEEHRE
b2 ERERER  WRBILREZTHAR
BERBERS CEERBETNEEESFE

credit quality commensurate with the return as considered EEREAEERRUEIOHBREE
acceptable to the Group.
As at 31 December 2017, a listed available-for-sale debt security is RZZE—+F+_A=+—H BHRETA

individually determined to be impaired on the basis of the
significant financial difficulty of the issuer which indicated that the
cost of the Group’s investment in them may not be fully recovered.
Impairment losses on these investments were recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)(i).

19 Trade receivables

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

19

B

BERYBEE BRAEENREKK
Al B SRR B - A b A S A
BFEERCHE - REBEAMZIK)RENE
AR WERENREBECNBEHER

i

F& UK AR 3K

R|REMR RERBHPFHE  BEERY
BRiie DTN T -

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Less than 1 month LR —1EA 17,664 17,463
1 to 3 months —E==1EA 5,315 6,137
3 to 12 months =z=+=-{@A 3,496 1,619
Over 12 months wmBet+=@A 2,458 810
28,933 26,029

The Group’s credit policy is set out in Note 26(a).

All the above balances are expected to be recovered within one year
and they are generally covered by deposits from customers (see
Note 21(ii)).

—E-LFEFER

AEBENEEBRBNA 226() °

TEH B ESRE AR —FRRE - RS
AEPRENRSARE (RHE210)) -

EZRETESEARLA
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19 Trade receivables (Continued) 19 FE UK BR X (4&)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due but £ %8 BB I 5 ([ Il 5k 58 88 4 AR 1 B IR R E &Y
neither individually nor collectively considered as impaired are as JEM IR BR B D AT A0
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired N7 f %60 B O B R (E 16,672 14,912
Less than 1 month past due wmEL R —1EA 4,123 4,758
1 to 3 months past due mH—=={EA 3,503 4,434
Over 3 months past due B ER R R =1 A 4,635 1,925
12,261 11,117
28,933 26,029
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide WEBHTERENERRBRERERFE
range of customers for which there was no recent history of B ZERP ISR R BN -
default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number B 260 HA I 7 A Y R Rk (B A P WOGR IR B % 2
of independent customers that have a good track record with the UERFPER ZEEPRAKENATEEE
Group. Based on past experience, management considers that no EHRRF -REBILER EEERAR B
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as REEERTEEANLZE  BRSHEKDH
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the RIER] 2 E - WHBERZEERTRR
balances are still considered fully recoverable. BEREE -
20 Other receivables and prepayments 20 Htt B K IE R FE I FRIE
All other receivables and prepayments are expected to be recovered FrE B EYCRTE KRB RIERFT R —F A
or recognised as expenses within one year. Wl sk R AR
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21 Trade creditors, accounts payable and 21 BB - ENREREME

other payables T+ R IE
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade creditors (Note 21(i) FERTBR R (K E213)) 15,838 19,088
Customer deposits received (Note 21(ii) B WEF&E (K1:21(i)) 140,772 145,719
Accrued charges and other payables FE & & B H i & 5 FRIE 43,491 42,876
200,101 207,683

(i) As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

() N|ESHAR - BEREHHE - BAE

trade creditors, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HEEREDTET
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month L — 18 A 15,702 17,439
1 to 3 months —Z==@A 136 1,649
15,838 19,088

(ii) Deposits received are monies received from customers before
they are allowed to make trade transactions through the use of
the Group’s systems. Generally, customers are only allowed to
incur transaction charges up to the amount deposited with the
Group. Deposits are refundable to customers on demand.

—E-LFEFER

(il ERBRERFFELECAAREENES
ETEZRZA A TP REAMEHNK
He—REF BEFPAUNRENRS
B EUNEPRAAKEXNNERER
Re-fZemEEPERTURE-

EZRETESEARLA
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22 Provision for long service payments

22 RERBERE

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZT—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

As at 1 January w—HA—H 3,035 3,033
Released/utilised BE®R/EBA — 9)
Provisions charged to profit or loss RiBm R HREOEE 58 11
As at 31 December WR+=ZA=+—H 3,093 3,035

23 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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AEERB(EERHERTRSF R
ARE(GEERBEIBRANER  RIZ®
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S RBUXEAETENEBRIRKG S -
RiRESHE  BTEERBEASERAE
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R5

(a) FBRRMERT &

24 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(a) Share option schemes

The Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme on 2
August 2000 which was amended on 11 September 2001 and
26 November 2002 respectively, and a Post-IPO share option
scheme on 14 October 2005, whereby the Directors are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at consideration of HK$1.00 per grant to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO share option
scheme can only be exercised after 12 months (25%), 24
months (60%) and 36 months (100%) respectively from the
commencement of the trading of the Company’s shares on
SEHK being 28 October 2005, and have a duration of 10 years
from the date on which the grant was made. The exercise
prices per share for the options are HK$0.90 and HK$1.25.

The share options granted under the Post-IPO share option
scheme vest after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) and 36
months (100%) respectively from date of grant and then
exercisable within a period of 10 years. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each share upon the exercise of
an option shall be determined by the board of directors and
shall be not less than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK's daily quotations sheet on the date, which must be
a business day, of the written offer of such option (the
“Date of Grant”);

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK's daily quotations sheets for the five business

days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

RRAR-ZEZZFNA_HEMER
RFEBRATERETE (DR -2F
—FAAT-—BRZZEZE=-_F+—A
“+RBEF) YR _ZTZERAF+A
T IO B BB R B AR AR 1R B AR R AT
BB EFERNBERAFAEH
EE(BEASHEETEMNARDNES)
AR RBARARMDHBRE  RE
RERHE L EREEE1.00T - 8K
BREETESEATRE - BRAQA
B H R

S = NYNETEN L Sl g e o Rl
BhE R-ZZAF+A-TNABRR
NREIRD AR ETBBHIMEBEFT
TEAA —tHEBEAR=+REA
& 73 Al 2 Bl 47 £ H $25% ~ 60% K
100% B RLHE © BB IR A U B i i
PR AR+ BRENERITE
B R 150.907T & B #51.257T -

RIEBXAFABREERETEREN
BRE EREBAYPEFT @A
—tHEAR=TAEAR% HHEB
25% ~ 60% &% 100% - B8 1% A 1A + & Hi
WITEE - AT EEREMARTRRG
MM RERESRESEET BT
BILR T &EE

iy RNERENEEZHAH(REA
H BAREXR) RHNEE
B R RERMAINEET BB R
P B9 Y5 7 1B

(i) ZRFEEAMAEEER - KK
REBBMIMEARERMAIESR
R AT H) P T E - K

i)y B fpEI{E °
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

(@) Share option schemes (Continued)

On 16 March 2009, the above Share Option Schemes were
discontinued and replaced by a “Share Award Scheme”.
However, share options previously awarded under the Share
Option Schemes remain valid and subject to the same terms
and conditions. The Share Award Scheme was wound up on 19

November 2013.

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme 2014 on 9 May
2014, whereby options will be granted to eligible persons,
including Directors, employees, consultants, business associates
or advisers as the Board of the Company may identify from
time to time (“Grantees”), entitling them to subscribe for
shares of the Company, subject to acceptance of the Grantees
and the payment of HK$1.00 by each of the Grantees upon
acceptance of the options. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

The share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
2014 vest after 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 36
months (75%) and 48 months (100%) respectively from date of
grant and then exercisable within a period of 10 years. The
Grantee may exercise the share options subject to the
conditions in respective option offering letter. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each share upon the exercise of
an option shall be determined by the board of directors and

shall be not less than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of such

option; and

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of such

option.
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FERMD AR 2+ 303248 R 6 R B A5 A 47
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ARRAR-ZE-—NEFRANBRH-F
—EBRERE ARAREEGERT
HHREz2EEBAL(BREES EE -
HEBER  EBBHAFBABRR) (R
ADRLERE BT REENZEAL
DA - HEEFRER ABER A E
B BERARARKABRERAX
#1007 - FHBRER TRHAE A
BANBE - RARR LB -

BIE =T — VU 4F B8 AR AT &35 T A B8 IR
B oEEEABET @A - =+m/m
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T o ETEBRE M AR TRRMG X
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions 24 URELEIURPAEERN

(Continued) X5 (&)
(a) Share option schemes (Continued) (a) BRESE (E)
The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the T SCE DI A R AT A B AR R D R
year are as follows, whereby all share options are settled by RAA - B MEBEBREUAROED
physical delivery of shares: FREEZKRWT :
Number of Contractual
instruments  Vesting conditions life of options
BRED
IAYE HEARH EHER
Options granted to directors:
ERFESHBRE:
— on 30 June 2014 4,600,000 12 months (100%) from 30 June 2014 10 years
—RZE-—NESA=1H BEZZ—WFERNA=+THEF12(EA(100%) T
— on 30 June 2014 1,700,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RZE-—NFESA=1H 36 months (75%) and 48 months (100%) T
from 30 June 2014
E-Z—WEASA=THEF12EA25%)
2418 B (50%) ~ 3618 A (75%) %4818 A(100%)
— on 2 July 2015 800,000  100% on 2 July 2015 10 years
—RZE-—AFtAZH R-ZZ—-HF+HZHF100% T&
— on 2 July 2015 1,700,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RZE-RFtA=H 36 months (75%) and 48 months (100%) T4
from 2 July 2015
E-Z-—RF+tRA-HEH12EA25%)
2418 B (50%) ~ 3618 A (75%) %481 A(100%)
— on 4 July 2016 3,000,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RZE-R"FtANA 36 months (75%) and 48 months (100%) T
from 4 July 2016
BEZZ—A"FtAMBEE12EF25%)
2418 B (50%) ~ 3618 A (75%) %481 A(100%)
— on 28 April 2017 3,900,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RZE—tFNA=+NH 36 months (75%) and 48 months (100%) T

from 28 April 2017
BEZZ—+tFmEA =+ N\BEH12(8A25%)
2418 B (50%) ~ 361@ A (75%) %4818 A(100%)

“ELFFER EZBEFEZERAA
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

(@) Share option schemes (Continued)

R 5 (&)

(a) %8 RR M &) ()

A IR ELEES ARG BERD

Number of Contractual
instruments  Vesting conditions life of options
BREN
TEHE HERHY EREFH
Options granted to employees:
ERFEENBRE:
— on 19 March 2007 454,542 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) and 10 years
—RZZE2LF=A+NE 36 months (100%) from 19 March 2007 TF
“ETEF=ATNAHEF12EA25%)
2418 A (60%) 53618 A (100%)
— on 14 April 2008 198,718 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) and 10 years
—RZZEZN\FWMA+IMAH 36 months (100%) from 14 April 2008 T4
ZZTN\FWNA AR 12(E A (25%)
2418 A (60%) 53618 A (100%)
— on 30 June 2014 2,800,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RZE-NESA=1H 36 months (75%) and 48 months (100%) T
from 30 June 2014
B-Z—WFEAA=THE12A(25%)
2418 A (50%) - 361& A (75%) K% 481& A (100%)
— on 2 July 2015 2,600,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—R-ZE—AF+tA=H 36 months (75%) and 48 months (100%) T4
from 2 July 2015
BEZZ—RF+RA-BEH12A25%)
2418 A (50%) - 361& A (75%) K% 481& A (100%)
— on 4 July 2016 2,800,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RZE-R"FtAMNA 36 months (75%) and 48 months (100%) T
from 4 July 2016
EZZ— A "FtAMBRE12EA25%)
2418 A (50%) - 361& A (75%) K% 481& A (100%)
— on 28 April 2017 3,000,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (50%), 10 years
—RZE—tFWA=+N\R 36 months (75%) and 48 months (100%) T

from 28 April 2017

BE-Z—tFWA-+NA\REE12EA25%)

2418 A (50%)  361& A (75%) 524818 A (100%)
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions 24 URELEIURPAEERN

(Continued) X5 (48)
(a) Share option schemes (Continued) (a) BRESE (E)
Number of Contractual
instruments  Vesting conditions life of options
BREN
THEE BEHKH® EHES
Options granted to ex-employeet:
ERTFRIES MBRE:
— on 30 June 2014 2,400,000 100% on 30 June 2014 10 years
—RZE—MFARA=1H RZE—MFEANA=THE100% T4
— on 2 July 2015 2,400,000  100% on 2 July 2015 10 years
— RZE-AFtA=H RZZ—HF+ A =H5100% TF
— on 4 July 2016 1,600,000  100% on 4 July 2016 10 years
—RZE-—RFELAMHE R=Z—RF+LAMHE100% TF
33,953,260
*  Ex-employee refers to Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, the former t RIESERIHITEERAKLFR{TEAE
Executive Director and ex-CEO of the Company who is holding a HRIEFIE £ - B 15 H B #6,400,000(7
total of 6,400,000 share options of the Company. KREJERAE -

“ELFFER EZBEFEZERAA
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a) Share option schemes (Continued)
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

20 LIREGEESLIRDAERN

R 5 (%)

(a) #& M EERT & (&)
FBRENEE RINEFHTERENAT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
¥ ¥
TEE EREYE 7B BhEHE
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BE¥T TR BT Fig
Outstanding as at R—A—BHEERITE
1 January 1.76 27,053 1.83 20,022
Granted during the year FREH 1.592 6,900 157 7,400
Exercised during the year FRITE 1.42 (100) 1.42 (268)
Forfeited during the year FRRIK 1.46 (455) 1.77 (101)
Outstanding as at KR+-ZA=+—8
31 December RN 1.73 33,398 1.76 27,053
Exercisable as at R+tZA=+—8
31 December EEGR: 18,974 15,778

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$1.62 (2016:
HK$1.67).

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2017 had exercise
prices ranging from HK$1.01 to HK$1.90 (2016: ranging from
HK$1.01 to HK$1.90) and weighted average remaining
contractual life ranging from 1 year to 10 years (2016: ranging
from 1 year to 10 years).
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24 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Black Scholes Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input into this
model.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% 3R & MY 5 ()

A IR EEES URGBERD

R 5 (&)

(b) BRENAAEERRR
ERAREBRERBEMESHRBEAA
BE D2REXLBRESDAEE
AHE-EERHBRENGHAREED
RIFM DA AT R E < b AR
B RBRENAOFH -

2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—RF
Fair value of share options and BREN A EBERRH HK$0.205 HK$0.180
assumption 7 #£0.205 T 7 #0.1807T
Share price I (& HK$1.592 HK$1.57
7 #1.592 7T & #51.577T
Exercise price TEE HK$1.592 HK$1.57
7 #1.592 7T & #51.577T
Expected volatility (expressed 8 HA O 08 (3240 ) 52 &7 R A
as weighed average volatility R P A 2 N 39 0% 1R
used in the modelling under 2751)
Black Scholes Model) 31.0% 30.0%
Option life B e e A R 5 years 5 years
54 54
Expected dividends TE HA R B 6.6% 6.7%
Risk-free interest rate mERTE(REBBRNE
(based on the yield of HFamEREHE)
Hong Kong Government Bonds) 1.149% 0.589%

The expected volatility is made with reference to the daily
historical volatilities of the Company with period commensurate
to the expected option life. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

TR IR Y2 E AR R B RTEHER
REXHBRERRHENERE LK
fBIEH - REIRR B VIR BEREME °
REFENTBRRWOEER A5
FEARBEMNMGE -

BRERENEIRUREHKARL -
AEMAERERBERELBEH I ARE
BRI E B L IR G o & B AR
ST AR

“ELFFER EZBEFEZERAA

157



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B 7 ¥ & Y 5E o)

25 Capital and reserves 25 EX K # e
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BEHE BT
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBFYRERZIADNEAEREL
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out BB RHINGEEERESHR - AR
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of B ERSOBAFEVNEFRNESF
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity BT
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out as
below:
The Company ARH
Share Capital Retained Total
capital reserve profits equity
B BXGHE REBF BRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2016 RZZ—-"¥—A—H 295,415 3,092 65,413 363,920
Dividends approved in respect of L& EE iR 2
the previous year (Note 11) (Hizt11) — — (63,553) (63,553)
Issue of shares (Note 25(b)(ii)) BIRRAD (A i225(0)7)) 455 (74) — 381
Equity-settled share-based IR B W ARD A
transactions ERNRS — 1,156 — 1,156
Lapse of share options BIREER M - (5 5 -
Total comprehensive income AEEZENEEE
for the year — — 67,863 67,863
Dividends declared in respect of A& E Bk K
the current year (Note 11) &8 (hz11) — — (19,066) (19,066)

As at 31 December 2016 and 1 R=ZF—R%F

January 2017 TZA=Z+t-8RK
“2-t5-f-8H 295,870 4,169 50,662 350,701
Dividends approved in respect of EEEE#ER S
the previous year (Note 17) (Mizt11) — — (50,059) (50,059)
Issue of shares (Note 25(b)(ii)) BTl (B #22500)0)) 169 (27) = 142
Equity-settled share-based AR 45 B30 bARR 17
transactions AR S — 984 — 984
Lapse of share options i A 5 2 - (98) 98 =
Total comprehensive income AEE2EKEAE
for the year — — 75,401 75,401
Dividends declared in respect of — AEE B R FHIREL
the current year (Note 11) RE (W) — = (25,427) (25,427)
As at 31 December 2017 AZE—+F
+=ZA=+-H 296,039 5,028 50,675 351,742
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25 Capital and reserves (Continued) 25 ER K # s ()
(b) Share capital (b) B
(i) Issued share capital (i) BTN
2017 2016
—E-+tF ZE-RF
Number of Number of
shares Amounts shares Amounts
BAHE K] B 3 0 B ok
in ‘000 HK$'000 in"000 HK$'000
TR BETT F & BT T
Ordinary shares, issued ZER BETR
and fully paid: BRE:
As at 1 January wn—HA—H 794,486 295,870 794,217 295,415
Shares issued under share 1R {% i i & 71 &1
option schemes BITHRG 100 169 269 455
As at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8 794,586 296,039 794,486 295,870

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company

do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

(ii) Shares issued under share option schemes
During the year, share options were exercised to subscribe
for 100,000 ordinary shares (2016: 269,000 ordinary
shares) in the Company at a consideration of HK$142,000
(2016: HK$381,000) of which all was credited to share
capital in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. Capital reserve of HK$27,000
HK$74,000) has been transferred correspondingly to the
share capital account in accordance with the policy set out

in Note 1(p)(ii).

R AR FBCR BB H 1350 - A
NEEBERIY EEE -

EEBRRE AR ERRARREIK
BHRE  YEERARAKRNE L
RERAE - BEOHEK R -ME%
BERUARRBTEEZARSE

(i) RIEBRETERTRSE

FA - BRERE ANLEEE142,000
THRE(ZZT - NF:BE
381,0007T) 17 ff B A& # - R B
100,000l AN Al LB (ZF — <
F:269,000REBR) - RERS
CRAMERDY - BEEAREZHE AR
Ao &K 5B ¥27,000L (= F
—NE B T74,000T) B IR B
T(p)(ii) B 35 B R 88 18 &5 B AN B ©

(2016:
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25 Capital and reserves (Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)

25 &R K fi# tm ()

(b) BRZA ()

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at (iii) AMEBRKRBBRKRTEBERE
the end of the reporting period: B R K

2017 2016
ZE-tF —E-RE
Exercise Number of Number of
Exercise period TES price options options
fTEfE BRESZE BREHE

19 March 2007 to 18 March 2017 ZZZ+E=-ATNEE HK$1.42
—Z2—+F=A+/\H 1427 — 454,542

14 April 2008 to 13 April 2018 “ZEEN\EMATHAZE HK$1.01
—E-\EMA+=H 101 198,718 198,718

30 June 2014 to 29 June 2024 —E-NERA=TAZ HK$1.90
ZZEZWERAZTNA A #1.907T 11,500,000 11,500,000

2 July 2015 to 1 July 2025 “E-n%tAZRZ HK$1.78
—Z-A%+A—H #8178 7,500,000 7,500,000

4 July 2016 to 3 July 2026 SN s = HK$1.57
ZZZREtAZH 157 7,400,000 7,400,000

28 April 2017 to 27 April 2027 “E—+tFEMAZFTN\RE HK$1.592
ZEZAEMAZTER B®1592T 6,800,000 —
33,398,718 27,053,260

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options and awarded shares granted to
directors and employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for share
based payments set out in Note 1(p)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
().

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale debt securities held at
the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy in Note 1(i).
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25 Capital and reserves (Continued)

(d) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$50,675,000 (2016: HK$50,662,000). After the end of
the reporting period, the directors proposed a final dividend of
HK 6.3 cents per ordinary share (2016: HK 6.3 cents per
share), amounting to HK$50,059,000 (2016: HK$50,053,000).
This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.

(e) Capital management
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due
for the foreseeable future. The Group has no external
borrowing at the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed with due regard to the capital management objectives
of the Group.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

26 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are limited
by the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and investments in debt securities. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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26 Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

When registering as a subscriber, a customer is automatically
assigned with a credit limit based on the amount of its deposit
or bank guarantee and is normally given credit periods ranging
from one day to one month. Credit terms offered by other
companies of the Group are based on individual commercial
terms negotiated with customers. The amount of deposit is
determined on a customer-by-customer basis, depending on its
usage of the Company’s services. Generally, if a customer
reaches or exceeds its credit limit before the normal billing
cycle, an ad hoc bill will be issued to the customers for
payment by bank direct debit. However, if a customer is in
default of payment for whatever reason, its account
automatically suspended from operation until all outstanding
charges have been fully settled. For that reason, customers may
also, and often do, place deposits with the Company from time

to time to cover their charges.

There is, however, no credit policy for the Company’s ad hoc
customers who are required to pay the relevant charges
(including service charges, service centre handling fees and
Government fees) in full when using the Company over-the-

counter services.

Investments in debt securities are normally in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, issued by corporate
with sound credit standing (Note 18). Given their high credit
standing, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. Nevertheless, the
Group's financial advisor monitors the situation and will notify
the Group of any change. In addition, the Investment
Committee undertakes annual reviews of the Group's

exposures.

The Group's exposure to credit risk from trade receivables is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 5.5% (2016: 6.1%) and 19.3% (2016: 23.0%) of the
total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest

customer and the five largest customers respectively.
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26 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have
any significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position. The
Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 79.

Liquidity risk

All cash management of the Group, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and raising of loans, if needed, to
cover expected cash demands, are managed centrally by the
Company. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s current liabilities of
HK$204,198,000, including trade creditors, accounts payable
and other payables of HK$200,101,000 as indicated in Note 217,
were due to be repaid or recognised as income during the next
financial year or repayable upon demand. The directors of the
Group are of the opinion that the Group would have sufficient
funds to meet its obligations as and when they fall due, having
regard to the following:

i.  The Group will continue to generate positive operating cash
flows; and

ii. it is not expected that significant customer deposits are
required to be refunded in the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.
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26 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from investments
in fixed income debt securities (Note 78) and floating rate bank
balances, which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease the Group's
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$151,000 (2016: HK$218,000). The fair value reserve in the
consolidated equity would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$5,657,000 (2016: HK$6,007,000) in response.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those fixed income debt securities held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate bank balances
held by the Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same

basis for 2016 for cash flow interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
available-for-sale debt securities denominated in United States
dollars and investments in PRC incorporated entities. Given the
fact that the exchange rates of United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars are currently pegged, management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated
with the investment in available-for-sale debt securities
denominated in United States dollars. The Group has not
hedged the foreign exchange exposure in relation to its
investments in PRC incorporated entities.
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 i EREER A AEE (E)
(Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (e) A REEE

HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement categorises fair value
measurements into a three-level hierarchy. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available

e level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2017, the available-for-sale debt securities at
their fair value (Note 18) of HK$363,445,000 and
HK$3,736,000 held by the Group fall into Level 1 and Level 3
respectively, of the fair value hierarchy described above.

(i) Corporate bonds categorised in level 1
The fair value of corporate bonds traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period and included in Level 1, except one
corporate bond which has been transferred to level 3 as
detailed below.
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26 Financial risk management and fair values 26 ¥ EBREER A A EE (F)
(Continued)

(e) D REMEGE (B)
(i) PERAE=ROLCEBSH

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(ii) Corporate bonds categorised in level 3

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
transferred a corporate bond from Level 1 into Level 3.
This is because the issuer of the corporate bond
encountered financial difficulties and the bond has been
suspended from trading during the year. The
disappearance of an active market meant that significant
unobservable price information and judgement were used
in the determination of fair value. The Group relied upon
a broker indicative quote to determine the fair value and
considered it representative because the value was similar
to a price transacted over-the-counter near the reporting
date.

Except for the abovementioned, there were no other
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3 (2016: Nil). The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer. The date of transfer is deemed to be
30 June 2017.

The movements during the year in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

FARE=ZRAA EE B EE S
AR BA B

HE-_T—+tF+-A=+—8H1I
FE -AFE-—HLrEBESFHE—
MEBAFE=H - WIHHREEES
BOAABGHMBRESE mEEES
ERFANYFEE - KKAERMH
EREBTAABERDCFEREAT
AEHRERERRAE AEEG
B—EEENETEREEEAR
BE ITREEHEEAREKME -
RRABBEESRERE AHPATEN
BN 5B -

BB E—RARE-_BRZE
WHEEMESR TEAF=-REA
FELE(CE-RF HE) - AKH
MBRANEMHHEHERNER
ERHRLAHAMBERDABESER
ZHMER - BHRAHBER/ T
—tFRA=+AH-

FNEBE=RARBEFEEHK
REBMT

2017

—E—+tF

HK$'000

BT

Opening balance HAF 45 4 —
Transfer into Level 3 on 30 June 2017 RZBE—tEFXNA=ZTHEAF =R 16,117
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss TE=ERANREEE (8,242)
Proceeds from sales 4 6 T 1S 38 (3,914)
Others HAh (225)
Closing balance HE R 4 84 3,736
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26 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(ii) Corporate bonds categorised in level 3 (Continued)
Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)
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26 HHEBREER D EE(F)

(e) AABERE (H)

(i) 2ERE=ZROLXES (H)
FARE=ZRAA EBEFEAIEE T
ERBABIE ()

2017
—E—tHF
HK$°000
BT T
Impairment loss for the year included RBEHRNBEHENEEFG ABRE
in profit or loss for the assets disposed of ) R (B B 1B
during the reporting period 4,139
Impairment loss for the year included Fﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ?—rﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁk?émﬂ’]
in profit or loss for the assets held FA
at the end of the reporting period 4,103
Total impairment losses for the year included in 5+ A B E AR EEBEE
8,242

profit or loss

Impairment of other financial assets

During the year, the Group considered impairment indications
existed for an available-for-sale debt security and carried out an
impairment assessment for that available-for-sale debt security.
Based on management’s assessment, impairment losses of
HK$8,242,000 has been recognised in the profit or loss being
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of
amortisation) and its fair value.

All other financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.
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27 Commitments

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

There was no capital commitments outstanding as at 31
December 2017 not provided for in the financial statements
(2016: HK$504,000). They were mainly in respect of the
hardware and software for the Group for 2016.

Operating leases

The total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of property rentals are
payable as follows:

27 A IE

(a)

(b)

BRI

R-_TE—+F+-_A=+—8 #EH
HFRITEARRUBREBHE 2 ENEE
(ZZF—"F : B ¥504,0007T) ° I T5E
BHEAEBN T — NFHEEFHRE -

REER
REFAIBHELEMEE  RARKEND
EMEESMFERENT

2017 2016

—EBE—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BB T T

Within one year —F A 470 603
More than one year but —FRERLFRN

within five years — 272

470 875

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of six
months to three years, with an option to renew the lease when
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.
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28 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in

these financial statements, the Group entered into the following

material related party transactions:

(a)

(b)

Recurring transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group provided
security solution services to TAL Apparel Limited (“TAL"”), an
associate of a substantial shareholder and generated revenue of
HK$64,000 (2016: HK$70,000). The Group also generated
HK$32,000 (2016: HK$51,000) from TAL for providing
electronic solutions in processing certain government related
documents.

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s executive directors as disclosed

in Note 9 and certain of the highest paid employees as

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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28 ERBEBALIRS

RSV BRREMEHTRENRIS REH
S AEBTETUTEARBALRS :

(a) REETHRS
BHE-_ZT—+tH&E+-_A=+—HBLHF
E-AEBRBEEZXRERDA
([TALD(BEZEREMEZ A)RER
275 RRB 815 W B 64,000 (ZF
— N4 B #70,0007T) - AEBATIR G
BRIEE THBNEAXHNEFRRTR
TN M TALER 15 7 832,000 (= T — X
& : B ¥51,0007T) °

(b) TEEEAEHMS
TEEEABME (BRERHEO K E
BERARBRITES N FIERRA
AIOMBRBECRETRSFEENH

disclosed in Note 710, is as follows: RIE)MAT -
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 18,680 15,295
Post-employment benefits BIEEEZ R 72 72
Equity compensation benefits A% A< 46 8 48 624 640
19,376 16,007

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 6(a)).

29 Contingent liabilities

Pursuant to the terms of the contracts with the Government, the
Group has obtained two bank guarantees totaling HK$2,166,000
(2016: two bank guarantees totaling HK$2,166,000) from banks for

the

due performance of the contracts by the Group. The bank

guarantees and performance bond are secured by a charge over
deposit totaling HK$2,166,000 (2016: HK$2,166,000).

e @Est A[MEERAI(RAH6G)) -

295 B8 &\

BIRERFITIIOENGR  AEEREZS
BITEHBERTESMBRITERE LB
2,166,0007T (= — /N F : MIBRITERE
H A #2,166,0007T) © R IT AR KB 4R
A& H£ & #2,166,000L (ZF — 75 F B #
2,166,0007T) 17 5K &) R R VE R IR -
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30 Company-level statement of financial 30 2 3B M B & AR R &

position
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE R & 21,740 24,969
Interest in associates P Bt & R el 16 16,955 13,815
Interest in subsidiaries Fril Bt B 2 Al #E 15 81,613 80,134
120,308 118,918
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JEUs BR 3K 18,127 14,785
Other receivables and e WA R FE AN B
prepayments 350,359 395,002
Deposits with bank WITFER 4,246 4,286
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEE 66,210 31,577
438,942 445,650
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade creditors, accounts payable RN B ZREK
and other payables H th FEAS 3B 201,100 207,954
Taxation IE 3,493 2,881
204,593 210,835
Net current assets REBEEFE 234,349 234,815
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABEE 354,657 353,733
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30 Company-level statement of financial 30 2 & /B M /Y Bf & ik R & (&)
position (Continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B et BET T PR FIT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Provision for long service RERIS € BHE
payments 2,753 2,736
Deferred taxation EER IR 162 296
2,915 3,032
NET ASSETS EEFE 351,742 350,701
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital & A 25(b)(i) 296,039 295,870
Reserves # 55,703 54,831
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 351,742 350,701
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 KEFEeN T \F=ZA=+=AHEK
March 2018. 0T o
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SB.S., J.P. E
Chairman ZFT3/EE L SBS, JP.
TSE Kam Keung HITEE
Executive Director i 85 58
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31 Non-adjusting events after the reporting 31 REMERABRNEE

period

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK 6.3 cents per share (2016: HK 6.3 cents per share)
for the year ended 31 December 2017, amounting to
HK$50,059,000 (2016: HK$50,053,000). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

32 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the annual
accounting period ended 31 December
2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective

for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with 1 January 2018

customers

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based
payment: Classification and measurement of

1 January 2018

share-based payment transactions

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions 1 January 2018

and advance consideration

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax 1 January 2019

treatments
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32 Possible

impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the annual
accounting period ended 31 December
2017 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are disclosed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially applied
in the Group's interim financial report for the six months ended 30
June 2018. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standards are
initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39 Ffinancial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, including the
measurement of impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification of
financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use the
exemption from restating comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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32 Possible impact of amendments,

new

standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for

the annual

accounting period ended 31 December

2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s financial

statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). The classification for
debt instruments is determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairments and
gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in profit or loss.

After assessing its business model for the corporate bonds held
by the Group, the Group considered the past practice has been
(and the Group’s intention remains) to hold the corporate
bonds in a business model with a flexible investment policy that
may result in holding a bond to collect its contractual cash
flows as well as in selling a bond (“hold to collect and sell”).
Consequently, the Group assessed that the business model
achieved objective both by collecting contractual cash flow and
selling the corporate bonds. The corporate bonds, which are
currently classified as available-for-sale, would be measured at

FVTOCI from the date of initial application of HKFRS 9,

subject

to whether the financial assets that the Group will hold at the
time of adopting HKFRS 9 (or purchase thereafter) would have
contractual cash flows that represent solely payments of
principal and interest (the “SPPI test”). Based on the Group’s
preliminary assessment and by applying judgement on fulfilment
of the SPPI test, the Group expects that its corporate bonds
currently measured at available-for-sale will be classified as

FVTOCI upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
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32 Possible

impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for

the annual

accounting period ended 31 December
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39,
except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a
financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to
changes of that financial liability’'s own credit risk to be
recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does not
have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore
this new requirement may not have any impact on the Group
on adoption of HKFRS 9.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is
recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
the asset and the facts and circumstances. This new impairment
model may result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on
the Group’s trade receivables and other financial assets
(including corporate bonds to be classified as FVTOCI). Based on
preliminary assessment, if the Group were to adopt the new
impairment requirements at 31 December 2017, the expected
accumulated impairment loss at that date would not be
materially different as compared with that recognised under
HKAS 39. The assessment made by the entity is preliminary.
The new standard will require the entity to revise its accounting
processes and internal control, and these changes are not yet
complete.
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1

32 Possible

7% R R W 5E m)

impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the annual
accounting period ended 31 December
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the
existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has
identified the following areas which are expected to be affected:
The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in Note 1(d).
Currently, revenue arising from the provision of services is
recognised when services have been provided to customers and
subscription fees are recognised over time, whereas revenue from
the sale of goods is generally recognised when the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control of the promised good or service in the contract. HKFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(@) When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the entity
performs;

(b) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

(c)  When the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.
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32 Possible

impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the annual
accounting period ended 31 December
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any
of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not likely
to have significant impact on how it recognises revenue from
provision of GETS services. For Commercial Services, Security
Solutions and Other Services, revenue recognition would depend on
terms of the contract and enforceability of any specific performance
clauses in that contract, which may vary depending on the
jurisdiction in which the contract would be enforced. This will result
in revenue being recognised earlier than the current accounting

policy.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect transition
method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and will recognise the
cumulative effect on initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. As allowed by HKFRS
15, the Group plans to apply the new requirements only to
contracts that are not completed before 1 January 2018. Since the
number of “open” contracts for Commercial Services, Security
Solutions and Other Services at 31 December 2017 is limited, the
Group expects that the transition adjustment to be made upon the
initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material. However, the
expected changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group's financial results from 2018
onwards. The new standard will require the entity to revise its
accounting processes and internal controls, and these changes are
not yet complete.
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1

32 Possible

7% R R W 5E m)

impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the annual
accounting period ended 31 December
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 1(j), currently the Group classifies leases into
operating leases depending on the classification of the lease. The
Group enters into some leases as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish
between finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement
date of the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of
the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months
or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on
the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in Note 27(b), at 31
December 2017 the Group's future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases amount to HK$470,000 for
properties, which is payable within 1 year after the reporting date.
If the Group renews the lease agreement with lease term more than
12 months, the future minimum lease payment may therefore need
to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use
assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets
and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on adoption
of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of the
practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. The Group has decided not to early adopt HKFRS 16
in its 2018 consolidated financial statements.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEEHME

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE-t#F “T-RE —Z-nf —T-mE =%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BT T BETT BETT
Results E4
(vear ended 31 December) (Bz2+=A=+—H
IFE)
Revenue Yz 241,830 231,302 222,719 226,293 230,006
Profit from operations gEmF 94,169 91,931 85,982 83,646 96,105
Share of results of associates AT {5 B & A A% 4E 2,415 (10,557) 6,596 6,888 120
Share of result of MitaERmER
joint venture — — — (409) (2,750)
Impairment loss on interest REEDRERZ
in associate REBE - — — (3,000) —
Impairment loss on interest REEDRFAERL
in joint venture HEEE - — - (1,280) —
Impairment loss on other EtmEBEERBER
financial assets (8,242) — — — _
Profit before taxation B %t Al A 88,342 81,374 92,578 85,845 93,475
Taxation HIE (14,222) (2,122) (11,174) (11,662) (13,027)
Profit for the year AEERF 74,120 79,252 81,404 74,183 80,448
Attributable to: UTATERE:
Equity shareholders of ARARERFEA
the Company 74,120 79,252 81,404 74,183 80,511
Non-controlling interest IR E S — — — — (63)
Profit for the year KEFEA 74,120 79,252 81,404 74,183 80,448
Assets and Liabilities BERERE
(as at 31 December) (R+=A=+—-H)
Total non-current assets FRBDEELE 427,254 465,918 293,609 142,094 147,082
Total current assets MBEELE 134,670 98,706 283,119 469,980 463,417
Total assets BEBE 561,924 564,624 576,728 612,074 610,499
Total non-current liabilities FrHEBEAR (3.316) (3,449) (3,548) (3.432) (4,007)
Total current liabilities mBMEELSE (204,198) (210,824) (212,531) (231,514) (233,536)
Total liabilities BfERR (207,514) (214,273) (216,079) (234,946) (237,543)
Net assets BEFE 354,410 350,351 360,649 377,128 372,956
ZE—tFFH ESBEFESERAA
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Other Financial Assets
HMtB K& E

Other financial assets held as at 31 December 2017 with nominal value
at US$3 million are as follows:

UWTAR-ZE—+F+-_A=+—HBFRHA8E
183,000,000 JT 19 H i B 75 & £ -

Issuer Principal business Coupon  Nominal value  Maturity date
BITA TEER EEA=E HE ZHAE
US$'000
TER

Sino-Ocean Land Treasure Finance | Limited Real Estate 4.625% 3,000 30 Jul 2019
BEEMEBMIBRADA i E —Z-hFEtLA=t+H
Zhaohai Investment (BVI) Limited Industrial Other 4% 3,000 23 Jul 2020

HthT% —Z-RELAZ+=H
Sunshine Life Insurance Corporation Limited Life Insurance 3.15% 3,000 20 Apr 2021
BXASRBEROERADA ASRE —E-FfmMA=+H
Chongging Nan'an Urban Construction & Industrial Other 3.625% 3,000 19 Jul 2021

Development (Group) Co., Ltd. Hh T2 —E-—-%tAt+hAH

EETHFEATEREE (RE)ERAH
BOC Aviation Limited Commercial Finance 2.375% 3,000 15 Sept 2021
FEMEREBRA A BELH —Z-_—-f¥AATHAH
Union Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Life Insurance 3% 3,000 19 Sept 2021
ERABRBRBROAERA A AERRE - —FAATNAE
Bluestar Finance Holdings Limited Chemicals 3.5% 3,000 30 Sep 2021

193 —EZ-fRA=+H
China Great Wall International Holdings Ill Limited Financial Services 2.625% 3,000 27 Oct 2021

2 AR —Z--%+A=++H
China Cinda Finance (2017) | Limited Financial Services 3.65% 3,000 09 Mar 2022

2 AR ZT-ZF=ANA
ICBCIL Finance Co. Limited Commercial Finance 3.375% 3,000 05 Apr 2022
THREREERBEERAA EELH —T--_FMNARRA
Sinochem International Development Pte. Ltd. Chemicals 3.125% 3,000 25 Jul 2022

193 R _H+A-+HA
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Investor Relations and Key Dates

REEBREREEZRH

The Company encourages two-way communication with both its
institutional and individual investors. Extensive information about the
Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report. There is regular
communication with institutional and individual investors. Enquiries from
individuals on matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of
the Company are welcome and are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

Financial Calendar
Closure of Register of Members:
— to ascertain shareholders entitlement

to attend and vote at the 2018
Annual General Meeting

8 May-11 May 2018
(both days inclusive)

— to ascertain shareholders qualified
for the Final Dividend

17 May-21 May 2018
(both days inclusive)

2018 Annual General Meeting 11 May 2018

Final Dividend Payment Date On or about 30 May 2018

Listings

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 28 October 2005.

Annual Report 2017

This Annual Report 2017, in both English and Chinese, is now available
in printed form as well as on the Company’s website at www.tradelink.
com.hk and the website of HKEXnews at www.hkexnews.hk

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — 00536

Registered Office

11/F & 12/F

Tower B, Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 2599 1600
Fax: +852 2506 0188

ARE—ESBEEMBREE REAREEE
HERER ARAEBNARENTERFIR
WeARmEEMEREREE REAREELER
B EAALTREFEAFRIBERRARFE
BEEH BULEARARE ARAHKEHER
REFEEH -

Bt % B
EEHBRABFEE:

- NERARLR_T-N\F “2-\fEANR

RREFREIRNE LRRZRE EEAT-H
(BFEEMA)

- KBEATERZAREREZ “2-\FEATLA
¥ ERA-+-H
(RFEEMA)

"2 \ERRBEAS “2-\fEAt+-H

AARERER “E-\FRA=TRAMK

i)

AR E—ZETERF+A-+\BREES
B 2% 5B R A EAR b e
—E-LtEFER

H Z Tt FFROPEIRAEGEDRIA
IR Al A A 2 &) B 48 shwww . tradelink.com.hk & &
BHAXSHAERAANEE S S Hwww.
hkexnews.hk T~ & °

% 131X 5%
BEEBAR B FAR A A— 00536
HMRERE

EBE®
ME A E635

B ST LB
1118 R 121

T 3% +852 2599 1600
{8 & : +852 2506 0188
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Investor Relations and Key Dates (Continued)
WEEBRREZB B )

Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2862 8555

Fax: +852 2865 0990

Investor Relations

Ms. TSANG Kit Yee, Iris

Manager (Investor Relations and Corporate Communications)
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited

11/F & 12/F

Tower B, Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2161 4370

Fax: +852 2506 0188

Email: ir@tradelink.com.hk

Website

www.tradelink.com.hk

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017

RIBEETE

ERTREFELTHERAQA

&S ET

2R REFR1835

B MAPOT7E
171281716

T 3% - +852 2862 8555
{EHE : +852 2865 0990

REEBE

BRMR/NE

T (REEBRREEEAED)

BS5REFTESHERRAA
BABER

MHEE B35

ES&F OB
1118 R 1218

&% 0 +852 2161 4370
{8 H : +852 2506 0188
B : ir@tradelink.com.hk

#8 1k

www.tradelink.com.hk



Corporate Information
nE&#

Board of Directors

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Keung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew (Chief Technology Officer)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily (Chief Operations Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Dr. LEE Delman
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman)
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Remuneration Committee
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay (Chairman)
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Nomination Committee

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. (Chairman)
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Investment Committee
Mr. CHAK Hubert (Chairman)
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan

Dr. LEE Delman

Exg

FEREHTESE
ETyEE L sBS, JP.
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Corporate Information (Continued)
NAEE R )

Corporate Governance Committee
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman)
Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Ms. CHAN Chi Yan

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Senior Management

Mr. TSE Kam Keung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew (Chief Technology Officer)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily (Chief Operations Officer)
Ms. CHU Pik Kwan, Peggie (Chief Financial Officer)

Company Secretary

Mr. HO Chi Kin Joseph

Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Bankers

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Registered Office

11/F & 12/F,

Tower B, Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 2599 1600
Fax: +852 2506 0188

Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2862 8555

Fax: +852 2865 0990

In case of inconsistencies between the English and Chinese versions, the
English version shall prevail to the extent of such inconsistencies.

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Annual Report 2017
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Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
11/F & 12/F, Tower B, Regent Centre
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2599 1600 Fax: (852) 2506 0188
Corporate Website: www.tradelink.com.hk Business Portal: www.tradelink-ebiz.com

ESRETESERAT
BEAXBENEAECITERTP OBELLK12IE
Bah 0 (852) 2599 1600 HE : (852) 2506 0188
ANa)4EHE - www.tradelink.com.hk EFE S5 EH4 - www.tradelink-ebiz.com

@ This annual report is printed on environmentally friendly paper ZN4F #R LAZR (R4 5k EN &Y
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